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The below information has been indexed to the subject
as indicated by an "X" being placed under the appropriate
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The above has been reviewed by me during file review
with the Case Agent on the indicated date:
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 01/16/2001
To: Philadelphia Attn: SSA
From: Criminal Investigative

Color of Unit/Room 3043

Contact:

Approved By:]

Drafted By:

Case ID #: 282A-PH-NEW (Pending)

Title: Uﬁvglzown OFFICERS,
YORK, POLICE, DEPARTMENT, _ 9 JO
YORK, PENNSYLYANIA; ﬁ( ~ 4’71 o, 07}
LILLIE B. ALTEN (DECEASED) - VICTIM;
COLOR OF LAW - "WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE
00: PHILADELPHTA

Synopsis: The Civil Rights Division, Department of Justice (CRD,
DOJ) requests a limited investigation.

Enclosure(s): Two copies of a CRD, DOJ request dated 1/11/01
with attachments.

Details: As directed in Bureau Airtel to All SACs, dated
6/10/94, captioned "Liaison with Civil Rights Division,
Department of Justice; Civil Rights Program," you are instructed
to review this request and complete appropriate investigation in
accordance with the provisions of Section 282, Manual of
Investigative Operations and Guidelines. Results of this
investigation should be submitted within 21 workdays from receipt
of this request. Any questions or concerns pertaining to this
DOJ investigative tasking should be initially discussed and
resolved with DOJ, Civil Rights Division. 1In the event an issue
cannot be resolved, contact the Color of Law Unit, FBI
Headquarters.

Insure that DOJ's file number (144-63-800) is included
on the FD-204 of the initial report in the Copy To Section.
Additionally, submit DOJ's copy of the report to the attention of
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ed to the Color of Law Unit
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To: Philadelphia !rom: Criminal InvestigatiQ
Re: 282A-PH-NEW, 01/16/2001 "

Philadelphia is requested to ensure this EC is
serialized, due to the fact that this task cannot be performed
until a UCFN is assigned.

The enclosed DOJ memorandum and its attachments allege
that 9 police officers were involved in the 1969 shooting death
of the victim.

LEAD:
Set Lead 1:
PHILADELPHIA

AT YORK, PENNSYLVANTIA

Monitor any state investigation of the murder and
report any significant developments.

CC: 2 - Philadelphia

*




Memorandum

BLL:CMM:CG:pmt
144-63-800

Subject: - Date:
Unknown Officers,
York Police Department,
York, Pennsylvania - Subjects; JAN 11 2001

Lillie B. Allen (deceased) - Victim

~STVEF~RIGHTS
( oLol of LAW ~ wITl PR yPot BaB

To: From:
Director Bill Lann Lee
Federal Bureau of Investigation Assistant Attorney General
Attn: Color of Law Unit Civil Rights Division

Reference is made to the attached correspondence to Senator
Rick Santorum from regarding the 1969 shooting
death of Lille Belle Allen iIn York, Pennsylvania, which may have
involved possible violations of 18 U.S.C. §§ 241 and 242.

Please conduct the following limited investigation:

1. - Monitor any state investigation of the murder and
report to the Criminal Section any significant
developments.

The Criminal Section attorney assigned to this matter is

who can be reached at | | Please refer
to DJ ¥ 144-63-800 in correspondence with the Criminal Section
concerning this matter.

Attachment
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RICK SANTORUM . ‘ ) . commrzst T

PENNSYLVANIA . ) AGRICULTURE
ARMED SERVICES

CrAIRMAN, SUBCCMMITTEE N

a: - —~— ~ AIRLAND FORcES
Anited States Senate
WASHINGTON, DC 20510-3804 o
202-224-6324 VICE CHAIRMAR,
SUBCOMMITTEE ON HOUSING
October 1 0 7000 ANO TRANSPORTATION

Ms. Ann Harkins

Acting Assistant Attorney General
Office of Legislative Affairs
Room 1603

U. S. Department of Justice
Washington, D.C. 20530-0001

Dear Ms. Harkins,

. . b6
I have recently received correspondence from of the York Daily Record of b7C
York, Pennsylvania.
| | is concerned about the investigation of the Lillie Belle Allen case. Any information b6
. . . . b7C
your office could provide regarding this matter would be greatly appreciated. A copy of]
correspondence is enclosed for your review.
The staff contact for this referral is who can be reached at Thank 1;3
c

you for your assistance.
Sincerely,

Lo S

Rick Santorum
United States Senate
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P.O. Box 15122, York, PA 17405-7122
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Sept. 27, 2000

Janer Reno

Arttorney General

United States Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, D.C. 20530-0001

Dear Janet Reno:

I am) a reporter with the York Daily Record in York, Pa. I am 2,6, ¢

writing to inquire why the Umited States Department of Justice is not recpening its case
regarding the 1969 race riots in York. I have included some recent news clips regarding
the case.

My questions include:

1. Has the Department of Justice been contacted by York County authorities taking a
fresh look at the case?
2. Will the Department of Justice consider reopening the probe?

3. Why didn’t FBI agents interview police officers years ago who allowed the family’s
car to drive into a white neighborhood just before Lillie Belle Allen was shot?

bé

Please give me a call regarding this case. My phone number is
b7C

Thank you.

Sincerelv,

b6
b7C

.cc: U.S. Rep. Bill Goodling
U.S. Sen. Arlen Specter s 7
U.S. Sen. Rick Santorum ‘ N I
U.S. Rep. Flayd Spence : } L,} L} /L,; 5 C‘
U.S. Rep. Lindsey O. Graham : —"/ T e
U.S. Sen. Fritz Hollings ’

U.S. Sen. Strom Thurmond R

122 South George Street R
(717) 771-2000 FAX: (717} 771-2009 _ S
Elecironic mail: news@ydr.com

‘—Q
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FBI investigated 69 riot kﬁilling

i Federal reports reject a
charge that a police officer
was involved in the death of
Lillie Belle Allen,

By TERESA ANN BOECKEL
Daity Record stoff .

Pifteen to 20 police offivers stood halfl a
block from the North Newberry Streed rail-
road trucks where someone murdered Lillie
Belle Allen (he night of July 21, 1969,

Brratic gunfive raged for 20 to 30 minutes,

A gang of while youths from the Newberry
Styecl area allegedly fired the shots.

And ane of the shovlers may have been a

police officer,

Those defails are countained in a
Bl-year-vld, 48-page FBY report, which the
Daily Record obtained tlwough a Freedosfl of
Infermation Act requesl.

Jerris Levnard, assistanl allorney general
in the Civil Rights division of the Departiment
of Justice at the time, ordered an investiga-
tion afler allegalions arose that a police olfi-
cer may have been invelved. The B
launched a probe eight days after Allen's
death,

Although the investigation did not. find evi-
dence of a police officer involved:-in the
shooting, the repart brought to light new in-
formatiom: :

W Shoolers fired sl the trunk of Allen's
car. The reason: the previous day, when a car
had driven down Newherry Street, the lrunk
opened, and some black people fired on the
neighborhood.

o A ricoeheting bullel struck Allen in the
chest, killing her.

M The FFBI never interviewed York Police
officers who stoed a half block avray from the

shooting scene.
M It will be-nearly impossible for investi-

See FBI, page 7A

o t

! Bl AT S S Bl '!'

FBI investigators concluded that snipers on Neviberry Street may have
been aiming lor the lrunk of the Cadillac that Lillie Belle Allen was in the
night of July 21, 1969, because another vehicle the night before cacried

shooters in the trunk,
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gators to -solve Allen's death
unless witnesses step forward
and volunieer information.

In June of this year, York
County District Attorney H. Stan-
ley Rebert asked the local court
to authorize & grand jury investi-
gation into the deaths of Allen
and York Police Officer Henry C.
Schaad. A gag order has prevent-
ed local authorities from talking
about the investigation.

A 33-page state police report
has been edited from the old FBI
file, but an agent paraphrased
the state police investigation and
that veport is in the file. The ¥FBI
removed the names of witnesses
and people involved in the inves-
tigation before releasing the file
1o the Daily Record.

The last page. dated Feb. 2
1970, states that authorities
would advise the FBI of any new
devejopments that might oceur in

the cass. .
The case has since been
closed. according o Bonnie

Weber, paralegal specialisi with
the Freedom of Information Act
section. She said she did not
know if the FBI has been con-
acted about local authorities
:aking a fresh look at the murder.

The account, provided in the
quarter-inch-thick packet, gues
the following details:

Allen, who was visiting rela-
tives in York. had gone with them
on a fishing trip thé day of the
shooting, That evening they
headed to the sgrocery store to
buy supplies for ancther fishing
rip.

Hattie Dixen. Allen’s sister,
drove a white Cadillac. which
stopped at the intersection of
Philadelphia and Newberty
streets. Fifteen to 20 law enforce-
ment officers, armed with rifles
and wearing helmets, stood on
the corner.

They never stopped the car
from turning onto Newbeiry
street, which was partially
blocked by benches.

Riders in the car saw a sea of
white faces gathered across the
railroad tracks. One or more
police officers accompanied
them, 2 witness told FBI agenfs.

One “trooper” raised his rifle
and pointed it the direction of
the car.

‘...these people are going to

BACKGROUND

Sor nwo summers, in 1263 and
1988, race sots raged in York.
‘eaving dozers npred and WO
'*Pco!e dead.

Autficnitiss rscently recpensd
he nwider cases of Lille Belle
Alier. end York Pclics Ofiicer
Henry C. Schaad, who were killed
during e 1889 riots.

Yerke Police received new ine
formation about Schazd's homi-
cice monihs ago. sand ihai
soarked 2 latest investigaticn
nte e wo cases.

District ARcrney H. Stanley
Receri asked the Yerk Coun'y
Commen Plzgs Court in June fo
autherize a grand jury investiga-
ticn infa the deaths of Allen and
Schzad. Rebert  designated
Taomas H. Kellsy, hls first assis-
tant, =nd William H. Graft Jr., his
chief deputy prosecutor. to act as
his rapresentatives in all matters
ralating ie the grand jury, A pane!
of jurars has not yet been chosen.

Allen, a tlack woman irem
Aiken, 3.C., died July 21, 1588,
aftar peing shot in the chest cn
Nerth Newberry Strest. Snipers
firea at her family’s car as shz and
family members headed to ‘the
grecary store.

Two white gangs hung out in
that area — ihe Nawberry Strest
Boys and the Girarders. Schaad,
z whitz ofiicer just 10 months en
the jeb, died Aug. 1, 1962, after
bsing shet July 18 cn West Col-
lege Avenua at the Codorus
Craek bridge. A steel-jacketed

- bullet from a Krag ,30-.40 caliber
pierced the armored van, hlulnu
Schaad.

start shooting,”
car sald.

The car left the road and
ended up on the ratlroad fracks.

Allen volunteered to take the
wheel and get the family out of
the neighborhood.

As she approached the driv-
er's side door, gunfire blasted.

Allen dropped to the ground.
bleeding. A rider iu the car
wanted to pull Allen back in the
car but was told not to until the
shooting stopped.

The bullets rained for at least
15S'minutes.

A police armored car rolled
up. An officer who appeared {o
be in charge velled for the firing
to stop.

Allen was taken to York Hos-
pital, where she died about 1%
houwrs later.

Officials removed the buliet
from Allen’s chest. Authorities
turned it over to the state police
laboratory in Harrisburg,

someone in the

REC. l

An investigation showed that
only a portion of a slug fired from
a high-powered rifle survived.

The bullet.had ricochered off an-.

other object before
Allen's chest.

The state police report states
that the gunfire allegedly came

from a gang of white vouths from

piercing

the North Newberry Street area-

who had a confrontation with a
gang of black youths that same
day.

A coufrontation with a group

of black people
ous day may
Allen’s shooting.

A car had been driving down
North Newberry Street and as it
reached the raiiroad wacks, the
trunk popped opened. Some
black people in
sprayed the area with gunfire as
the car sped off.

in & car the previ-
have triggerad

A trooper believed thai this

case left residents of the North
Newberry Street area “rather
jumpy,” according to the FBI
report. So when another car
filled with black people rolled
down the streef, turned around at
the tracks and Allen crawled out,
the gang in the area thought they
would be shot at from the trunk.
The majority of the shots hit
the car in the right rear, partic-
ularly in the area of the trunk.

The TBI rececived information -
that a person wearing matching -

grayish pamnts, a shirt and a

helmet was involved. The report

never identifies that person.
Authorities determined that

the person was not a police offi-

cer, He was not wearing a bullet-
proof vest as the other officers
were. His helimet was a different
color from state and York police.

In addition, the person was not
seen taking amy action with the
gang. He walked away from the
car in which Allen was riding, He
kept his back to the car. accord-
ing to the report.

By December 1969, York
Police told the FBI that they still
were conducting an investigation
in conjunction with state police.

With many people in the area
of Allen's shooting that night, it
had not been pessible for them to
determine who might have shot
Allen. No one questioned would
admit seeing who had fired the
shot.

“...(Unless a witness comes

forth and volunteers information - °
as to who may have shot her, itis .} -
going to be nearly impossible'to "
determine just who did shoot

her,” the FBI report states.

the lrunk’

@oots009
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Grand jurors go to work Thirty people will determine
whether anyone should be charged in two 31-~year-cld shootings.
(includes graphic: Grand jury selected)

rory

DEAN WiSE Daily Record staff

A judge mmpaneled York County's first investigating grand jury in nearly three decades Wednesday to
Investigate two murders that happened during the city's race riots in 1965.

President Judge John C. Uhler of the Common Pleas Court swore to secrecy an all-white panel of 16
men and 14 women. Two black people had been among the 123 who answered the call for grand jury duty
but were not among the 30 jurors randomly selected by computer.

An official with the York chapter of the NAACP said Wednesday night that justice will not be served in
this case without a black person on the grand jury. ,

Under Uhler's supervision, the panel will hear evidence about two unsolved killings from 1969. Rookie
York Police Officer Henry C. Schaad, 22, was hit by a bullet July 18 while riding in an armored car
crossing the West College Avenue bridge. Aiken, S.C., resident Lillie Belle Allen, 37, a visitor to York,
was gunned down at the North Newberry Street railroad crossing July 21.

Allen died that night. Schaad died Aug: 1.

"You and you alone must decide whether the matters of grave public importance before you disclose
criminal conduct and, if so, by whom," Ubler told the grand jurors.

“In the discharge of this responsibility,” he said, "you must act honestly, conscientiously and without
fear or favor.

"You must avoid mere rumor, suspicion or conjecture and you must cast out sham and prejudice. But,
where you find wrongdoing, you must confront it and address it, fearlessly and candidly.”

After breaking for lunch Wednesday, the panel reassembled for its first meeting with prosecutors who
will lead the investigation.

In addition to District Attorney H. Stanley Rebert, his first assistant, Thomas H. Kelley, and chief
deputy prosecutor, William H. Graff Jr., the judge said two others - executive deputy prosecutor James M.
Reeder and senior deputy prosecutor Timothy J. Barkdoll - will work with grand jurors during the
investigation. . :

Jurors will serve up to 18 months, if necessary, with a possible extension of six months if requested and
eranted by Uhler. They will determine whether tc issue any presentments accusing individuals of criminal
charges relating to the two deaths.

A presentment is a written statement to the court by a grand jury, indicating an offense has taken place
and, if determined, naming individuals recommended for prosecution.

Though the selection of the jury was open to the public, the law requires all grand jury proceedings to
be secret with no one - prosecutors, jurors or supporting court personnel - permitted to discuss anything
outside the hearing room.

Any presentments accepted by Uhler will become public record.

Uhler told the grand jury it likely will convenpe for two-day sessions, about 30 days apart, once
prosecutors have subpoenaed witnesses. The hiatus will allow time for follow-up investigation between
sessions, the judge said.

The judge told the grand jurors they may ask questions of witnesses. That differs from criminal trials to
determine guilt or innocence in Pennsylvania. Jurors in those cases are not permitted to ask questions.

Chler appointed a registered professioual engineer as the jury foreman. His duties include presiding at
each session, coordinating activities with the prosecutors and signing all official documents.

10/02/2000 2:43 §
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The judge said Kay Ehrhart, a deputy clerk of courts, will serve as grand jury administrator to track
witnesses and exhibits. He told the 23 regular jurors they will have to choose a secretary to take the roll of
members at each session and to kesp accurate minutes.

Uhler did not disclose the grand jurors' identiiics or ages. Most members appeared to range in age from
their 40s to 60s with about 10 people in their 20s and 30s.

Among the regular jurors, 12 are men'and 11 are women. The seven alternate jurors - four men and
three women - will sit with the primary jurors for all sessions but will have no vote and will not participate
in deliberations. The alternates, in the order chosen, will replace regular jurors in the event vacancies occur.

Fifieen primary jurors constitute a quorum, A presentment re quires a minimum of 12 affirmative votes,

The judge told panel members a computer picked them at random from a pool of 10,060 to 15,000
registered voters and wage earners within the county. The court uses the same method to select jurors for
civil and criminal trials.

Ubler said the court initially summoned 250 people by certified mail but 2 pumber of those were
undeliverable because people had died or moved. The judge and Court Administrator J. Robert Chuk
excused others before Wednesday but only for extraordinary medical reasons, planned vacations with
travel or lodging reservations in place or other medical or financial hardships.

Uhler granted exemptions Wednesday to seven additional potential jurors. They included a man under a
doctor's care for an anxiety disorder, another man who has an appointment with a medical specialist today
and a woman whose ill husband depends upon her for transporta tion to Johns Hopkins Hospital in
Baltimore.

The judge excused one man with a 40 percent hearing loss who had difficulty understanding Uhler's
amplified remarks. Uhler exempted a second woman who is undergoing dialysis for a kidney disorder.

One man told Uhler that he plans hunting trips cach November and asked if that would interfere with
his ability to serve. Uhler said it would not, and did not excuse him. The man was not selected by the
computer.

Another man told Uhler he did not believe in secret organizations or the death penalty and questioned
whether he should serve. The judge said the grand jury is not a secret organization and that the jury would
not deter mine guilt or innocence, so would pot rule on a death penalty matter. The computer did not select
that man, either. ‘

Two women who had performed jury service within the county during the past three years opted to
remove them selves from consideration as po tential grand jurors, a decision allowed by law.

Baba Whisler, who chairs the NAACP's legal redress committee, said Wednesday night that because of
the history of the riots in York, only a black person could understand that type of prejudice and could
objectively judge the case.

In 1996, according to the most recent Census numbers, African-Americans made up 3.86 percent of
York County's population.

“There's no way to entrust this case to an-all white jury, computer-generated or not,” said Whisl ¢r, 2
life member of York's National Association for the Ad vancement of Colored People. "We don't want in
the year 2000 to have this case unresolved."

Whisler said county officials should have taken steps to ensure more minorities were in the jury poel
and that some were picked to serve on the grand jury.

"Even if you have to go outside the county to find them,” she said. "We need to resolve this case and
not repeat past mistakes."

Whisler said she was going to talk with with Leo Cooper, president of York's NAACP, about what the
group could do to formally object to the grand jury selection.

Uhler issued a stern challenge to the grand jurors.

"Your capacity to see that justice is done is enormous," he said. "At the same tims, if your powers are
incorrectly used or abused, great harm can be done, both to individuals and to the community at large.”

The judge thanked jurors for their willingness to serve, saying he is personally grateful for their
participation. "You should conduct your duties with dignity and with fidelity to the oath you have just
taken,” he said.

10IN2/2000 2:43 |
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"Any violation of my instructions in this regard, whether by members of the jury panel or anyone
having any relationships with the jury panel, will be dealt with swifily and firmly."
Daily Record staff writer Carrie A. Liberante contributed to this report.

1021000 7-43 1
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Sisters talk about their loss Lillie Belle Allen was one of
two people shot and killed during the 1969 York riots.

PAMELA LEHMAN Daily Record staff

Almast 31 years later, Hattie Dickson is still waiting for that wrenching cry to mourzn the loss of her
sister, Lillie Belle Allen.

She saw her beautiful sister - who loved to dance and wanied a body like Marilya Monroe - get pierced
by bullets from a sniper's gun along North Newberry Street in York. “

Sometimes Dickson can talk about that hot July evening in 1969. Other timmes, her mind snaps shut like
a trap and she can't remember anything.

Dickson wants to mourn for the woman who was like a mother to her.

"I'm not a crybaby, and I don't like weakness," she said from her other sister's York home on
Wednesday night. "1 hold things in, and 1t's still bard to ex plain my deepest feelings.”

Lillie Belle was the one Momma always left in charge, Dickson said.

She never yelled at her younger siblings, said her sister, Gladys Oden.

Lilliec Belle used to do a dance where her whole body would shimmy and shake like a live wire. [t was a
sight to see, Oden said.

That day in July, the family had spent the afternoon fishing, Lillie Belle was visiting from her home in
Aiken, S.C. Later that evening, six of them piled in the car to go to a supermarket to get a few things for
dinper.

Dickson hopped behind the wheel. Beside her was her husband, Murray.

Allen, her mother and father, the Rev. James Mosely, were in the back.

As they drove north on North Newberry Street, they saw a gang of white people standing near the
railroad tracks at Gay Avenue. The gang was known as the Newberry Street Boys. As they passed, a man
raised a rifle and pointed at the family members cowering in the car.

Dickson pulled into the left lane and veered toward a street sign. The family yelled at her fo watch out.
Lillie Belle told her sister to pull over so she could drive. '

As Lillie Belle's feet touched the pavement, shots rang out. The car's rear window exploded and bullets
punctured the tires.

Dickson lay down on Oden’s couch Wednesday demonstrating how the family crouched on-the floor of
the car.

"We heard a man yell, 'Don't shoot down here no more!' " Dickson said. "He told us to keep our heads
down and not look up."

Lillie Belle was under the car. They heard her moan and ask for help. Eventually, a York Police
armored car appeared around the comer. Lillie Belle was rushed to York Hospital.

A few blocks away, Oden heard the shots and thought they were firecrackers. She heard a thumping
noise and saw Dickson's car crawl up the block driving on rims.

The family filed into the house with shards of glass in their hair and dazed locks on their faces. Lillie
Belle wasn't with them.

"My Momma said they were going to the hospital, and I wasn't to open the door for anything,” Oden
said. She was 13 at the time and stayed with Lillie Belle's children.

"The baby was crying, and I was trying to put things in his mouth to keep him quiet," she said. "I was so
scared they were going to come back and kill us."

When her parents and sister returned hours later, they told Oden her sister had passed. Oden was
horrified.

"My father said we were getting out of here as soon as possible,” Oden said. "Later that night, we heard

09/27/2000 1:33
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more shots and crawled along the floor and up the stairs to one room where we all just sat."

A few weceks later, the family squeezed into a car and headed back to Aiken.

Oden was never really able to talk to her parents about the loss of Lillie Belle. They never dealt with
their feelings from that night, she said.

Dickson waved her hand in front of her face when asked about that night.

"I wish our parents were here to talk to about it," she said. "There are so many things we never got to
say." .
Oden said she wants to move back to Aiken. She's not sure why she's stayed in York. She came here
years ago to get away from a bad relationship and be with her sister.

Some nights the thoughts keep her awake - what in the world is she doing in the city where her sister
was killed? What's keeping her and Dickson here? Why stick around and deal with the bad memories?

"I'm not comfortable living here, but I wonder if the Lord has me here for some reason,” Oden said.

In February, Dickson said she was approached by detectives and agents from the district attorney's
office. On Tuesday, police said they were re-opening the two murder cases that happened during the 71969
riots. York Police Officer Henry Schaad also was shot and killed.

"I had gotten to the point where I never really gave it another thought,” Dickson said. "I thought it was
done and gone, and we'd never hear anything about it again.”
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence:

To: Criminal Investigative

From:

DEADLINE 02/20/2001

Attn:

Philadelphia Field Office

Harrisburg Regident Adgencv

Date: 01/29/2001

Color of Law Unit

Contact: SA

bé
b7C

Approved By:

Drafted By:

grb

Case ID #: LZ%ZA-PH—90508

Title: UNKNOWN OFFICERS,

YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT,

YORK, PENNSYLVANIA; .
LILLIE BELL ALLEN (DECEASED)
COLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

00: PHILADELPHIA
Synopsis:
Details:

Date of Incident:
Date of Complaint:

Incident Street No.:

Street Name: N. NEWBERRYI STREET

07/21/1969
01/11/2001

Initial submission.

Zip:

Ccity: YORK
State: PA
1. INCIDENT:

A. Community Area: Metropolitan

B. Violence: Yes

C. Death: Yes

D. Injury:

E. Correctional Facility:
Facility Type: ’
Same as Incident Address:

Facility Street No.:
Street Name:

City:

State:

2. MODUS OPERANDI:
Shoulder Weapon

Zip:

3. OTHER AGENCY INVESTIGATING:

Police (Criminal); Local

cev]efe

Time of Incident:

bé
- b7C

- VICTIM;

09:15P

Apt #:

2828-PH- D503

X
UV SR §

LT

» . be6
§b7c




To:
Re:

[fffiff]of the FBI report, 44-1638. On 1-29-2001

*

Criminal Investigative From: Philadelphia Field Office
282A-PH-90508, 01/29/2001

SYNOPSIS: The York County District Attorney initiated a
County Grand Jury investigation into two(2) homicides that
occurred during racial rioting in 1969 in York, Pa.. This
investigation includes the captioned matter and the shooting
death on 07/18/1969 of Police Officer Henry C. Schaad. The
Grand Jury has been hearing witness testimony on a part-time
basis since October 2000. Previously, a request for
assistance from the York County District Attorney for
information was handled with the assistance of the Civil
Rights Unit and reported in the zero file.

SIGNIFICANT CASE: Yes

Please Explain: This matter is a significant matter locally,
receiving notable media attention and resulting in the suicide
of a subject/witness.

REMARKS/ADMINISTRATIVE: Indices search requests previously
submitted for both victims identified only destroyed files.
The York Daily Record submitted a request through the FOIPA

and received documents approximately one inch thick, includin
| | b6

York County District Attorney's Office, was contacted b7C
regarding the release of information to the FBI from County
Grand Jury proceedings. Request is pending.
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REPORTING OFFICE

A8aeep.whd

FEDERAL BURFAU OF INVESTIGATION

OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 02/15/2001 | 01/19/2001 - 02/15/2001
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
UNKNOWN OFFICERS,
YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT, SH grb
YORK, PENNSYLVANIA; CHARACTER OF CASE

LILLIE B. ALLEN (DECEASED) - VICTIM | COLOR OF LAW

WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

-P-
REFERENCE
Philadelphia FD-610, dated 01/29/2001.

LEAD

PHILADELPHIA DIVISION

AT

HARRISBURG, PA

Will follow and report results of

York County

Grand Jury investigation as the information becomes

available.
SPECIAL AGENT
APPROVED IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW
COPIES MADE:

2 - Bureau

- DOJ Civil Rights Division
@— Philadelphia (282A-PH-90508)

JBIH-PH

I

b6
b7cC

S%ﬁF_CHEDﬁT!rDHEo%?L.
DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT | Notations HnHIZED B A€
Agency " P

Request Recd. FeB i 52001

Date Fwd. | - b6
How Fwd. [ 14 b7C
By -

A ' !
COVER PAW /Q% i f 4 ﬁ@f&mﬂéﬁﬂ
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Copy to:

Report of:
Date:

Case ID #:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

DOJ# 144-63-800

ATTN. bé
b7C

SA offic:. Philadelphia

02/15/2001

282A-PH-90508

UNKNOWN OFFICERS,

YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT,

YORK, PENNSYLVANIA;

LILLIE BELL ALLEN (DECEASED) - VICTIM

COLOR OF LAW WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

Lillie Bell Allen, black female, Date of Birth
December 25, 1941, was shot and killed during race riots
on July 21, 1969, in the City of York, Pennsylvania. On
July 18, 1969, Police officer Henry C. Schaad was shot and
killed by unknown subjects while seated in an armored car
while on duty during racial tensions. These two homicides
have gone unsolved with an implication that police were
somehow involved in the Allen murder.

York County authorities have impaneled a Grand Jury and
have presented witnesses on a regular basis since October bé
2000. Upon initiation of this matter, a request was b7c
presented to President Judge John C. Uhler, Yorxrk County
Common Pleas Court, through |
| | requesting disclosure for the
FBI/Department of Justice. Judge Uhler has not yet made a
decision concerning this request.

-pP-

DETAILS: This matter was predicated in the Philadelphia
Division of the FBI upon receipt of a request for
investigation from the UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
JUSTICE, Civil Rights Division dated January 11, 2001.

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI

and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 03/12/2001 | 02/15/2001 - 03/08/2001
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
UNKNOWN OFFICERS, ‘
YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT, SA drj
YORK, PENNSYLVANIA; CHARACTER OF CASE
LILLIE B. ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM | COLOR OF LAW WITH

FORCE/VIOLENCE

- P -
REFERENCE

02/15/2001.

PHILADELPHIA DIVISION
AT HARRISBURG, PA

LEAD

Philadelphia FD-610 dated 01/29/2001; and Report dated

4

Will follow and report results of York County,
Pennsylvania, Grand Jury investigation as the information becomes

available.

SPECIAL AGENT
APPROV%D IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW
C MADE:
Bureau

1 - Department of Justice
Civil Rights Division
<i:)ZPHILADELPHIA (282A-PH-90508)

ARAA-PR-9u505-5

b6
b7C

DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT Notations Scarcnsy ioicd
Agency Serializcd\ALT -
Request Recd.

Date Fwd. Indexed -
How Fwd. Filed A
By
A*
COVER PAGE

X e,
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Copy to: DOJ #144-63-8000
Attention: | bé
b7C
Report of: SA| Office: Philadelphia Field
Date: Office
03/12/2001
Case ID #: 282A-PH-90508
Title: UNKNOWN OFFICERS,
YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT,
York, Pennsylvania;
LILLIE BELL ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM
Character: COLOR OF LAW WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE
- P -
Synopsis:
On March 7, 2001] zgc
| |York County District Attorney's Office,
York, Pennsylvania, advised that President Judge John C.
Uhler has not ruled on the request for disclosure of Grand
Jury information to the Federal Bureau of
Investigation/Department of Justice. Unofficially, it
appears the York County Grand Jury may make presentments
concerning the Lillie Bell Allen murder before the end of
March, 2001. It is unclear if these matters will be
sealed at that time, as the Grand Jury will then begin
b7D

DETAILS: This matter was predicated in the Philadelphia
Division of the Federal Bureau of Investigation upon
receipt of a request for investigation from the United
States Department of Justice, Civil Rights Division, dated
January 11, 2001.

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI
and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.

1*

.
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FEDERAL 1\3UREAU OF INVESTIGATION

REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN ¥ DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 04/11/2001 | 03/9/2001 - 04/11/2001
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
UNKNOWN OFFICERS,

YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT, SA grb
YORK, PENNSYLVANIA; CHARACTER OF CASE

LILLIE B. ALLEN (DECEASED)

COLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE
O0: PHILADELPHIA

- VICTIM

COLOR OF LAW
WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

-p-

REFERENCE

Philadelphia FD-610, dated January 29,
reports dated 2-15-2001 and 3-12-2001.

2001,

LEAD

PHILADELPHIA DIVISTON

Will follow and report results of York County
Grand Jury investigation as the information becomes

‘available.

SPECIAL AGENT
APPROVED 2%//6/ IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW
COPIES MADE: 7 ~
2 - Bure

- DOJ Civil Rights Division
2)- Philadelphia (282A-PH-90508)

lde.

DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT

Notations

Agency

Request Recd.

Date Fwd.

How Fwd.

By x
COVER

e

bé
b7C
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Copy to:

Report of:
Date:

Case ID #:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

® o

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

DOJ# =f3-
ATTN. b6

b7cC

SA office: Philadelphia
04/11/2001

282A-PH-90508

UNKINOWN OFFICERS,

YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT,

YORK, PENNSYLVANIA;

LILLIE BELL ALLEN (DECEASED) - VICTIM

COLOR OF LAW WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

On 04-05-2001, an informal meeting was held with the
York County District Attorney's Office regarding the
pending County Grand Jury investigation into the murder of
Lillie Bell Allen. In attendance were;

| Ssistant b6
United States Attorney| [ and FBI Special Agent b7c

| President Judge John C. Uhler, York County

District Court, had recently signed an order permitting
disclosure of County Grand Jury proceedings to the U.S.
Department of Justice.

outlined concerns of how politics might

effect the pending Grand Jury presentment as the Mayor of

the City of York, Pa., Charlie Robertson, would likely be

included in a list of about seven for which charges would

be recommended. In 1969, Mayor Robertson was a patrolman

with the City of York Police Department and testimony has
reportedly linked him with inciting the white community

against blacks, providing ammunition that was used in the

shooting of Victim Allen, and influencing the

investigation conducted into this matter. | | b6
requested the assistance of the United States Attorney's b7C
Office/DOJ in reviewing the investigation for

consideration of possible Federal charges pertaining to

the role of Mayor Charlie Robertson in the 1969 murder.

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI
and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.




282A-PH-90508

On 4-10-2001, copies of transcripts of Grand Jury
testimony were received and are being copied for inclusion in the
next report. The initial presentment is tentatively scheduled
for 4-24-2001, and the York County District Attorney will file
complaints against those recommended in the presentment, with the
possible exclusion of Mayor Robertson. The presentment may be
sealed at the discretion of the presiding District Court Judge,
but it is anticipated that media coverage may be extensive with
supposition of the identity of the unnamed "law enforcement
officer", whose identity is known to the Grand Jury.

-p-
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD

PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 05/02/2001 04/12/200:!. - 05/01/2001
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY : TYPED BY
UNKNOWN OFFICERS, .
York Police Department, SA drj
York, Pennsylvania; CHARACTER OF CASE

LILLIE B. ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM | COLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

REFERENCE

Philadelphia FD-610 d

»ed\Q1/29/ 001; and report dated
04/11/2001.

ENCILOSED FOR THE BUREAU:

Enclosed for the Bureau are the following:

1. Copy of York County Grand Jury testimony
transcripts reflecting approximately 90% of the testimony
presented to date.

2. Copy of newspaper articles from the York Sunday
News dated 04/29/2001.

SPECIAL AGENT
APPROVED IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW

COPIES MADE:
3- Bureau
1- Civil Rights Division }\
@ Philadelphia (282A-PH-90508) (HRA)

j\' '!
y«/

383 A-PH- 90508 | - |

\ - so;gr.ecHED INDEXEH) m\ ~
DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT | Notations e T A
Agency m Ay 1g '
Request Recd. 'k} D % 2001

Date Fwd.

EIC Y
How Fwd. &ﬁ \ﬁﬁf g
BX ARAN

A /
COVER PAGE

b6
b7C

bé
b7C




282A-PH-90508

3. A copy of the presentment as returned by the York
County Grand Jury.

4. Envelope containing correspondence from the

Assistance United States Attorney| | Middle District - bé

of Pennsylvania, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. b7C
LEAD

PHILADELPHIA

AT HARRISBURG, PA

Will continue to monitor local prosecution under the
guidelines of a Pending Inactive matter.

ADMINISTRATIVE

It is requested that this matter be placed in a Pending
Inactive status to more efficiently monitor the local prosecution
of this case.

This matter is being placed in a Pending Inactive
status for 120 days at which time the status will be ascertained.

B*
Cover Page
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UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Copy to: Department i 4-63-800
Attention: b6

b7C
Report of: SA offic:. Philadelphia
Date: 05/02/2001
Case ID #: 282A-PH-90508
Title: UNKNOWN OFFICERS,

York Police Department,
York, Pennsylvania;
LILLIE B. ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM;

Character: COLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

Synopsis: During the week of April 23 to 27, 2001, a presentment
was returned by the York County, Pennsylvania, Grand Jury.

bé
b7C

The media has reported an lmplication that the
unidentified police officer is the current Mayor of the
City of York, Charlie Robertson.

The York District Attorney has held filing of charges
against Mayor Robertson in abeyance pending the review of
this matter by the United States Attorney's Office, Middle
District of Pennsylvania (MDPA), Harrisburg, Pennsylvania,
in coordination with the Civil Rights Division, Department
of Justice.

Opn Mav 1, 2001, Assistant United States Attorney
| | MDPA, advised that the review by the Unites bé
States Attorney's Office has been completed and no active b7cC
involvement in this matter is anticipated.

- pP* -

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI
and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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By LAURI LEBO
Dispatch/Sunday News

What’s news has ‘changed
.in Aiken, S.C.

Belle Allen died, the death of

now, finally, become news.
. News the way — 31 years
'ago — a story had been about
the search for the killer of a
fblond coed at a university
‘800 miles away.

In the late ’60s, skin color -
more than likely 'played a
role in the sparse coverage,

n Aiken

news in

[

the Aiken Standard, who was
a junior in college at the time
of Allen’s slaying. Like most
.people in the area, he had
never heard of the killing.
“If the roles had been re-
versed, if it was a white
woman and a black gang,” he .
g said. “Yeah, I think definitely
there was going to be a dif-"
ferent play.”
,_>_ But in the town where
== Allen lived, the 27-year-old
ﬂ preacher’s daughter was soon.
C all but forgotten except by
those who loved her. 3
In the summer of 1969, )
! the Aiken Standard barely |
noticed that one of their own |
had been killed during race"
(B

=

riots in York. Like most"
newspapers across the coun-
try in July 1969, the Stan-
dard was preoccupied with
the moon landing and combat
deaths in Vietnam.

Even though her father

was a local pastor, and Auen
‘ighad been killed trying to
|. escape a hail ofl})Jg]lets ﬁ}f'?g
;'by an angry mob 1n a whi

N\ n}(;ighborhood, the $tandard
" ran only a short obituary on
i her. Three names were mis-

5 S

illie B

“T'HE WORLD IS A DIFFERENT PLACE’

A hometown headline

31 vears late

r, L

LI I

s e =

\
|

In the 31 years since Lillie !

a local black woman at the
thands of a white mob has -

said Jeff Wallace, editor of

(Indicalé page, name of
newspaper, cily drid siale.}
THE YORK DISPATCH
York, Pennsylvania

Dale: 4/0?4/0/ ’

A~

Edilion: Daily .
" spelled 111 tHe" '
article, in- .
cluding her
arents’ lastcter:
Do estee 2834 PH 70008
An Associ- ficalion: .
ated  Pressitting Office: HRA
article men-
tioning her—
killing ap-"% )
- Wallace ... peared on  “He said there are good and
editor of the the front:  had, both black and white, in
Aken Stan. P28¢ . ther }oth the North and South. 2
dard a next day. An- In York, back then, riot:
ard newspa- other short coverage dominated the front! !
perin South  story on the page of the York’s Gazette & -
Carolina. rioting  in . Daily. As with all its local

o York ran on ; stories at the time, The York
an inside page two days_ Dispatch covered the riots on
later. -1 the back page. But once the

That was all. ) ' National Guard tanks pu]led‘
Over the same period, the out and police officers began|
paper rah five stories — sensitivily training, the
three on the front page — on  bruised city began putting'

the search for the killer of a  the past behind it and Allen’s |
blonde coed from the Univer- name all but faded away. :
sity of Michigan. That was 1969. i

Different world: The Attention paid: It’s been:
newspaper business has . 10 months since the York'

i changed, Wallace said. If an© County District Attorney’s

unarmed Aiken citizen were- ' Office announced it was re- |

’killed by a gang today in a

northern city more than 600
miles away, you'd better be-
lieve 'readers would know
about it. ) )
“Today, the world is a dif-
ferent place,” Wallace said.
Yesterday, the story domi- -
nated the front page of the

Aiken newspaper. “Family .
awaits justice,” the lead

headline read.
“Tt is bad when you have
to lose someone like that,
The scales of justice are
about to be balanced,” Allen’s -
sister, Aiken resident Jennie
Settles is quoted as saying.
“But it comes as a relief after
all these years to know jus-
tice is going to be done.”
Wallace, who hails from
Pittsburgh, has lived in
South Carolina since he was
a boy. He said he doesn’t
think you can generalize
about people based on geog--
raphy.

g } o C)* A }*g
SEARCHED 1 INDEXED_
seriauizep_(LCLEIED (he o

$aY 15 2001

%
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| questing a grand jury investi-
" gation into the two riot-era
| murders of Allen and rookie
cop Henry Schaad. Since
then, there probably has
been more written about
Allen than had ever been
written previously in the
three decades since her
death.

Now, 31 years since Allen
was killed, the phone keeps
.ringing at Debra Taylor’s
"house in Aiken. She doesn’t

want to answer it.

Many reporters have left
messages asking to talk to
her about the recent arrests
of two men accused of killing
her mother. They also want
to know how she feels about
witness testimony outlined in
. charging documents that say
' an unnamed police officer

. handed out the ammunition
that was used to shoot at
. Allen.
' Taylor doesn’t welcome all
~ the attention. She has lived
with the fact that there has
been little interest in finding
out who killed her mother
that night in a darkened
York neighborhood.

Establishing a legacy:
But now there is renewed in-
terest, not only in finding the
killers, but in preserving the
memory of the victims

On May 25, an Aiken High
School student will receive a
small college scholarship in
Allen’s hame.

<

The $2,000 seed money

i

with her son, Brandon.

had been donated by J.
Girard Hemler, a former New
Oxford police chief, who had
never heard of Allen’s story
until less than a year ago. He
had been stunned to learn
that no one had ever been
charged in her death and
wanted to do something to
keep Allen’s legacy alive.

In addition to Allen’s

scholarship, Hemler also cre-

ated one in Schaad’s name at
York High, the young man’s
alma mater. Schaad was shot
July 18, three days before
Allen, while riding in an ar-
mored police car a block

_away from the high school.

JASON PLOTKIN/STAFF PHOTOGRAPHER |
Debra Taylor, the daughter of Lillie Belle Allen, is shown |

|

The student who will re-
ceive the Allen scholarship '
has not yet been chosen. The !
award will go to a minority \
boy or girl who has “exhib-
ited the strength and desire”
to go to college, but could use
the financial boost, said
Aiken High School’s principal
Joe Padget.

Even though the award
will bear Allen’s name, the
recipient of the award will
likely know little about the
woman. Taylor, an intensely
private woman, has asked
the school to keep the details
of her mother’s death out of

the ceremony, Padget said.
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‘By KATHY STEVENS
‘Dispaich/Sunday News
People know the truth.

| Just_like they've known the
[ truth about who killed Lillie Belle

Allen, they know the truth about
\who killed police Officer Henry C.
Schaad.

“Tt’s a matter of time as to when
that comes out,” said Harold
Myers.

Myers tends bar part time at

127, a central gathering point for
the city’s black community on West
Cottage Place.

Yesterday afternoon, he and a
handful of other men sat inside the
post talking about the 1969 race
Triots and whether 11 recommended
indictments would loosen lips -of
those who know who shot Schaad.

They didn’t think so. (

Nor did they believe that pleas
'for resolution of the 22-year-old
'rookie cop’s death from Schaad’s
!and Allen’s families would bring
new information.

they had everything then that they

62-year-old retiree having a drink
at the bar. But, he said, “someone
will talk eventually.”

'

Schaad: ‘A matter of

L

1969, on North Newberry Street
when her sister took a wrong turn
and drove the family car into white
gang territory. She and other
family members had driven from

| Aiken, 8.C., to visit Allen’s sister,

i Hattie Dickson.

Officer down: Three days ear- :
{lier, Schaad had been shot as he

rode in the back seat of an armored
vehicle, dubbed “Big Al” as it
crossed the West College Avenue
bridge headed toward William

{Penn Senior High School. He died
1 14 days later.
Schaad’s case remains unsolved |

as an investigative grand jury con-
tinues to look into new evidence

into the two murders during the
riots.

ments against Arthur N. Messer-:

smith, 47, of Red Lion and Robert. .
N. Messersmith, 52, of Montgom-: .

1

|
!

2

' smiths are going down alone,

the American Legion York Post No. '

{Indicale page, name of
irewspaper, cily and stale.)

THE YORK DISPATCH
York, Pennsylvania

. L IDale: L//JW of
' “You don’t think the Messer-jom Daily

4.8

low)

do!
you?” Holmes asked a friend across :
the bar. “They’re going to sing.
!They're going to sing like the
| Temptations.” ‘
' Holmes and the other men at

_the bar recalled days before fires racter:
'burned city blocks. They sum- of
moned memories of a police depart- ssification:
ment they say was ruled by racist mitiing Office:

U
-
i

AeARPH F0908

HRA

' cops, of police dogs that maimed -

| “Tt took mearly 32 years for =
people to talk about Allen, and !

do now,” said Bobby Holmes, a .

Allen was shot dead July 21,

| On Thursday, the York County,;
‘lgrand jury recommended indict-

ery County. The brothers were ar-.

raigned Thursday on criminal’ .

"homicide charges in Allen’s death.
‘The grand jury recommended in-
|dictments against the brothers and|
inine others, who have not yet been
\named or charged. ‘

friends at the command of white
masters, of another unsolved death xng: .
and random violence. ‘

Lingering images: Those mem-

ories remain vivid in the minds of
at least the handful of men -old
» enough to recall what it meant to
be black and living in York in
1969. ' - tone for law enforcement. In tall,’

Their experiences are relevant. black boots he walked the streets
 to solving Schaad’s case because— with his German shepherd.

'the law enforcement regime cre- . He called black le & |
ated a climate in which members - who “loved to d:(;lcg gople “darkies”

of the black community felt a need! He ignored calls for a citizen|
to protect their own, and, perhaps, ' police review board and refused to|
-to remain silent. - dismantle the K-9 unit, responsible
Each of them will tell you they for scars that have lingered for dec-|
never really had a run-in with the: | ades. i
police — except for that one time. ' “A black person didn’t stand a
Death still questioned: For 'chance with them,” Holmes said,
Holmes, that “one time” came 19 oo
days before Schaad was shot, when
watched his little brother’s corpse
being wheeled to the morgue. '
Holmes had seen Steven Holmes)
at 1:45 a.m. as he left Holmes”
house on South Duke Street after a
" barbecue.
. Holmes’ mother was in town,,
. and he’d asked 27-year-old Steven|
to pick up a six-pack of beer on his |
. way home. !
“The next thing I know, it's 3|
a.m., and someone’s telling me to
identify him,” Holmes said. “He’d
gotten the beer, put it in the refrig-
erator.”
Steven Holmes was killed by a’
single gunshot to the chest while
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he was standing outside his house, '

sometime between 1:45 and 3 am. ' SEARCHED, INDEXED.
That morning was the closest seriaLzep (I _fien__ QL. —
Holmes ever came to being ar-, R _
rested because no one had answers W#AY 15 2001
about his brother’s death. :
And they still don’t. ‘ SELEALA :s
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. Sign of times: Holmes said that
doesn’t surprise him. At the time,
York City was governed by Mayor,
John Snyder, the man who set the
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Thomas Sr. interrupted Holmes:ﬁ

-~

I — ‘
explaining how the dogs’ were only]

“put” on black people. :

Charles  “Commander” Ly
“I've got a friend whose leg was
shredded from those dogs.”

They believe York City Maybr)

Charles Robertson, who was a |

police officer back then, is the un-
named officer listed in affidavits!
charging the Messersmith brothers|
with Allen’s death. :
Holmes said there was little jus-!
tice for black people then. Bullet'
holes remain near the windows of’
his South Duke Street home, put
there by a carload of young white
men on a joyride.
Police did nothing. !
Wonderin why:  Holines, |
Thomas and Myers said they"
weren’t surprised Allen’s death
wasn’t solved for more than three

decades. Nor were they surprised | 1
when the Messersmith brothers!)

were charged in her murder. But
they don't understand why
Schaad’s death wasn’t solved im-
mediately — he was one of their
own.

“Tt just doesn’t make any sense,
Myers said.

He and the others at the Legion
said they don’t look at Schaad as
part of the old police regime. And,
like Allen, Schaad was an innocent
who was in the wrong place at the
wrong time.

On the scene: Schaad pulled ar-
mored car duty with Cpl. Sherman
Warner and Officer Ronald McCoy
the night he was shot. The men
rode in “Big Al one of three steel- |
plated cars the city borrowed from !
a bank. I

The three were helping firefight- !
ers put out a mattress fire when a'
call came over the radio just after
11 p.m. — a man had been shot off
his motoreycle at South Pershing
and West College avenues. Warner
was driving and McCoy rode shot-
gun, Schaad, in a seat behind
McCoay, had joined the force less

!

»

' than a year before.

A group of men hanging out-

near Sam’s Cafe, at West College

and South Penn, heard the ar--
mored car rumbling down Penn

' Street. It is believed the men

abbed rifles and ran out from

" behind the corner bar as the car,
. made a left onto West College “

Avenue.

From 300 feet away, four young .
plack men took aim and shot at the '
departing vehicle, witnesses have '
gaid. A bullet from a Krag .30-40
rifle gliced through the quarter-

inch rolled steel plating. Schaad
. took the

bullet in his left side; it
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Indictments won’t help, but locals |
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think someone will eventually talk

Charles Thomas ...

has a friend whose leg
was shredded by
police dogs.

Harold Myers ...
says it's a-matter of
time until more comes
out about Schaad.

Bobby Hoimes ...
says.someone will
eventually talk about
Schaad death.

tore a hole through both lungs.
Shrapnel ripped into his legs.

He died two weeks later, leaving .
a widow and a 5-year-old daughter.

“The whole situation was unfor-
tunate, unfortunate that people,
didn’t use more reserve before they
took action,” said Barry Schaad,
the slain patrolman’s brother, |

\
I
I

I

instead on a confrontation between,
Spells and Robert Messersmith — |
hours after Spells’ mother’s house
on Cottage Hill Road was fire-
bombed. . )

Like his peers, Spells said he
doubted recent arrests would influ-
ence anyone to come forward with

. information in Schaad’s death.

during a telephone interview |
Friday night. |

His brother, Barry Schaad said, :
was not one of the officers baiting
the black community.

“He was soft-spoken, calm and
reserved,” he said. '

Barry Schaad said he’s pleased
progress has been made in resolv-
ing Allen’s death and hopeful there | |
will be enough evidence to find his
brothers’ killers.

“Maybe there might be one or
two people that have a little some--
thing,” Schaad said. ‘Maybe the
grand jury’s actions will relieve
fear or doubt and theyll say,
‘Maybe I can do something good.”“

Up to voters: Like most York

County residents who haven’t par-| !

ticipated either as grand jurors or:

witnesses

Schaad doesn’t know what’s come |

of the investigation about his!

brother or whether new evidence !

has surfaced. ‘

Jimmy Spells, who spent about .

an hour testifying before the grand |

| jury, said he was never asked
_about Schaad. Questions focused |

“People in my age group are so
anti-poll.?ice because of all thg rea-
sons we already know of, we've al- |
ready heard,” Spells said Friday
night during a_telephone inter-
view. “I was yanked out of my car, |
shoved up against a wall and had a |
gun pointed at my head. |

“The cops are saying, Move,
nigger, and your dead.’ I don’t have

* that much forgiveness,” he said.

Spells, like Robertson, is a Dem-
ocra%. But he has not — and will

- not — vote for him because he sees |

him as part of that regime. He
" wonders if the impending election,
_in which Robertson seeks a third |

H

term, will affect the invegtiggtion.
“They might be more inclined to ‘

spill their guts if Charlie Robert-!

son wasn't re-elected,” he said. “Li

in the trial, Barry! ' can’t wait to see whether (voters)|
'w111 endorse (him).” o
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~ By WENDI HIMME
. Dispatch/Sunday News LRIGHT :
' _An unnamed police officer:
. whose behavior is detailed
- extensively in  affidavits'
* charging two other men with'
the 1969 slaying of Lillie
Belle Allen himself could face'
. murder charges. ,
*  Two legal experts — one a
; longtime ~criminal attorney |
' recommended by the state
| bar association, and the
| Other a Dickinson School of
| Law professor — were of that |
1 opinion based on the details
 2s spelled out in affidavits of
'probable cause filed against
 former Newberry Street Boys
'members Robert and Arthur
Messersmith.

The affidavit said wit-
nesses testified:

B The officer yelled “white
power” at a Farquhar Park
rally the day before Allen’s
slaying

W He encouraged people
to bring weapons to the
North Newberry Street
neighborhood

M He told some youths “if
I weren’t a cop I'd be leading
commando raids against nig-
. gers in the black neighbor-

hoods.”
.1 And he gave ammuni-
tion to young men on New-

berry Street the day Allen
was killed, and at least one
petson used that ammunition
to fire on Allen’s car.
Long-time criminal attor-
ney Jerald Grimaud of Tunk-
hannock, Wyoming County,
gaid the comments and
action by the police officer in-
dicate he knew the ammuni-
tion would be used to kill

blacks.
“In
agware of

this case; if he was
this mob’s iélltenp to
i t is premeditation,

kil tltllallatt: is dﬁrsj:(—}degree

» Grimaud said. -

‘ murde:'r,l G;s no difference,
. aud said, that the police
Sfﬁcer did not pull the trig-

'

Unnamed officer could
face homicide charge

ger. As an example, he said a
person driving the getaway
car in a store robbery where
the clerk is- killed can face
the same charges as the
person who actually killed
the clerk,

“It's not  uncommon
through conspiracy, that
people face a conviction of
.murder. Conspiracy does not
iexist in a vacuum, it exists
gwith another charge. Con-
spiracy to commit murder
‘has the same statute of limi-
tations as murder, which
means there is no statute of
limitation,” Grimaud said.

Dickinson professor Mi-
ichael Mogill concurred. “Pro-
viding the ammunition or
directing what is to be done
with "the .ammunition, the

mindset that goes along with |

Ithat shows intent.' Even if
he’s not the trigger man, he
can be charged with murder.”
While the ‘officer was not
named in the indictment,
‘witnesses have told The York
!sDispatch/Sunday News a
isimilar story about York
Mayor Charles Robertson,
|'who was.a police officer in
11969.
Robertson,
from the police force after 28
years and is now seeking his
ithird térm as mayor, has ad-
mitted he was once a racist,
and said he yelled “white
power” at the Farquhat Park
vally. | .

He denies he is the officer
described in the affidavit, but
he told WHTM-TV on Friday
that he thought the grand
Jury  investigation would
result in a recommendation
for his arrest. )

Anyone  convicted . of
murder in the case: could.be
sentenced to life in prison,
with no possibility “of parole. .
But the convict .would not
face the death penalty be-
cause the death penalty law
in place at that time was in--
validated by the- U.S. Su-
preme Court in 1972.

who retired !
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Because the murders oc- .
curred in 1969, First Assis-
tant District.  Attorney
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‘Thomas H. Kelley said pros-
ecutors can not seek the
death penalty in the criminal
homicide charges against the
-Messersmiths. He wowa not
discuss possible charges or
sentences for anyone else.
- Robertson’s attorney,
. Richard Oare, said the grand.
.jury indictments mean little
‘as far as a person’s guilt or|
innocence. L
A grand jury recommenda-
tion for indictment means
" the jurors found enough evi-
dence to establish probable
cause a crime was com-
_mitted. . '
t  For a conviction, prosecu-,
tors must establish a crime
- was committed beyond a rea-*,
sonable doubt. i
“The prosecutors pick the!
| witnesses they want to cross-'
examine. ,
. “The witnesses are never
cross-examined. Evidence
goes in if the prosecution de-
cides it goes in, and the pros-
ecution decides what . is
excluded. It’s a totally one-
sided presentation,” Oare
said. .
“There’s a saying — a
* prosecutor can get a grand
. jury to indict a ham sand-
wich.” .
QOare would not say wheth-

—

er he expects Robertson to be 32-year old

charged. But Oare said it will

2>

crime.
“They can make the argu-

“Evidence has dissipated,
and it’s dissipated because of

. rights have.been violated.

Thougli there is not a stat-

ute of limitation for murder, se of
QOare said there are hurdles your lack of prosecution,

tion to win any convictions in me because my due process
to convicting someone for a Oare said.

be difficult for the prosecu- ment that you can’t prosecute

the case.
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"_Ibout the
indictments

After meeting for seven months, a
York Gounty investigative grand jury

i recommended indictments Thursday

against brothers Robert Messersmith,
52, of Montgomery County, and Arthuy
Messersmith, 47, of Red Lion, and nine
others in connection with the July 21,

, 1969 slaying of Lillie Belle Allen.

The two are now being held without
bail in the York County prison on
charges of criminal homicide. No others
have yet been charged.

Prosecutors filed a presentment
from the jury recommending the

' charges in York Common Pleas Court.

lts gontents are being kept secret untit
all those it names are in custody or
freed pending trial. An order by Judge
John C. Uhler says the grand jury is

continuing its investigation.

Still operating under a veil of secre-
¢y, county investigators would not say
when or how many more arrests are
planned, or whether the nine others
recommended for indictment were
involved in the ambush slaying of Allen,
or in the fatal shooting of York City
rookie police officer Henry Schaad
 three nights before.

Allen was slain after her family’s car
 took a wrong tum onto North Newberry
Street, homé to the white gang called
the Newberry Street Boys. More than
100 youths had gathered in the area on
what would be the fifth consecutive -
night of racial violence in York, and
some began firing when Aflen, who
was black, got out of the car.

According to affidavits of probable

| cause filed for the Messersmith broth-
ers, witnesses saw both young men fire
at the car. Testimony also showed

Allen was killed by a rifled shotgun
slug, and that Robert Messersmith had
been seen that day with a 12-gauge
shotgun, loaded with rifled slugs he al-
tered to make them fragment upon
jmpact.

The affidavits also detail, at length,

the actions of an unnamed pelice offi-
'cer who yelled “white power” at a Far-
quhar Park rally the day before Allen’s
slaying; encouraged people to bring
weapons to the North Newberry Sireet
neighborhood; and told some youths “if
| weren't a cop I'd be leading comman-
| do raids against niggers in the black
neighborhood.”

The officer also allegedly gave am-
munition fo young men on‘Newbeny
Straet the day Allen was killed, and at
least one person used that ammunition

o fire on Allen’s car, the affidavits said.

e i ——Tn,
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While the SHitar wers ot TR, ]
witnesses have told The York
Dispatcty/Sunday News a similar story
about York Mayor Charles Roberison,
who was a police officer in 1969,

About the
investigation

For some 30 years, police investiga
tions into the homicides of Lillie Belle
Allen and Henry Schaad lay dormant.
Law enforcement officials in York said
they had suspects, but never enough
evidence to bring charges.

But the York County District Attor-
ney’s office refocused its efforis on the
cases in December 1999, after receiv-
ing new information that began surfac-t
ing after The York Dispatch/Sunday
News published a week-long series on
the 80th anniversary of the riots.

Evidence they collected included an |
audiotape recotded by a former gang
member who committed suicide in April
2000 after speaking fo police, Others
believe another ex-gang member pro-
vided evidence shortly before he suc-
cumbed 1o cancer.

Last June, District Attorney Stan
Rebert announced he wanted an inves- |
tigative grand jury fo take a look at the
Allen and Schaad cases.

In late September, the 23-member
panel began hearing testimony iwo
days a month, sequestered in the
basement of the county govermnment
building at One Marketway West.

About the victims

Lillie Belle Alien, 27, was a preach-
er's daughter from Aiken, S.C., who
had stopped in York in July 1969 with
her parents and two children to visit her ;
' sister and brother-in-law, Hattie and
Murray Dickson. The family had been
on the way io buy groceties for dinner
when her sister made a wrong tum into |
the all-white neighborhood at North 2

e A st e A RN,

Newberry Street and Gay Avenue,

Ailen got out to drive the car, and died |
in a hail of gunfire. Dicksonand a f
second sister, Gladys Oden, still ive in |
Yotk. i
Three days earlier, white rockie Pa-
trolman Henry Schaad, 22, was fatally |
wounded as he and two other officers 1
rode in an armored vehicle across the
College Avenue bridge.

e e

vy

{Indicale page, name of
newspaper, cily and slale.)

Classilication:
Submitling Office:

THE YORK DISPATCH

48

York, Pennsylvania
T Dale: L/ ﬂq 0/
Edition: Daily

Title: M#f %5 /ﬁw“‘

Cha:::cler: ﬁgé)’/] 7ﬂ/'/’ 90508

HRA

Indexing:

r&ﬁﬁf w"a'é"ﬁ’V\ﬁﬂi'é”lﬁ’PéTiﬁ'Hl”g‘lf"“
grad who followed his father into po-
licework, He died 14 days later in the
York Hospital intensive care unit, leav-
ing a wife, now Sharon Schaad Howe, |
and a young daughter, now Sonja
Schaad Gilmore.

Four gunmen are believed to fiave
shot at the vehicle from the area of
Penn Strest.and College Avenue, in a ‘

&&ominantly biack neighborhood.
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By WEND!
HIMMELRIGHT
Dispatch/Sunday News
York City Mayor
Charles  Robertson
tried to avoid testify-
ing before an investi-
gative grand jury by
invoking the Fifth
Amendment, The
York Dispatch/
Sunday News has
learned through
court documents and
an interview with
Robertson’s attorney.

t
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Robertson wanted ——
to plead the Fifth

P mystery about “Sub- :
= poena 35” by saying; (
that he has only one s
client involved in the; &
grand jury investiga- —————
Al tion into a pair of

" 1969 riot slayings.

Court records show
~ that Oare, on hehalf :
Robertson ... of its recipient, tried
denies-he’s to quash “Subpoena |
the officer 35,” and file a peti-
described in tion invoking the
the affidavit. Fifth  Amendment,

e aifidavl which protects indi-

viduals from bemg forced to :

York attorney Richard
Oare ended the months-long prov1de testlmony that mJght tend

to incriminate them.
Court records show that, after a’
hearing, Oare’s motion was denied.
After seven months of testimony, a
ccounty grand jury recommended
'the indictment last Thursday of |
’brothers Robert and Arthur Mes- |
sersmith — along with nine other
|unnamed suspects — who court
'documents say are responsible for
some of the violence that shook the !
city for 10 days in. 1969.
The Messersmiths were charged
with criminal homicide and com-! “
mitted to York County Prison with- -
out bail. County investigators will |
not say if more arrests are planned !
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Buf Oare declined to say when.

grand jury and whether he invoked
his Fifth Amendment rights for
any particular questions.

| An “unnamed police officer”
known to the grand jury is impli-
cated in the Messersmith charging
documents as providing ammuni- -
tion to white gang members who

fired on victim Lillie Belle Allen’s
car. The officer allegedly attended
a white gang rally at Farquhar

Park the night before the shooting,

where he raised his arms and.
yelled “white power.”

Accordihg to charging docu-.
ments, the same officer told the:
crowd to take any weapons they
had to Newberry Street and told a
group of white gang members that,
“f I wasn't a cop, I would be lead-
ing commando raids against the

niggers in the black neighbor-
hoods.” ’

The police officer is not named
in the affidavits that accompany
the charges against the Messer-
smiths. But witnesses who talked
with The York Dispatch/Sunday
News and testified before a grand
jury told the newspaper a similar
story about Robertson.

! Robertson admits he yelled
. “white power” at the rally but
denies he is the officer described in
the affidavit, and said Friday that
i ‘T have no knowledge within
' myself to remember or have any
knowledge of any guns or ammuni-
b tion.”
Robertson also said he fears he
. will be charged and has since au-
thorized Oare as his spokesman on
the matter.

a YMCA youth counselor in 1969;
Jimmy Spells, whose parents’
- North Newberry Street home was
firebombed during the riots, alle-
gedly by the Newberry Street Boys;
Bobby Messersmith, the only

. (aggravated assault) during the
| riots and the leader of the New-

- Allen’s younger sister and an eye-
witness to her killing; and Barry .
Bloss, a city patrolman in 1969

Other witnesses whose appear- |
ances before the grand jury have |
been confirmed are: Robert Stoner,

person convicted of a serious crime

| berry Street Boys; Hattie Dickson, -

(now the York County coroner.) )s

Detectives, prosecutors. and
‘ court personnel are under a gag|
| odepissued by Ubler.

Robert “Hump” Stoner, now E

Robertson appeared before the 'gyard at the York County Prison,
.Isaid last year that a detective told}

him they expected to call about 78|
people.

Subpoena No. 5 made a similar
request as Oare’s, to quash the
subpoena and invoke Fifth Amend-
ment rights, but was turned down|
after a September hearing. i

TIMOTHY J. MOERSH PHOTO

York Mayor Charles Robertson talks with Tom Foley, president of the United Way of Pennsylvania,

yesterday at Kiwanis Lake shortly before a memorial for workers killed in York.
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Guns, booze and violence weljél

“the rule — before a change

By MIKE HOOVER
Dispatch/Sunday News
Living in a small, rented
row house in an almost ex-
clusively white, ~working-
class neighborhood near Far-
\ quhar Park, Robert and
Arthur Messersmith grew up
1 in a tough home with an abu-
sive, racist, alcoholic father.
Their lives — as told by
Robert “Bobby” Messersmith,

s miliar with the Messersmith
‘ family — were filled with
\ crime and violence, drugs
L | and alcohol, failed relation-
ships and the deaths of

friends and family.
But in the three decades

(briety.
and God.

as at his Perkiomenville,
'Montgomery County, home
Thursday with his wife of 12

g

years, Deborah, when police
? Varrested him for the July 21,
{1969, murder of Lillie Belle
|Allen, a 27-year-old black
jwoman killed in the fifth day
'of rioting.
Artie Messersmith, 47,
was doing yard work at his
Red Lion home with his girl-
friend of 16 years, Jeanne
lOwens, when he was taken
into custody.

the Messersmith
both charged with

! homicide, remain in York
| 'County Prison without bail.

Coming so long after the
riots, news of the arrests sur-
prised some. Bub those famil-
iar with the Messersmiths
weren't surprised to learn
they were the ones charged.

Family influence: Central
in the lives of Bobby and

Messersmith, a machinis
who spent his days
metal at Allis-
' Fluid Products.
Returning home from

work, John would turn to the

court records and those fa-’

Bobby Messersmith, 52, ’

Artie was their father, John
inist ' other from William Penn

Cmg !

.,
g

Date

But at the same time
Bobby said, their rebellious- -
ness was tough on their

father and he doesn’t bear .

_any grudges.

“He (dad) loved us,” he .
said, “Our family had & lof of aracter:

%mh father;sbfootsteps of alco-
olism and be inking
h c%ﬂd. gan drinking as |
ventually, his two -
er brothers, Artie andyl(ildlink%
would follow the same pat};
to alechol — and later to
drugs and failed relation-
ships. They also followed -
g:b};)}im into a \;lvhite street
ng known as the Ni “
Street Boys. ewberry

Bobby became a leader of —

the gang because of his repu- |.
tation as a tough street fight-

ser and his ability to bully and |,
persuade people. He was |
known for his temper and vi-

olent rages; his brother, |
Mike, was the thinker and
Artie was the antagonist who |
would start trouble, knowing |
his brothers were there to |
‘back him up.

Mess with one Messer- "
smith brother, mess with'
them all and face the wrath
of the NSBs, said Fred “Ster-
ling” Flickinger, a former
NSB member.

The Messersmiths’ wood-
paneled home at 229'N. New-
berry St. was a gathering
place for NSBs who would
talk for hours in the back
yard or meet on the frony
porch. From the yard, they
would walk to the North End!
Cigar Shop at Newberry
Street and Gay Avenue, a
street-corner hangout just

yards away from where Alleq
was killed. }
The NSBs knew each

Senior High School and the
neighborhood. They would
‘party together, play pinball
and look out for one another.,

‘bottle and use a strap on his .

sons, Bobby recalled in an in-

_terview last vear. .
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Most loved tor—
| fish and hunt,,
| particularly |
small game
near Far-
quhar Park
and the then-,
undeveloped
fields in the|
northeast sec-'

Artie

tion of the.

Messersmith “7; é
doi ith “Bobby

.. Was doing  was a hell of
yard work at g shot,” Flick- .
home when  inger recalls. '
he was ar- Bad repu-
rested. tation: Long
) before the-
| riots, the Messersmith home'
was known to police. !
Then-patrolman  Dennis.

- McMaster remembers dJohn,

as an “abusive drunk” and a
“real racist,” and his sons as:
a “bunch of hellions.” Former
city police Sgt. Nevin “Jigs”

. Barley recalls the Messer-

smiths hated blacks.

13
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" “The Messersmiths wefé a |

. law came at 14 when he was

+ arrested for public drunken-
. ness and later for resisting

| ence of a heavy-drinking,

\ little bit of white scum. Most'

'of them (the NSBs) were,”|
lBarley said.

i When the riots came in
Ithe summer of 1969, the
:NSBs were viewed by some
, as provoking the racial vio-
‘lence and by others as protec-
‘tors of the Newberry Street

‘neighborhood. At the center

- of the gang was Bobby.

' “Bobby Messersmith was
' the spokesman. He could get .
those guys to do things. Bob
.was the person they looked

up to the most,” said Robert

Stoner, a youth outreach'

worker at the York YMCA!:

who grew up in the Newberry
Street neighborhood. ‘

Bobby talked about his
role as a protector of the
neighborhood from “intrud-:

| ers,” leading the NSBs in!

“racial fights,” according to a!
July 1, 1970, medical exami-.
nation by Dr. Emil Herman,
completed as part of a pre-
sentencing report for what
was described by police as
firing the first gunshot that
started the riots.

Jail time: Until Thurs-
day’s arrests, Bobby was the
only person to do jail time for
riot-related charges. He was
convicted of aggravated as-
sault and battery for the July
17, 1969, shooting of two
blacks, Taka Nii Sweeney
and John Washington. Judge

George Adkins sentenced
Bobby to 9 to 23 months in

prison. ]

In the report, Herman de-
scribes Bobby as a young
man with a traumatic child-
hood as a result of the pres-

abusive father.
His first brush with the

charged with the indecent as-
sault of a 6-year-old girl.
When he was 19, Bobby was

arrest. He was sentenced to a
second 9-to-23-month term
on Nov. 6, 1972, for shooting
Charles W. Keener Jr., whom
he mistook for a member of a
rival gang known as the Dog-'
towners. Messersmith said,

! the rival white gang tried to,

kill him at the Overbrook Inn!
in West Manchester Town-:

P H

' lead a decent life and ;'efrain

l aééb;ivﬁedﬁi)g@jis(&;eniotion-f

ally unstable” with difficulty|

| controlling his impulses. I

Bobby . acknowledged to|

his life together. While .in \
prison for the Sweeney shoot-
ing, he learned that his girl- [i
friend was three months!
pregnant. He wanted to|
marry her, get a good job, \1
from drinking,. ]

Herman didn't question
his sincerity.

“While based on profes-
sional experience, one must
take such promises with a

ain of salt, the fact remains
that he does not seem to be
or vicious,” Herman
wrote. .

Messersmith recently said
his girlfriend at the time
“qumped” him while he was .
in prison, and he wasn’t sure|
if the child was his. ‘

" Followed dad: After grad-
uating from York High in;
1968, Bobby tried to follow in'
his father’s footsteps at Allis-
Chalmers. But he quit be-
cause, he said, he couldn’
work indoors and went to
work for city parks, a job he
left and couldn’t get back
after the riots.

“They told me at city hall

B

they would not hire me until |

after my sentence on account

~ of politics or something,” he
' told Adkins when he was

1

sentenced for the Sweeney
shooting.

The thought of prison took
its toll on Bobby Messer-
smith, who according to his

© attorney at the time was on
. the verge of & nervous break-
down. Norman
" pleaded with Adkins that he
“feared for (Bobby’s) sanity.”
Adkins ordered mental
health counseling and that
Messersmith serve some of
| his time at the Harrishurg
| and Norristown state hospit-
- als, according to court docu-
ments.
; After being paroled for the
| Keener shooting in 1975 from
, Norristown, Bobby Messer-
' smith said he did not want to
return to “racially divided”

!
|
¢ York, a “cesspool” of a city he
{

once called home.
While in Norristown, he

Petow |

)ﬁw‘#/ww’

Jud bl

erman that he had to get|zella wancy, wnom n€' nas |

not seen in years, according |
to court records. Their
mother, Freda Marlyn Silver,
obtained permanent custody
of the children, according to .
an Aug. 3, 1981, court order
issued in = Montgomery
County.

Defining moments: Bobby
Messersmith had been drink-
ing since before he was a
teen, but he said he sobered
up after two life-defining mo-
ments in 1987 and 1988. g

First, he met his wife of 12
years, Deborah, and settled .
down in Perkiomenville,
where they later raised two
children.

Next, his younger brother,
Mike, committed suicide on
Jan. 22, 1988, after long bat- !
tles with drugs and alcohol,
as well as a previous suicide -
attempt on Oct. 28, 1986.

After a long ride in the
night, Deb and Bobby Mes-
sersmith arrived at York
Hospital where they learned
from Artie that Mike was in .
surgery for a gunshot to the
chest. He learned moments |
later that Mike had died on
the operating table at 5:25

.m.,

Bobby said he loved his
brothers. He said he went to
jail for.Mike, who he claims ,
shot, Taka Nii Sweeney and .

, John Washington on the firsti
. day of rioting. . .
i Mike’s suicide “got me
'sober,” said Bobby, who
hasn’t had a job since a disa-
bling car accident in 1995. |
Bobby said he hasn’t had|
trouble with the law since he
married, a claim supporte
by a criminal records chec
. in Montgomery County and
+his neighbors who say. he
' leads a quiet life on a dead-
|, end street in Perkiomenville. .
Clean record: Similarly,
Artie has had a clean crimiy
nal record since 1993 when]
'he was sentenced to one
| year’s probation for defraud-
. ing public welfare. ;
f\‘ In his early years, he
' pleaded guilty to aggravatedj
| agsault in 1976 and was sen-|

i

' ship by putting a knife to his’ fath_ered a son, Michael ‘
hroat, -Dorian, and a daughter, Mar- |

Tn the evaluation, Herman.
_ -



tenced to 9 to 23 months in|
jail, He also had a record of:
resisting arrest, simple as-
' sault and possession of mari-
{ juana. \
| Those who know Artie
said his life began to change
when he met his girlfriend of'
16 years, Jeanne Owens. But
the true turning point, they
say, is when Artie turned to
religion.
+ Just after a grand jury
was announced in June 2000
‘r to investigate the riot, Artie
moved from the Newberry
Street neighborhcod where
he grew up to a remote home
in the Red Lion area where;
he lives with Owens. \‘

The brothers kept in con-|
tact over the years. They!
would get together when:
Bobby returned to York,
largely, he says, to attend fu-
nerals of old friends, includ-
ing former NSBs and his
father, John, who died Sept.
16, 1985. . J

In the midst of the police!
investigation = of _ Allen’s|
murder, Artie called his older |
brother to warn him that he
was interviewed by two de-
| tectives_and to prepare the
. family, Bobby said.

Police long suspected the
| Messersmiths were involved
. in the Allen shooting but had
1 difficulty building a case be-
‘\ cause people remained loyal

and silent, according to
Thomas V. Chatman, a
former police officer who
investigated the case.

Bobby remembers while
he was being held in prison
back in 1970 for the Sweeney
shooting, he was told he was
a suspect in the Allen case.

But Bobby said he wasn’t
responsible for either shoot-’
ing.
“T took the f—ing fall for

shut the spooks up in York,”
J he said last year.
| And he said he suspected
' the same thing would happen.
in the Allen shooting.
“Blame it on my f—ing
| ass again,” he said. ‘

my kid brother (Mike) and to-

FILE PHOTO

th’s wife, Deb, leave the

in October.

i
before the grand jury i

ing

ymos, Bobby Messersmith and Messersm

York County 999nhouse after test

Attorney Peter Sol
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REPORTING ?ICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN / DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
Philaﬁc}_elphia L Rhidadelphi 08/24/2001 | 05/02/2001 - 08/24/200i )
TIT E;C)’ CASE REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
yCHANGED "/\( TN b6
TROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON, | SA ks b7C
YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT, ) CHARACTER OF CASE
YORK, PENNSYLVANIA;
LLIE BELLE ALLEN (DECEASED) -VICTIM ZOLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE
REFERENCE
Philadelphia FD-610, dated 01/29/2001; and report,
dated 05/02/2001
~P* -
ENCI,OSURES
ENCLOSED FOR THE BUREAU
Enclosed for the Bureau are the following:
1. For each of nine defendants, an Arrest Booking Form
from the YORK COUNTY DETECTIVE BUREAU and a Criminal Complaint,
including the Affidavit of Probable Cause for each defendant.
7
SPECIAL AGENT
AP /M IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW
COPIES E:
ZMg?lreau (Enc.4)
1 - DOJ, Civil Rights Division
@ - Philadelphia (282A-PH-90508)
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2. A copy of a letter, dated 06/07/2001, from the
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY'S OFFICE, Middle District of Pennsylvania
(MDPA) , to the Chairperson of the PENNSYLVANIA LEGISLATIVE BLACK
CAUCUS, containing a Prosecutive Opinion by the United States
Attorney. :

3. Copies of newspaper articles from the PATRIOT NEWS,
the Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, daily newspaper, including the
following dates: 05/17/2001; 05/18/2001; 05/25/2001; 06/26/2001;
06/27/2001; and 07/24/2001.

4. Copies of articles from the YORK DISPATCH, dated as
follows: 06/01/2001; 06/5/2001; 06/28/2001; 07/10/2001;
07/24/2001.

LEAD

PHITADELPHIA

AT HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANTA

1. Will continue to monitor local prosecution under
the guidelines of a "Pending Inactive" matter.

ADMINISTRATIVE

Title marked "Changed" to identify subject law
enforcement officer. Title previously carried as "Unknown
Subject."

B
Cover Page
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Report of:
Date:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI.
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Case ID #:

® \ o

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Department of Justice #144-63-800
Attention:

SA | offic:. Philadelphia
August 21, 2001

282A-PH-90508

"CHANGED" ;

PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON,
YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT,

YORK, PENNSYLVANTIA;

LILLIE BELLE ALLEN (DECEASED) - VICTIM

COLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

The York County District Attorney took action on the
presentment returned by the York County, Pennsylvania,
Grand Jury, that recommended charges against eleven
individuals in connection with the captioned matter. The
York County District Attorney, through the County
Detectives Office, has charged nine of the eleven
individuals named in the presentment. Each of the
defendants was arrested and provided an initial
appearance. A preliminary hearing in this matter for all
nine defendants was heard during the week of 06/25/2001,
and a formal arraignment for all nine defendants took
place on 07/23/2001. Captioned subject, ROBERTSON, was

arrested and provided an initial appearance on 05/17/2001.

A preliminary hearing for ROBERTSON took place during the
week of 06/25/2001 with a finding by the presiding York
County Judge that a prima facie case had been presented
and that the matter would be bound over for trial. Formal
arraignment for subject ROBERTSON occurred on 07/23/2001
and a preliminary date set for pre-trial motions in
ROBERTSON's case was set initially for 08/24/2001.

On 08/24/2001, the YORK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S
OFFICE advised that the Pre-Trial Motions, particularly
"Delayed Prosecution" Motions, have been scheduled for
09/26/2001. These Pre-Trial Motions will be heard by a
Judge appointed from another county, coordinated with the
PENNSYLVANIA ATTORNEY GENERAL'S OFFICE, specifics not yet
determined.

and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.

It is the property of the FBI
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YORK COUNTY DETECTIVES OFFICE
The following investigation was conducted by Special
Agent| pt York, Pennsylvania, on August 2, 2001:

| |York County
provided the following information in connection with the
investigation into the racially motivated homicide of LILLIE
BELLE ALLEN in 1969:

| |provided copies of the YORK COUNTY
DETECTIVE BUREAU arrest booking forms for each of _the nine

defendants charged in this matter. Additionally,

provided the specific criminal complaint and affidavit in
connection with each defendant. The following is a list of the
nine charged individuals, inclu%}ng descriptive data:

1] |
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8. CHARLES HENDR OBERTSON, white male, Date of Birth
April 12, 1934, Social Secdrity Account Number 162-26-5606,
address 828 West Princess Street,, York, Pennsylvania.

9

| ladviged that defendants I

Legal proceedings are scheduled rfor

August 24, 2001 to begin hearings into the "delayed %pggecytion“
motions filed in behalf of the other six defendants.

advised that the investigation appears to indicate that the focus

of the prosecution would be|

advised that active investigation
continues as additional witnesses are being sought, located and
interviewed. Exhumation orders for both LILLIE BELLE ALLEN and
Police Officer HENRY C. SCHADD, have been obtained and autopsies
are being conducted. Final reports have not been received but
additional metal fragments have been obtained in both autopsies.

| | opined that the two remaining
individuals that were included in the Grand Jury's presentment,
but have not been charged, will likely not be charged, unless the
continuing investigation uncovers additional evidence against
those two individuals.

4%
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(Indicate ;Sage,

York mayor,
who rose from
police force,
now faces

Highlights

of Charles H.
Robertson’s
career: -

1952: Graduates from
William Penn Senlor
High School.

1956-58: Army, sérves
as medic. .

1962: Joins the York .
City Police Department.

1969: Raclal tension *
occurs In York.: Henry |
C. Schaad, 22, a white. -
rookie patrolman, is

armored vehicle near
the College Avenue
Bridde on July 18. He
dies 14 days later.

Rival white gangs rally”
at a city park where |
Robertson yells “white
power.” An unnamed
potice officer also sup-.
plies ammunition to the
gangs.

1969: Some of that
ammunition is used to
kill Lillie Belle Allen, a
South Carolina woman
who was visiting her sis-
ter in York on July 21.

1970: In March, U.S.
District Court Judge

Harrisburg dismisses a
civil rights tawsuit filed
soon after the riots but
criticizes Robertson’s

behavior at the rally as

hensible.”

murder charge’ i}

criticatly wounded in an - .
. $100,000 bail.

William J. Nedlon in .. .

repre-
“gutrageous and rep {

Edition: ':)

Title: 1

o

Haunted by riots of 1969

¥ The i/lctlm:
s Lillie Belle *
! Allen

National
Guardsmen
patrol York
streets in 1969.

_ Also facing charges --

Robert Messersmith, 52, who
lives near Philadelphid, was a for-

. Newberry Street Boys.

' Messersmith was convicted in
October 1969 in the shooting of two
black youiths just four days befoi'é

“Bellé Allen’s death. He was placed in York County
Prison and released Tuesday after pos{ing

Artinir ] Messersmith, 47, of Red :
:3g]. Lion, York Courity, the younger '
-brother of Robert Messersmith

was also a meémber of the .
Newberry Street Boys. He was
4. arrested and charged with homi-
cide'in Allen’s shooting the same
day his brother was arrested. He
was released from prison after postmg $100 000
bail.

Gregory NefT , 53, of the 600 block
of Courtland Street York, was a
former member bf the white gang
the Girarders. He was arrested:
May 9 and charged with homicide
in Allen’: S death. He was released
000 ball

of South Pihe, Street was also a

membet of the gang, the Girardets.
He'wds charged with homicide in
.Allen’s death. He testified before
the grand jury that he had firéd.on

-Allen’s cat, He-was released after
posting $100,000 bail.

mer member of the white gang, the .

WU . Allen’s homicide. Hé was drrested © $#i% UL
LT ind charged with homicide on April 95 in Lillfe * . '2000: A grand jury

. bégins hearing testimo-

" Ing deaths. Robertson

newspaper, city and sta

Date é

name of

o chit by pect

1969
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1993: Wins the York
mayoral election.

1997: Wins re-election
as mayor.
"1988: York County dis-

trict attorney wants to
teopen the unsolved

- homicldes of Belle and

}'Schégd.

ny i the 1969 shoot-

.questions the district
attorney’s timing, say-
,Ing thé reopening of

» ‘the; unsolved homicides
ls polltlcal

2001. Aprll 26: Two
brothers, Arthur, 47,
and Robert -
Messersmith, 52, for-
mer members of the |
Newberry Street Boys '
gang, are arrested and
charged with homicide
in Belle's death.

N ~ '.2061, May 9: Gregory

Harry Neff, 53, and
Rick Lynn Knouse, 48,

Y n former members of the
e wGlrarders gang, are

charged with homicide
*in Belle's death.

2001, May 15:
Robertson wins the
Dernocratic nomination
“for mayor over city
councilman Ray *
Crenshaw by less than
100 votes.

A WD -5
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1975-85: Serves on the
YorK City School Board. .

1988: Gains rank of ser-
geant in the police
department. Nire

.months later, he returns

to being a patrolman so
he could get back to
walking the beat.

1992: Retires from the
force after 29 years and
six months of service. He
says the summer riots
were the only time he
ever fired his service
weapon. “People were

shooting at us, throwing .

bottles, rocks and fire-
bombs at us, and we

wete shooting back.” he '

said. “That’s the only
time I-fired a shot while

on the job.”

2.

3’ charged.w

William C. Ritter, 50, of the 1900
‘block of North Sherman Street,
York, was arrested Wednesday.and

ith homicide in the

shooting death of Allen. Ritter, a-
long-time employee at York’s

S | Harley-Davidson plant, testified

Ritter testified that he th
his entire clip at the car.

Clarence

eithera .2

i -pistol at Allen’s car.
|

that he shot a .22-caliber rifle
loaded with a clip of six bullets at Allen’s car. '

ought he had unloaded
He was placed i York

County Prison on $100,000 bail. ’

Lutzinger; 48, was

4 chdrged yesterday with homicide
 in the shooting death, He is serv- -
ing a sentence of 1 to 2 years at the
State Correctional Institution at
Camp Hill on a retail theft corvie-,
tion. He testified that he fired.

2-caliber or .25-caliber -

- 2001, May 16: William
‘C. Ritter, 50, of York,
, becomes the fifth man

.death. Standing.on the
"media he'll be arrested
‘the next day oh a homis
* cide charge.

- 2004, May 17:

. on a homicide charge

. hary hearing was set fo;
"mah, Clarence Lutzingej

" 'murder.

)2
5 ikloi
ARQAPH 90-D8

arrested in Allen’s:

steps of City Hall,
Robertson tells the

Robertson was arrested;

and released on
$50,000 bail. A prelifni-

May 25. Also, a sixth

was arrested in Al!en's
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THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

Text of an affidavit of proba-
ble, cause signed by a detective
in the case of York Mayor Char-
lie Robertson, charged with
homicide in the shooting death
of a black woman during race
riots.in 1969:

On July 21, 1969, at approxi-

 Griven by Hattie Dickson
turned from Philadelphia
Street onto N. Newberry Street,
It proceeded north. into an area
populated by gangs of young
white males, many armed with
guns. The vehicle was occupied
by Diékson, -her husband Mur-
ray Dickson, her father the
Rev, James Mosley, her mothér
Beatrice Mosley-and her sister;
Lillie Belle Allen.

As they approached’ the rail-
road tracks at Newberry and
Gay, Dickson saw that many of
thé white youths on the streét
had guns. She panicked and

'railroad tracks in an effort to

turn the car around and.get out
of the area. The car stalled. ...

Lillie Belle Allen, who was sit-

ting in the rear passenger seat,
directly behind Dickson told
Dickson that she’d take over
.] the driving. Allen got out of the
ear and was fired upon. She
| was struck with a bullet in the
right side of her chest. She died’
a short time later at York Hos-
pital.as a result of the gunshot
wound she had suffered.

In December of 1999, in re-
sponse to new information
learned, an investigation began
v into the-homicides of Lillie

}lice Officer Henry Schaad.. In
" September of 2000 a Grand Jury,

mony in both cases. The Grand

lowing general findings. of fact
were supported by the record:

Dr. Thomas Burkart, the: pa-~
thologist who performed the au-

fied before the Grand Jury that,

non jacketed bullet, that-er-

and exited her back. After en~
tering her body the large-non-
jacketed bullet fragmentedf The

mately 9:00.PM, a 1961 Cadillac |

made a sharp:left turn on the |-

| Belle Allen and York City Po-.

was. empanelled to hear- testi- .

Jury determined that the fol-.

topsy of Lillie-Belle Allen; testi: |

Allen died -as.a.result of a-gur: '
shot wound, caused:by a-largey

tered the right side of-her-chest -

‘manner of death was homicide.

The largest fragment recov-
ered from the wound track in
Allen’s body was analyzed at
the Pennsylvania State Police
Laboratory. The fragment was
identified as a fragment of a ri-
fled shotgun slug.

%* % %

The murder of Allen occurred
in the midst-of the York Riots.
One of the major events, which
ignited the ridts, was the shoot-
ing of Taka:Ni Sweeney-on July
17th. 1969:: ‘Sweeney was shot
-with: a‘rifled.shotgun slug: In
August: of 1969- Robert.Nelson
Messersmith. was' arrested for
.shooting:Sweeney, He was later-

sentence for:that shooting. ....
- . This;rioting led, ultimately to

‘Fthe shodtingof Police. Officer

-Henry: Schaad on July 18, 1969.

‘result
! " “Luis..Mercado,. who. lived in
‘the-area of Newberry and-Gay
at the time that Allen was
killed, testified before the
Grand Jury that during the
course of the riots, there was al-
ways something going on-North
Newberry Street. Kids were
running up and. down the
streets with molotov cocktails
and guns. ... N

Witnesses testified under
oath before the Grand Jury. that

f the, injuries. He. sus-

hood white youth “gangs,” that

because of the racial problems.
On July 20, 1969 the day before
Allen’s killing, these gangs met
at Farguar Park for a rally.
.Charles Robertson, who. was'
Police- Officer- at the time; was
present at this rally. According,
to Fred Flickinger, Dr; Roger
Kinard, Greg Neff, Stewart Al-
dinger and. Tom Smith who tes-
‘tified under oath -before ‘the
Grand.Jury and were present'at
the fally, a police. officer; who
| Flickinger, Neff and Aldiriger-
. identified as:Robertson, ad-

! among. other things, séream
“white: power” and, tell atten-
dants at the rally to take any
weapons, that they had to New-
.berry Street. Fred Flickinger

convicted, and. served'a prison” .

Or. Angust 15, 1969:he died as a .

as rioting continued, neighbor-.

ly at odds, united ,
were formerly ; [ James' Spells and Robert Mes- !

*James Spells told Robert Mes-:

| dressed: the’ crowd' and did,.

— Robertson spoke of ‘commando oo t1obirg

raids’ against blacks, affidavit say

testified under oath before the
Grand Jury that Robertson was
clearly not trying to calm the-
group; in fact he was “doing the
exact opposite.”"

Flickinger testified under

-oath.before the Grand Jury that
.on Sunday, July 20th 1989,

around the time of the rally in
Farquar Park, Charles Rob-
ertson-addressed a. group of be-
tweensix to eight yquths, most- ,
1y NSBs, across from: the cigar |
store at Newberry and Gay. At |
that time Robertson-stated that |
“if T weren’t a cop, I would be

'leading commando traids

against niggers' in the black
neighborhoods.” | =7 -
‘ ’ Aj‘ . %* %% T

After-the rally, some NSBs, ia-

,cluding Arthur Messersmith
. talKed .about firebombing-Sher-

man:Spells’ mother’s house  on
Cottage- Hill’ Road.. Greg: Neff

© testified: under-oath-before the

Grand'Jirry that Robert:Messer-
smith' began making. plans to
lead “raids” into. the black
neighborhoods. s . . ’
Jaines Spells related to the

Grand Jury that in the late
hours of July 20th into July
21st his mother and stepfather’s
house at-284 Cottage Hill Rd
was firebombed. .... As a result
of the firebombing, James
Spells went to Newberry Street”
in the afternoon of July 21st to
find out who had been responsi-
ble for the firebombing. There
was a confrontation between

sersmith in front of the Messer-
smith’s residence. Witnesses
testified under oath before the
Grand .Jury that at the time of
the confrontation, Robert Mes-
sersmith was on his front
porch, armed with a. shotgun.

sersmith that-he was going t6 |
hold Messersmith’ responsible |
for his (Spells’): mother’s well
being and if anything did hap-
pen, he'd be back.. At the time
of this confrontation James
Spells and his brother Sherman
were-in a vehicle similar to-the
one that Lillie Belle Allen was
in at the time she was killed.-
Rick Knouse testified under:
oath before the Grand Jury that
during the day of July 21st the
day that Allen was killed and
possibly -the night of July 20th,
Robertson provided ammuni-

‘(fndicate page, name of
newspaper, city and state.

tdition:
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Indexing:

tion to young men who were on
Newberry Street. Knouse testi-
fied that he had a 30.06 rifle and
that Robertson gave him 30.06
ammunition and told him to
“kill as many niggers as you
can.” Knouse admitted that he

.used the ammunition provided

by Robertson to fire upon the
vehicle occupied by Lillie Belle
Allen, and ‘which, in the end;
resulted in her death.
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Charles Robertson testified un-

.der oath before the Grand Jury.

that after Officer Henry Schdad
was shot he borrowed a 30.06 ri-
fle- and ammunition from his
neighbor and took it on. patrol
with him, 3

-.Dennis McMaster, who was a
York City Police Officer in-1969,
testified under oath before. the
Grand Jury that he witnessed
Robertson provide 80.06 ammu-
nition to. one of the Messér-
smith brothers: ... . . .
At about 9:15°PM on July 21st,
1969 the vehicle carpying Lillie
Belle Allén came notth on Ne\y-
berry Street from Philadelphia
Street. At this same time, upon
seeing the vehicle,. witnesses
testified’ that “here come the
niggers,” “it's niggers and they
have guns” and “rthere is a car-
load of niggers coming up the
street” were yelled from sub-
jects on Newberry Street. As
the car turned gnd stalled on
the railroad tracks, Lillie Belle
Allen ‘exited thé vehicle, ‘Wit
nesses who testified before the
Grand Jury, stated that when
Allen got out of the vehicle,
shots were immediately fired
upon her. Additionally, no
shots.were fired-from, nor were
any guns present in the vehicle
in which Allen was the occu-
pant. Nothing was in Allen’s
hands even though someone.on
the street yelled, “she has a
gun.” Moreover, -a witness to

the shooting testified that Allen
was waving her arins above her
head and yelled “dori’t shoot”
before the subjects an the street
"began firing. .... -

. Robert Stoner; who' testi-
fied under oath before ‘the
Grand Jury, stated’ that after
-the- shooting "stopped he went
out on to Newberry Street. He
saw the’car on the tracks and
Allen on the street, He stated
then that he knew she was

; dead. He saw a poliee officer at- ;
| tending to the people in the car, :
| He saw another police officer, |

Charlie Robertson, talking to
" Rick-Knouse juist ‘east of the in-
tersection ‘of Newberry ‘and
Gay. Knouse had a rifle in his
hands. Stoner also testified that
he saw Bob Messersmith, Artie
Messersmith and Greg Neff
standing: about 10 yards away |

' from Robertson and Knouse.(

Each.one ‘of them had guns in

- their hands. ....

As to Charles Robertson spe: |
cifically, the Grand Jury found
that based upon the evidence,
the record supported'a probable
cause finding.that Charles Rob-
ertson acted'as an accessory be-
fore the fact in the crime of
first degree murder in the
death of Lillie.Belle Allen! -

Based upon the information«f

‘stated-above, T am requesting |

that a warrant be issued for the

arrest of Charles "Robertson,

charging him with' Criminal.

Homicide in connection with

the death of Lillie Belle Allen,
Det. Rodney George . -
May 17,2001 -
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~of prov1d1ng bullets to gang
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before black woman'’s death

BY PETE SHELLEM
OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

YORK — York Mayor Charlie
, Robertson was accused yester-
day of handing bullets to a
white gang member and telling,
him to “kill as many niggers as|
you-can,” shortly before a black |
| woman was shot to death dur-
| ing the city’s 1969 riots. 1

Robertson surrendered to po-:
lice and was arraigned on a
| charge of criminal homicide be-
fore being released on $50,000
bail. Within three hours he:
held a news conference,

“I've read [the charges] and
I'm innocent and I will contin- !
ue as mayor of York,” Rob-|
ertson told the national and lo-
ical media that gathered on the"
isteps of City Hall.

“I am not a racist,” he said. .
[“My job is to-comfort and heal
the City of York.”

. He called his treatment — he

. was handcuffed while bemg

" fransported from the state po-,
* lice barracks to the county"

courthouse — “a serious of-
fense to mayors all over the
United States.”

Robertson, 67, who has been
mayor for seven years, suggest-
ed the charges were politically
¢ motivated. They came less than

two days after-he won the Dem-

ocratic primary by 48 votes. He
i vowed to continue his cam-
: paign for re-election.
. His attorney, William C. Cost-
' opotilos, said voters knew
about the impending charges

and still chose Robertson.

“This was telegraphed for
weeks,”” Costopoulos said.:
“When the voters went into the |
booth 48 hours ago, everyone
knew this.”

, Robertson refused to address
| th he specmc allegatlons in the:

" arrest documents. Costopoulos,

said those issues would be
fought in -court and pledged
theére would be no plea negotla-
tlons

¢ ‘York County prosecutors say

‘ Rick' Lyni Knouse, 48, one -of

si¥ men charged with partici-

. pating.in the barrage of gunfire
that killed Lillie ‘Belle ‘Allen, .
claims Robertson, a patrolman,
at thetiime, gave him the 30.06
. ammunition Knouse used to
fire upon the vehicle, according
to an affidavit filed in Rob-

ertson’s arrest.
.. Knouse, whose - testimony to

the grand jury-pinpointed Rob- -

ertson as handing over ammu-
nition'and telling him to “kill
as many niggers as you can,”
refused to discuss the case yes-

terday. He referred all ques-'
tions-to his attorney, John J.

Moran II, who could not be
reached for comment.

Dennis McMaster, who is
BEast Pennsboré Twp. police
chief but was a York patrolman
during the riots, supported the
claim that Robertson was -dis-
tributing ammo, according to
theaffidavit.

McMaster told the grand jury-
investigating the 32-year-old
slaymg that he saw Robertson:
giving ammunition to one of

two brothers — Arthur or Rob-' 4
- ert Messersmith — who-are ac-!
" cused of later takingpart in the

shooting, the affidavit said.
*Another witness said he saw"

Robertson talking with Knouse
immediately.after the shooting

. and that the Messersmiths and

another man were standing
nearby holding guns, according
to the-affidavit,

York was under martial law
at the time, and only police and
~ security officers could pur-
chase weapons or ammunition.

Other witnesses said Rob-
- ertson incited a crowd. by
‘shouting “white power” the
night before the shooting andj
told a group of gang membersi
‘that “if I weren’t a cop, T would,

(be leading commando raids}
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against mggers Tin the black
neighborhoods,” according to
the affidavit.

Allen was killed by a rlﬂed‘
slug from a shotgun, but York
County prosecutors are .charg-

. ing anyone who fired at.the car |
1 as principals.in the slaying. *
Clarence E. “Sonny” Lutzing- L
i er, who is in the State Correc-
' tional Institution at Camp Hill
for retail theft, yesterday be-
came the seventh person
charged in the 1969 shooting,

According to documents filed
in his arrest, Lutzmger testified -
before the grand jury that he
- fired a pistol at Allen’s car dur-
ing the melee. He began serving
a l-to-2-year sentence for theft

~ on March 1. "

Another arrest is expected to- |
morrow in Allen’s death, attor-
neys said. 1
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| Most of the other defendants ' The grand jury also IS inves-
admitted taking part in the| tigating the slaying of Schaad,
i shooting, t ‘who was hit by a bullet that
\  Robertson testified before -the\ ‘pierced an-armored police vehi--
grand jury, saying he borrowed , cle days before Allen was shot.
a 30.06 rifle and ammunition ; Gov. Tom Ridge said yester-
from his neighbor and took it . day that Robertson will find ita
on patrol with him after white , “very, very difficult thing” to
rookie police officer Henry ! run the city, but stopped short
Schaad was shot days before Al- | ‘of calling for his resignation..
len’s slaying. ' “He and the City Council and:
However, he exercised his | the local fathers are going to,
constitutional right to remain ! -have to decide that,” Ridge said
silent when asked about dis- ' upon returning to Pennsylva-
tributing ammunition. i nia from a trade trip to Europe. 7.3
Robertson has admitted “There’s obviously enormous i
shouting “white power” and | pressure placed upon anyone: .
L -~ when they're under the scruti- i“?}z, ;
said he held racist views in the | | ny of the criminal justice sys: =,
past, but has denied the other | | tem, particularly under the
allegations. scrutiny of the most serious'i;”
“You people don’t have any ' ; charge that can be brought o

¥

1
)
!
)

idea what it was like 32 years ! ' against an individual.” 5
ago,” he told reporters yester- The Associated Press contrib-: -7 iy
day. “Please believe me, it was | | uted to this report. Py

GARY DWIGHT MILLER / OF THE PATRIGT-NEWS!

York Mayor Charlie Robertson holds a news conference on the steps of City Hall after his release on bail. He refused to ad-

dress the specific allegations in.the arrest do

i :
horrible. It's changed. The  Pete Shellem may be reached
whole community has changed ' | at 255-8156 or pshellem@patriot-
for the better.” I‘ news.com.

|

{

. His news conference was in- .
| terz:upted by shouts of “Once a ,
. racist, always a racist!” and

1 “We do remember!” by a black[
| contingent nearby. |
. York County District Attor-'
'ney H. Stanley Rebert issued a .
. statement yesterday countering ‘1
 claims that Robertson’s arrest |
,was politically motivated or
 timed around the election.
v “Justice for Lillie Belle Allen |
-and Henry C. Schaad has been |
delayed for over three .dec- -
' ades,” Rebert said. “It would be
\ unconscionable to argue politi+
cal considerations for any fur-
ther delay.” ‘

Rebert said his office con-

sulted with the U.S. attorney’s
office this month and was told
there was no basis for federal
jurisdiction. Federal sources
said the statute- of limitations
expired on any federal crime
they could have pursued.

Rebert also said he consulted |
with the state attorney gener—%
1
1

uring yésterday’s gathering.

cuments d

—_ -

g office and was told there
was no conflict of interest for
his office to pursue the charges.

The grand jury recommended
charges against 11 people in a
gealed presentment that was.is-
qued last month. Rebert said .

R those charges all relate to Al-

i tensdeath. .
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Other facts on Robertson:

Coached in the focal - A football and
American Legion basketball referee
baseball league for for 30 years.

20 years. .

He used his income
from sports officiat-
ing to sponsor
teams in local-youth
basketball leagues.

" Awards include the Pennsylvania
. . American.Legion Hall-of Fame,

- Police Officer of the Year Award. .-
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Grand ]ui'{]‘\{;ﬁ"ness ‘ was A §tory on race riots in, - e it 5J
— ?¢ York, Pennsylvania, and that a__|
saw ‘horrlble thlngs i 1 police.officer had been shot.” ﬁ : ‘:)‘l g)orﬂ
' | Edrhon -

He said he called the depart-
ment, was ordered back to!
work and on a night in July,
1969 was issued a rifle and sent!
| to a barricade at Salem Square, !
, a boundary between the city’s!
black and white sections.

Even amid the riots, some hu-

, manity came through, he said. -

Mff

Wi G

QM

during 1969 rioting

BY MATT MILLER
OF OUR CARLISLE BUREAU

Tit:e

! Character

On a tense summer night nearly 32 years
ago, Dennis McMaster was a York pa- ‘
trolman, holding a rifle and manning a bar—

Classrﬁcatton

ricade as race riots swept the city.

Today, he is East Pennsboro Twp.’s pohce

“A lady called to me and said,
‘Officer, a man has just landed
on the moon,’” McMaster re-

Submitting Office:

AEAAPH 00508
HEA

)/

chief and a witness whose testimony before r
a grand jury contributed to a criminal homi- |
cide charge against York Mayor Charlie
Robertson, a former fellow cop, in the shoot-
ing of a black woman during the riots.

An affidavit filed in the case states that:
| McMaster told the grand jury he saw Rob-
| ertson give 30.06 ammunition to one of two'
I brothers accused of killing 27-year-01d Lillie -
| Belle Allen during the 1969 riots.

. Yesterday, McMaster would not discuss

| details of what he told the jury. He said 1t :

1 would not be proper to do so. ) . ’
But he said the mvestlgatmn as rekin- . .

dled unpleasant memories of the 10 days of' i ci%: ﬁa}%ﬁvﬁﬁ?gﬁh}fﬁ |

rioting, the worst situation he faced duringa” len killing waé an open case .

. police career that has spanned five decades. . % .

called. He went over and saw
the historiec event on her TV}
set. The woman gave him. pea-:
nut-butter and marshmallow
fudge and a glass of lemonade. °
After the riots, McMaster:
" participated in public hearings
' aimed at easing racial tensions.
In 1970, he was promoted to ser-
- geant and assigned to the Com-
" munity Relations Squad, ore
job of which was to foster bet
ter race relations.

Indexing:

McMaster, who headed the'
Mid- Cumberland Valley Re-.
gional Police at Shippensburg
for six years before becommg
East Pennsboro’s chief in 1999, .
“It was a hellish experience for '
'anybody who went through it.

“One of our survival skills is
| we learn not to remember pain,
We try to recall.only the good
thmgs This brings back pain.” |
j Racial disturbances begah in
| York after the April 1968 assas-
\ sination of the Rev. Dr. Martin
' Luther King Jr.

“In 1968, we had rocks and'
bottles being thrown,” McMas- '
ter said. In one mmdent he
said, a cinder block was
dropped from a roof onto the.
head of a police officer. “His' ..
helmet broke in half, but it
saved his life,” McMaster said.

McMaster said he was on va-'
cation when rioting began. “I
rwas on the beach reading the’
‘mewspaper and ms1de there*

| “I rémember horrible things,” said.

. to it,” he said.

“Personally, I never worked

on it,” McMaster said. “A lot of

good officers did.

“When someone gets killed,
you want fo have a resolution
“One of the
things that haunted me when I
Wwas in homicide work was
when we knew who committed
a murder and didn’t have the
evidence to go forward.”

McMaster, who retired from

the York force in 1992, said the -
effort to finally bring Allen’s
killers to justice “will come to

its conclusion” in the criminal !

" justice system. ;

“I was born and ralsed 1n
York. I love that city,> he said. '
“I want this to be resolved. I
wish only the best for every-,
body concerned.”

LAURA'MATHEWS / OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS / r998‘

not to remember pain. We try
to recalil only the good things.
'ﬂils brings back pain.”

" Dennis McMaster, East Pennsboro Twp.

polrce chief and former York oﬁ" cer

o) 901 -1
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If this were York
‘and Charlie Robertson were our
mayor, we would call for him to re-
sign.

We would do so not because we
have drawn any conclusions about
his guilt or innocence with respect
to his alleged involvement in the
killing of an African-American
woman during the 1969 York race
riots. We haven’t seen the evidence
or heard his side of the story.

Nor would we base the call on
speculation about whether the
Charlie Robertson of today is a
changed man from the police offi-
cer of 32 years ago who admittedly
shouted racist slogans.

Rather, the issue for us would be
simply this: what serves the best
interests of the city of York.

Like other small cities in Penn-
sylvania and around the country,
York has its share of problems and
opportunities. The people of the
city are entitled to have a mayor
who is going to give his full atten-
- tion and energy to those issues.

They are entitled to a mayor
whose serious problems do not
. draw attention to him at the ex-
pense of the city and its reputa-
tion.
In the days and months ahead,
Robertson cannot but be consumed
'by the serious charges lodged
! against him. His suggestion that
he might open up a related probe

S = mee - s wmEcw o= e o=

against his in dec1d1ng whether to quit

of his own confirms as much, and |
indicates the misdirection he
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Robertson should weigh York’s interests |
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might take using his official capac- f

ity as mayor, should he remain in. ;;
_office.

We would not call for the may- '/
or’s resignation lightly. The issues
surrounding Robertson’s involve--
ment in a three-decade old imurder
case are complex and ripe with nu-

ances. However this matter turns
out, it represents a human tragedy | :

‘on no small scale.

Many might well ask if it is fair %
to ask the city’s h1ghest-rank1ng of-
ficial to resign when e is entitled -
to a presumption of innocence and
has yet to receive a fair trial and to
be found guilty? There is indeed an
element of unfairness about it, and
all the more so should a jury sub-
sequently find Robertson innocent.

-But Robertson’s personal trage-
dy should not be allowed to be-

come the city’s and its citizens’ !

burden to bear. Being fair to Rob-
ertson in this instance means be-
ing unfair to the larger community
that needs to heal the freshly
opened wounds of some of the
worst days in the city’s history,
and move on.

+Yet, this is not our call. Rather,

jt is for Robertson to search his

soul for the answer and for the '
people of York to voice their views |
on whether they want their city to -
share the dark cloud that has come |,

over the life of their mayor.

N
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plans to appear

‘BY PETE SHELLEM
OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

YORK — A day after barely winning a pri-
mary election, York Mayor Charlie Rob-
ertson ended weeks of speculation by saying
he will surrender today on homicide charges
in the shooting death of ‘a black woman dur-
ing the city’s 1969 race riots.

“Murder is the charge,” Robertson said as,
he fought back tears at a news conference on
the steps of City Hall hours after his .attor-
heys met with prosecutors.

“Im being advised by the district attor-
ney’s office that, as your mayor, it’s neces-
sary to be handcuffed,” he told reporters.
“The district attorney will inform you as to
where I'll be handeuffed for your photo ses-
sion.”

Robertson maintained his innocence and
said he intends to continue campaigning for
re-election. He also promised to hold weekly
news conferences on the charges and “relat-
ed legal issues.” ?

York County prosecutors have been
threatening to arrest Robertson for almost
two weeks, but at some point decided to wait
until after the election. He is expected to be
., arraigned this morning before District Jus-
tice Barbara Nixon. .

On Tuesday, Robertson won the Democrat-

. ic nomination for a third term by a margin

" of 48 votes — 1,405 to 1,357 — over city Coun-

~ cilman Ray Crenshaw. He is to face Republi-

~ ' can nominee Betty Schonauer in November.

Deputy District Attorney William Graff

“met yesterday with Robertson’s attorneys,

William C. Costopoulos and Richard Oare,

" apparently trying to hammer out the terms

'+ of Robertson’s surrender and bail hearing.

I However, after about a half hour, Costo-

i poulos and Oare abruptly left the court-

. house, declining comment to the mass of re-

' porters who were waiting outside. They then

. met-with Robertson at City Hall and once

again left with little comment, still refusing
to confirm he would be charged.

at arraignment
in 1969 slaying

e o]
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K cide and perjury, sources said.
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“He was indicted and tried in‘thé iedid
and still won the election,” Costopoulos said.
“The people made their judgment at the
polls.” ’ }

Robertson held his news conference later. |

Prosecutors were originally prepared to |
charge Robinson with conspiracy to homi-

They chlange'd the charge to
thomicide after they discovered
there was a two-year statute of ‘
limitation on conspiracy to
homicide under the law that |
was in effect in 1969, the .
sources said.

In 1984, the law was changed
. 5o there is no statute of limita- !
tion on conspiracy-to homicide. 1
| Robertson, 67, who was a po- |
'lice officer in 1969, has ad- |
" mitted shouting “white pov‘vex:” |
at a rally the night before Lillie “
- Belle Allen was shot to death.

He has denied he is the un-
_identified police officer who,
court documents allege urged’
“commando raids” in black
neighborhoods and handed out
ammunition to gang members.
‘shortly before Allen was shot.

"Allen, 27, of Aiken, S.C., was’
¢ visiting family in York when
' the car in which she was riding'

was ambushed after it became
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o  -PAUL KUEHNELL / OF THE YORK DAILY RECORD
anlham C. Ritter, 50, is led from a magis+
trate’s hearing yesterday. He is the fifth per-
I§on charged in Lillie Belle Allen’s slaying. ¢

strqnded on railroad tracks in a
white neighborhood at the

~ height of the riots.
Robertson has acknowledged
. he .exercised his right to re-
- main silent during his grand
Jury testimony on the matter.
: He has characterized the re-

. newed investigation as a politi- |
- cal witch-hunt and has said he -
. might conduct his own probe.
- For the last two weeks, Rob- '
| ertson has said he will not step |
" down as mayor or from the fall '
! ballot if he is charged. ;
j He has said that if he has to .

dgavote weeks to his defense,
| city business administrator Mi- L
. chael O’Rourke would run ¢
York’s government. State law:
allows Robertson to do that for
up to 60 days. o
If Robertson were fo step
‘ down as mayor, city council
would choose a replacement. If
' he were to remove himself from |
J:_he fall ballot, York’s Democrat-

jc City Committee would
choose a replacement nominee.
Also yesterday, prosecutors
charged a fifth white man with
,homicide, alleging he fired
' shots at the car. William €. Rit-
.ter was held at York County
Prison after a brief appearance
 before Nixon. K
~ Ritter testified before the
grand jury investigating Al-
'len’s slaying that he fired a six-
: round elip from .22-caliber rifle
' at the car, according to an affi-
' davit filed in the arrest. “Ritter
' admitted that when he shot he
' knew there was 2 possibility
that he would injure or kill
someone,” the affidavit-said.
Ritter, 50, said he is tharried
' and has worked for the Harley-
Davidson motorcycle plant in
. York for nearly 30 years. He
said he knew the other four de-
fendants in the case but, unlike
them, insisted he was not'a
. member of any white gang at

Alirlo)
"WNdeoso Hu CM«(c}L'
d8a APH GO

the fime of the shooting. The!
other four men were members l
of white street gangs. Bail has '
been set at $100,000 for ail four.

Allen’s death followed the
shooting of Henry Schaad, a
white rookie police officer, who
was hit by a bullet fired at an
armored police vehicle.

The grand jury, which has
recommended charges against
11 people in a sealed pres-
entment, also is investigating
Schaad’s death.

The investigation was resur-
rected:.Jast year after-a white
gang membefh(:ommitted sui-
dide and left behind an audio-
tape,uaqrr}itting involvement in
Allen‘s death. ‘

In. 10"days of rioting in the-
city, more than 60 people were
injured and entire city blocks
were burned down. . *

Staff Writer Peter L. DeCour-'
sey and the Associated Press con-’
tributed to this story.’ ‘
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i GARY DWIGHT ! lLLER / OF THE PATRIOT-NEW‘
'York Mayor Charlie Robertson leaves City Hall at the end of his work day yesterday Robertson
lgnaintain he is innocent in.the death of a 27-year-old black woman durmg the c:ty s nots in 1969.
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| Voters debate guilt issue,

‘mext steps for Robertson

. BY PETER'L.. DECOURSEY,
' OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

| oo .

i YORK — Many voters in the upﬁer—élass neigh
neighborhood

| that nudged York Mayor Charlie Robertson to victory in

' Tuesday’s primary election want hir to stay on the job

i anlglx on the ballst, . ‘

i But those voters in the 14th Ward in northern ¥

, whose ballots came: in late ‘and- ,mzer'wh‘é'lmingly).tf(l)rchk)gl‘gi

b gytsonv, say they ate not sure he is innocent of the homi-

) 01§e charge he said he will face in the 1969 race riots.

. Many were chatting about Robertsqn’s.dramatic news

» conference on: the steps of City Hall yesterday afternoon
as they-gardened or mowed.their lawns. ‘

Choked up and often tearing, Robertson maintained

- his innocence, expressed shock that he'wotild be ¢harged

“anid mocked York County Dis-'

(Indicate rﬁage. name of P%, ‘
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'trict Attorney Stan Rebert, who,
is bringing the charges, as a,
publicity-seeker. ‘

' John Ness, 72, a retired ma-
chinist from Village Park, part

. of the 14th Ward, said he voted

' for Robertson. .,

. “He should wait and,

\ shouldn’t quit until he’s

| guilty,” Ness said. “I question

‘i whether he’s innocent. I really

| do. I'm not thoroughly con-| !

| vinced he is. But as long as he | !

' says he is, he should stay in of-
'fice until it’s proven other- !
wise.” :

.. Pete Schmidt and his wife,

Conewago Street, said they be-
lieve Robertson was probably a
racist cop but is not a murder-
| €er.
\ «And people forget those
' times,” Schmidt said. “A police
| officer, Henry Schaad, was,
 killed, too, and he’s buried just
" over the hill there, right in this
neighborhood. Nobody remem-
pers him. I hope [Robertson]
stays and fights it. I believe he’s
innocent.” ] :
However, Schmidt’s neigh-
bor, Frances Pentz, 69, said she
stayed home from: the polls be-
| cause she liked Robertson as
| mayor, but was horrified by the l‘
by T e T T T T

;, Helen, about two blocks over on
L

allegations against him.
«“1 didn’t vote because one

_ [candidate] was unqualified

and the mayor had done these
things,” she said. “I think that
once he’s arrested, he should
drep out of running for mayor.”

An exit poll by The York Dai-

. 1y Record of Tuesday’s Demo-

cratic mayoral primary voters

~ found that half Robertson’s.sup-

porters thought he $hould quit

if charged. The poll said just

under half of his voters disa-
greed with his contention that

. the grand jury should not in-
. vestigate the 32-year-old riots

and slayings.

Flo Broyce of West York said:

newspapgy, city apd state.)
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“1 voted for him because I be-
lieve this was all political. If he’
is arrested, he should step.
down.”

Others insisted Robertson is
innocent. ‘

“He has done a good job, and:
minorities should know better .
than ariyone that someone ac-
cused is not necessarily some-

one who is guilty,” said Mike

Smith, a 32-year-old African-
American. He said he voted for
Robertson because of his.record
asmayor.

Peter ‘L. DeCoursey may be .
reached at 255-8115 or pdecour-
sey@patriot-news.com.
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“Cnty targets Newberry Street flag display

Ronnie Young calls Confederate symbol part of his heritage; officials say it’s unsafe

By MIKE HOOVER
Dxpa tch/Sunday News erate battle flag, he
can get a permit fo
A fight over a Confederate battle
. put up a flag pole,
flag flying near where a black }ggaid
woman was killed in the 1969 riots I tP; ti
is about safety, not free speech, a 1 tae meantume,
'York City official said this morning, ~ Loung must secure
' City inspectors say Ronnie the antenna so if
Young’s 65-foot citizen’s band radio does mnot . fall on rights.” danger to the public.
antenna on North Newberry Street nearby homes or “The City of York can kiss my ~ Bjsed on a review of city records
is not anchored properly and could oOverhead electrical Young white a—,” he said. . Newhams said, Young put up his an.
topple or break as the flag atop it Wires, he’sa1d. . . . Young’s flag overlooks the site tenna without a city permit. He re- .
whips in the breeze, said Frank __“I don’t care if he photocopies his where Lillie Belle Allen, a black pre- coived 8 ermit 131’1 P January butb |
Newhams, the director of the city’s lily-white a— and flies it up a flag acher’s daughter, was shot by a Foiled ¢ %’ follow-up i ;:Ii.:}iro
bureau of building permits. pole. This is a safety issue, not a white mob during the 1969 riots. 1@€C 10 g€l a 100W-up mspection.

4

.
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has been,” Newhams said. murder, including York City Mayor

“He can fly a flag from a flag Charles H. Robertson.
pole,” he added. “It (the flag)  Young has said the flag rep-
shouldn’t be on aradio anjcennaf’ resents his heritage.

Young said he has no intention of  Others say it symbolizes racism,
taking down the flag, and if he’s pepresenting a group of Southern
forced to, he will sue York City for gtatesthat permitted slavery.
“violation of my constitutional ~ Newhams said it represents a

So if Young wants to fly a Confed- First-Amendment issue. It always Nine men are charged with her 2
) y. 2
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FD-350 (Rev. 5-8-81)

Cassimatis is hearingthe ~ ~
case in the county courthouse |
because the number of de- |

__About the

@
(Indicate page, name of

newspaper, city and\state.) A,L}
7& %M_ }éﬁp%aL

fendants and expected audience |
made it too unwieldy to hold in {
, the office of District Magistrate .
Lillie Belle Allen, 27, wasa  Barbara Nixon. |
| preacher’s daughter from Aiken,  The York County District At-
‘ S.C., who stopped in York in July: torney’s Office is prosecuting the -
| 1969 with her parents and two ~ case, with First Assistant District
children to visit her sisterand | Attorney Tom Kelley leading a
brother-in-law, Hattie and Murray' team that includes assistants Ed
! Dickson, Paskey and Bill Graff. '
| The family was on the way to Monday's testimony included:
{buy groceries for dinner July 21 M An announcement by
Iwhen Hattie Dickson madea * Knouse, Lutzinger and Neff that
'wrong tum and stalled in white  they accepted plea bargain
Jg«':lng territory. Allen got outof . agreements in exchange for tes-
the car at North Newberry Street | timony.
and Gay Avenue to take over the MW Allen’s sister, Hattie Dick- -
driving, and died in a hail of gun- ‘ son, described how the car
fire. | came under fire and her sister's
For 30 years, police investi- ~ death.
gations into her death, andthe + ™ Former white gang
fatal shooting three days earlier ~member Fred Flickinger testified
of York City Officer Henry about a rally at Farquhar Park
Schaad, lay dormant. Lawen-  the day before at which Robert-
forcement officials in York said ~ son, a police officer at the time,
they had suspects, but never yelled “white power.”
enough evidence to bring Tuesday’s testimony includ-
charges. ed: :
But the York County District M Defendant Knouse saying
Attorney’s office refocused its ef- | those on the street felt they had
forts on the cases in December | ‘license to kill” because of sup-
1999, after receiving information |, port from police. He also testified
that surfaced after The York Robertson gave him ammunition
Dispatch/Sunday News pub- . and told him to'kill as many

lished a series on the 30th annj- | Dblacks as he could. !
versary of the riots. In W Defendant Neff saying he -

September, a 23-member inves- § Saw Robert Messersmith holding
tigative grand jury was seated. a smoking shotgun immediately
On April 26, it recommended 11 { after Allen was slain.

indictments in connection with M Former youth worker
Allen’s death. So far, nine have | Robert Stoner saying he'd tried

been charged with Allen’s to alert police to the proliferation |
murder: brothers Robert Messer-|  of weapons in the Newberry
smith, 52, of Montgomery Street neighborhood but was
County and Arthur Messersmith, { told “they were monitoring it.”
47, of Red Lion; Gregory Harry And from former gang member
Neff, 53, of York; Rick Lynn ] - Steve Noonan, that police came |
Knouse, 48, of York; William | ‘[ through the neighborhood and _
Charles Ritter, 50, of York; York | | to!d gang members to keep their |
City Mayor Charles Roberison, { | Weaponsoutofview.
| 67; Clarence Eugene Lutzinger | | Yesterday's testimony.includ- 5
Jr., 49, of York; Chauncey ed: :
Curvin Gladfelter, 49, of Windsor
Township; and Thomas Paul
Smith, 50, of Manchester Town-
ship.
On Tuesday, the grand jury
convened to hear testimony
about the Schaad case.

The hearing
A preliminary hearing to de-

termine whether there is suffi- |

cient evidence for a trial on the

| murder charges began Monday

i before Common Pleas Court

1Judge Emanuel Cassimatis.

case

B Statements by John Henry
Blokzeyl, Robertson’s
14-year-old neighbor in 1969,
and retired city police officer
James P. Brown.

Blokzey! testified to seeing
his now-deceased father, Henry
John Blokzeyl, give Robertson a .
.300-caliber Savage rifle and six
rounds to go with it. He said i
Roberison returned the rifle and |
five of the original six rounds to
v him some five years ago. Brown

[

"testified he saw Robertson with a
i similar-looking Savage rifle on
July 18, 1969, the night Schaad |
'was mortally wounded. _ |

]

=

‘case will be heard Monday
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Each said they'd never seen
Robertson with a .30-06 rifle or
ammunition — the type of ammo;
'he is accused of handing outto
‘white youths. :

Closing arguments in the

moming by Cassimatis. He will
then have 10 days to decide
whether charges againstthe
men should be bound over for
court or dismissed.
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By ROCHELLE BRENNER
Dispatch/Sunday News

Although retired York
City police Capt. Dennis
McMaster did not testify
at the preliminary hearing
this week, he said he ex-
pects to be called to the
stand at some point.

McMaster is “on call”
until the end of the week
and is keeping a schedule
that allows him to make it
to court within about an
hour of getting a call.

“I was there. I was
waiting,” said McMaster,
now the police chief in
East Pennsboro Township,
Cumberland County.

When asked why he
thinks he wasn’t called,
McMaster said, “I have no
idea.”

However, he said, he
guessed it is because other
witnesses took longer than
expected.

Prosecutors declined to
say why they did not put
McMaster on the stand,

other than to say they did

McMaster waits |
o take stand

Retired captain says he’s on call;
testimony not needed, DA says

not need
.| him to
| prove their
case at the
prelimi-
nary hear-
ing.
A Accord-
ing to the
arrest affi-
davit filed
against
York City Mayor Charles
Robertson, McMaster told
the grand jury he saw
Robertson provide .30-06
ammunition to one of the
men charged with killing
Lillie Belle Allen during
the race riots in July 1969.

W

McMaster

McMaster was on patrol |

in an armored vehicle with
Robertson the night of the
murder and the two offi-
cers were the first to reach
the scene.

McMaster retired from
the city police department
in 1993 afer 29 years of
service.
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~ Defense

fjustified’

!

Robertson motion calls shooters ‘color blind}

a By ELIZABETH EVANS
' Dispatch/Sunday News

. | In a motion filed yesterday after-
noon, Mayor Charles Robertson’s
|attorneys called the ambush

\murder of Lillie Belle Allen a

\“color-blind killing” that was “en-

tirely justified” because of a mistak-

en belief Allen was armed. ’

Uhler also deferred ruling yes-.
terday on a similar request by code-
fendant William C. Ritter, filed
llgleday by his attorney, Harold Fitz-

. Robertson, Ritter and their
seven codefendants, all charged
with murder, will be arraigned July
23. Three of them have entered into

. Robertson’s defense team made gcutors, offering testimony in ex-
|the argument in a-motion to over- i
‘turn Senior Judge Emanuel Cassi- |
matis’ decision to send the mayor ficer in 1969, is accused of giving'
and his co-defendants to trial for ' ammunition to white teen gang.
member Rick Lynn Knouse'(a code-
fendant) and telling him to “kill as
many” blacks as he could. The eight
others are accused of shooting-at
Allen and the white Cadillac that
held four of her family members as

they drove up North New-
berry Street.

Accessory argument:
Yesterday’s defense motion
also argues Robertson cannot
legally be an accessory ‘before
the fact to the “imperfect self-
defense killing” because he

changed for lighter sentences. i

' the 1969 race-riots slaying of the -
. black preacher’s daughter.
¢ In their motion, Robertson’s law-
yers said the group of white men
~who shot at Allen’s car had done
' nothing illegal.
“The conduct of the other code-
' fendants was entirely justified
| under these most unfortunate cir- /
| cumstances and the killing in fact '
| was terribly tragic but not unlaw- ‘
' ful,” the motion said. .
Common Pleas Judge John C.
. Uhler deferred ruling on the raotion

for a writ of habeas corpus filed by had no way of knowing

attorney William Costopoulos. Knouse would shoot at Allen
In a written memorandum, — assuming he gave Knouse

‘Uhler called Robertson’s requestf

oremature and that, under the!

‘"I};enns lvania Rules of Criminal|

Procedure, all pre-trial requests

nfust be filed as one consolidated

motion, within 30 days after formal

jgnment.. . . - |
court arraignment

\, 0

L

|
|

i

! plea-bargain agreements with pros- -

Robertson, a York City police of- |'
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ammunition.

The motion states: “To say
that an individual can be
held for murder because he

supposedly tells another to |

defend himself, gives him

ammunition and tells him to ¢
kill all the blacks in the -
-world does not give rise to °
', criminal liability for the sub- -

sequent killing of a specific

black (person) hours later. ...” "’
Costopoulos and co-coun- :

sel Rees Griffiths and Rich-

ard Oare argue in the motion .

that Cassimatis — who pre-

sided over the consolidated .
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7pre1imi171ary hearing — erred
when he bound over for court
the charges against Robert-
son.

They argue prosecutors

did not show Robertson was

. an active partner in a

murder conspiracy, or that

there was any malice afore-

'thought. They also said pros-

ecutors did not show

' Robertson agreed to perpe-

trate a specific criminal act
with the other codefendants.

“He cannot legally be an
accessory before the fact to

an unreasonable belief that

the actual shooters were in
imminent fear of death or
great bodily harm ... because
he was not at the scene of the
killing and could not possibly
have the requisite shared
criminal intent to commit an
imperfect self-defense kill-
ing,” the motion reads.

Self-defense argument:
Because the eight accused
shooters mistakenly believed
they were defending them-
selves, the motion reads, “at
most the charges of the other
codefendants (not Mayor
Robertson) should be reduced

to voluntary manslaugh'ter”

and bound over on that
charge alone.”

The mayor’s attorneys also
said that, working under the
prosecution’s theory, “Mayor
Robertson would be legally
responsible for the killing of
any and all African-Ameri-
cans in the days and even
months after his alleged con-
duct.”

The motion also postulates
that Allen’s death is “attrib-
utable entirely to other fac-
tors, namely, the riotous
conditions existing” at the
time; the “reasonable belief’

that Allen was armed and
shooting; residents’ fear of
black-perpetrated  violence;
and an incident on Newberry
Street the night before, in
which a black man hiding in
the trunk of a white car
opened fire on people who
charged the car and threw
rocks at it.

“In addition, the victim
was fired at not because she
was African-American but be-
cause (the shooters) had a
belief, reasonable or not, that
she was armed and was
firing upon them,” the law-
yers wrote.




3 B

itzkee:

By ELIZABETH EVANS
Duspatch/Sunday News

In response to a prosecution
motion to have him removed from
the case, defense attorney Harold
Fitzkee said his three years as dis-
trict attorney in the 1970s do not
preclude him from regresenting one
of nine men charged in the 1969
riots murder of Lillie Belle Allen.

“It’s not part of the (murder) case
— it's a collateral issue,” said Fitz-
kee, who represents defendant Wil-
liam C. Ritter. “It’s much ado about
nothing.”

During the time Fitzkee was
York County DA, from 1970 to 73,
no action was taken in the July 21,
1969, shooting death of Allen, a
greacher’s daughter visiting York

om Aiken, S.C.

First Assistant District Attorney
‘Tom Kelley — one of four prosecu-
tors who filed the motion Friday —

DA stint doesn’t disqualify

Prosecutors want him out as defense attorney in riots case
B—

said he expects at
least one defense
lawyer to seek to
dismiss the cases
based on prosecuto-
rial delay. g

If that happens, &
Fitzkee likely would
have to.testify.

Fitzkee said he
believes he would
be able to temporar-
ily step aside as Rifter’s attorney
long enough to-testify, then resume
his position as defense counsel for
‘Ritter, 50, who is accused of firing a
rifle at Allen’s car.

But the longtime York attorney
said he has no information to pro-
vide. “There is no conflict of inter-

Fitzkee
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est,” he said.

Kelley said that
if Ritter is.convicted
of murder he could
appeal, claiming
Fitzkee should not
have  represented
him,

i Fitzkee said

Uhler has scheduled
a hearing for 1:30
p.m. Aug.’17 to hear
arguments why Fitzkee should be
removed as Ritter's defense coun-
sel.

Uhler also was York County DA,
from 1978 to 1981.

But Kelley has not moved to

Jhave him removed from the case.

As judge, he said, “he’s not an advo-
cate to one side or another.”

Motions next: Now that all nine
defendants, including York Mayor
Charles Robertson, have either
been arraigned or waived formal
arraignment, Uhler -will begin con-
sidering motions filed by both sides
with a hearing on all pretrial mo-
tions Sept. 24.

Both Ritter and Robertson have
outstanding motions asking Uhler
to overturn the preliminary-hearing
decision by Senior Judge .Emanuel
Cassimatis to send the defendants
to trial.

Immediately after his arraign-
ment yesterday, Robertson’s attor-
neys filed a discovery motion on the

me

mayor’s behalf, seeking more infor-
mation about the charges against
Robertson, and other defense attor-
neys are expected to follow suit.

Also yesterday, Lemoyne attor-
ney William Costopoulos, who is
part of Robertson’s defense team,.
told the Pennsylvania Press Club in
Harrishurg that he will seek to
have Robertson’s case separated
from that of the eight others.

However, there has been no
ruling yet to consolidate the cases
for trjal — just for the preliminary
hearing.

In addition to Ritter and Robert-
son, the other defendants are
Chauncey Gladfelter, Rick L.
Knouse, Clarence “Sonny” Lutzing-
er, Arthur Messersmith, Robert
Messersmith, Greg H. Neff and
Thomas P. Smith. ’
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By LAURI LEBO
Dispatch/Sunday News

AIKEN, S.C. — In almost any
'southern town, it is the under-
taker who knows each fam1ly’s
story.

He notes the passing genera-
tions, not through their joyous
beginnings, but through their
endings.

If you grow up in the busi-
ness, you start out “burying all

- your father’s friends. Eventual-

ly, you bury all your friends and
.occasionally, your friend’s kids,”
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said Ray Visot-

funeral
here in this town
of 25,000 in the
sandy midlands
of western South
Carolina.

Today, as part
of his job, Visot-
ski began the.
delicate process

of overseeing the exhumation of
Lillie Belle Allen, the black pre-
achers daughter from A1ken

Allen

ski, who owns a
home 1Y

M Fitzkee: DA stint doesn't disqual-
me.

M Costopolous says lawyers must
‘work the media.’

Page A6

who was killed after making a
wrong turn into a darkened
York neighborhood dunng the
city’s riots of 1969.

After interviewing several

local funeral homes, the York
County District Attorney’s Office
chose Visotski to orchestrate the
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Exhumation under way

Investigators began today unearthing the body of riot victim Lillie Belle Allen

disinterment.

This week’s exhumation is
the latest chapter in the re-
newed investigation into Allen’s

murder, which had gone un-,

solved for 32 years. This spring,
nine men were arrested based
on the recommendations of an
investigative grand jury. Six

men, including York City Mayor
Charles Robertson, will stand

trial.

Inside the George Funeral
Home, which Visotski bought
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'two years ago, hangs a pic-

ture of the Rev. James “Pete”
i Mosley, who was the caretak-
i er of the place for more than
45 years until his death six
years ago.

North Newberry Street that
night when an armed white
mob opened fire on his |
family. He watched helpless- '
ly as his 27-year-old daugh-
ter was killed on the street in |
front of him. r

A year ago, Debra Taylor, '
Lillie Belle Allen’s daughter,
visited George’s funeral home
to show a reporter her grand-

father’s pic-
3 ture.

Even
though the
home was
. filled with cli-
ents, men
who knew
him stopped
their work
long enough
to share their
fondness for
Pete with his
granddaught-
er.

Remembering the Mosley
family: A few streets away
from where Visotski talks
about plans for the exhuma-
tion is another funeral home.
In this place is the man who
buried Pete Mosley’s oldest

Townsend
... is Aiken
County’s
coroner.

|

i

'
|

' ago.

- An active member of the
local NAACP at the time of
Allen’s death, Bobbie Brooks -
took over the family business
of Jackson Brooks Funeral
Home in the late ’60s. Like
those at George Funeral
Home, he also remembers the
Mosley family.

His father buried the Mos-
leys’ 12-year-old son in 1965

" after he died of a brain‘j
[ i

tumor.

Mosley was in the car on .

girl the first time 32 years .

Before burying her, Brooks ]‘
. inspected Allen’s body at her |
. mother’s request. Beatrice
Mosley didn’t trust the au-|
topsy from York County. But
Brooks says too many people |
had already examined the
body by the time it got to

im.
“T was the second funeral"
director to look at her;

Brooks said. “And I didn’t’

have enough forensic experi-
ence.”

Brooks buried Allen in
Pinelawn Memorial Gardens,

a place once called the old"

Aiken colored cemetery.

It used to be common for
families who came to Brooks’
funeral home to bury their
loved ones here. But today,
Brooks sends them to other
. cemeteries.

Forgotten place: Pine-
!awn has no caretaker. There
is no one left to cut the crab
grass and keep down the
poison oak.

 Unlike the neatly kept ,

Bethany Cemetery nearby,
this graveyard is overgrown
with weeds and honeysuckle.
Many tombstones are broken
slabs piled in heaps.

At a news conférence yes-
terday, Aiken County Coro-
ner Sue Townsend warned
reporters to be careful of
snakes hiding from the heat.
in sunken graves.

i

- Several weeks ago,
group of investigators came
by the Jackson Brooks funer-
al home, searching for Lillie|
Belle’s grave. Brooks sent his!
staff to show them where she’
is buried in the back near a
line of white oaks.

“I didn’t go,” Brooks said.

Tomorrow’s exhumation:
Today, in preparation for the

Brooks remembers bury- ﬁ ‘ exhumation, the weeds that

ing their second child four
" years later.

He remembers when Lillie
Belle Allen’s body was sent
hom
her de
receipt

ath certificate and the
for the shipment.

e from York. He still has

i cover Lillie Belle Allen’s
| family plot were to be cut
* back, the sandy soil covering
| her grave removed and the
vault opened.

a
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"Tomorrow, workers will
" shimmy down on their bellies
and slip straps under the
coffin so it can be lifted out.
'It’s a tricky maneuver be-
cause the workers don’t want
to disturb the graves next to
Allen’s. “We have to respect
the dead in a very confined
space,” Visotski said.

Then, Allen’s body will be
removed from where it rests
at her mother’s feet and her
brother’s side.

Dr. Isidore Mihalakis, a fo- |
rensic pathologist from Allen- ,
town, is being brought to
Aiken by a team of York
investigators to conduct an-
other autopsy. Afterward,
Allen’s body will be placed in |
a new casket that will match
the old one, and it will be re-
buried, Visotski said.

Brooks -would like an
Aiken church to hold a me-
morial service for Allen, but '
the family has not requested
one. So he waits for some |

! word from them.

Allen’s siblings and chil-
dren are not talking to re-

" porters now; the news of the

exhumation and the result-
ing media attention have
shaken them. ‘

They are reacting much
the same way the family of
Henry Schaad, the second
murder victim of the riots,
has been reacting.

They support efforts to
solve the murders, but the
news is upsetting to them.

When the body of Schaad,

a white rookie cop shot by a

group of black men on the

second night of rioting, was

exhumed last month, his

. family withdrew from the at-
tention.

Before his body was re-
moved, the family held a pri-
~vate graveside ceremony.

. Since then, his widow, Sonja | .

. Schaad, has declined to talk:
about it. She recently left a

. message for a reporter de-
clining comment, saying the

, ordeal has been too “emotion-
_ally exhausting”  _
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* Aiken, S.C., police officers put up barriers at Pinelawn Memorial Gardens this morn-
ing in preparation for the exhumation of Lillie Belle Allen’s body.
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Costopoulos: Lawyers must ‘work the media’

By RICHARD FELLINGER
Harrisburg Bureau

When youre a lawyer with a
high-profile client like York Mayor
Charles Robertson you must “work

the media.” So says Robertson’s
lead attorney, William Costopoulos.

You don’t necessarily work them
to influence potential jurors. That'’s
fl longshot, according to Costopou-
0s.

“You want to put your client and
his cause in a light that is most fa-
vorable to him, so that maybe he
can go home and get a good night's
sleep,” Costopoulos told the Penn-
sylvania Press Club yesterday.

A well-known Harrisburg-area
Jefense lawyer who often advises
ais colleagues on public relations,
Costopoulos talked for 30 minutes
m lawyers and the media at the
ress club’s monthly luncheon.

Robertson’s lead attorney speaks to Pennsylvama Press Club

About 75 lawyers, lobbyists and
journalists munched on chicken and
pasta at the Harrisburg Hilton &
Towers while listening to a talk
that focused on Robertson’s case.

It was casual and elicited several
short'bursts of laughter.

“Nobody loves the cameras more
than me,” Costopoulos said to
chuckles at one point before ex-
plaining he doesn’t believe cameras
should be in the courtroom..

As for cases like Robertson’s,
Costopoulos said an attorney has to
recognize that the media is “a
major player.”

Some advice: What not to do?
Cop an attitude, don’t return calls
and run out of court with a newspa-
per over your face, he sald
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“It's not just the
prosecution against
the defense,” Costo-

poulos said.
He believes jour-
nalists have an-

agenda of their own,
describing it as “loy-
alty to the First
Amendment.”

That can conflict
with a lawyer’s agenda, which he
described as loyalty to the client
and the Sixth Amendment, which
addresses proper counsel and a
rightto a fair trial.

Costopoulos

“In a career that has included de-
fending a state Supreme Court jus-

tice and winning the freedom of a

high school principal sentenced to
death, Costopoulos’ relationship
with the media has been “a love-
hate relationship, mostly love.

“But I know when to get the hell
out of that thing,” he added with a
grin.

Asked Iater how he believes he’s
faring working the media in Rob-

ertson’s case, Costopoulos replied,

“The verdict’s not in yet.”

Robertson’s case became interna-
tional news when he was arrested
on murder charges.in May.

Costopoulos said he still fields
requests from major news outlets

— including network news stations, .

The New York Times and People

magazine to interview the
mayor. Lawyers have “to walk a
fine line” when considering:suchre-
quests, Costopoulos said.

Although the mayor is a pubhc
official, Costopoulos said he advises
against interviews now because
“the dilemma is it’s not in his best
interest.”

“They aren’t interested in the
good work he’s done as mayor of the
City of York, or in his past as a
baseball coach. They’re interested
in his role in a brutal murder that
Jhappened 30 years ago, and there’s
no way you can present yourself in
a positive light when you've got to
answer those rélevant questions,”
Costopoulos said.
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" “We're asking for a dismissal; that’s the bottom fine.” -
—William Costopoulos, Charlie-Roberton’s lawyer
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York Mayor Charlie Robertson, left, with his attorney William |
Costopoulos, leaves the York County Courthouse yesterday
after pleading innocent to charges related to the 1963
death of Lillie Belle Allen: |
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Innocent
plea given
by mayor
on charges
York leader, 8 others

'
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BY TIMOTHY D. MAY ;
' OF THE ASSOCIATED PRESS ‘

YORK — After pleading inne-
, cent to murder charges in court

‘ 'yesterday, York Mayor Charlie

Robertson said he is confident
, the case against him will be dis-
missed and that he plans to

continue running the city.
Robertson and eight other
white men were formally ar-
raigned yesterday on charges of
| murder and conspiracy in the
shootmg of a black woman dur-

l ing the city’s 1969 race riots.

* As he walked out of court
with an attorney, Robertson
said he felt “very confident” he
would be exonerated. “My job
will be to run the city of York

1 as mayor,” he said in answer to

a question about whether the
criminal charges would inter-
fere with his work.

Robertson quit his campaign

for a third term- after his arrest

. in May but vowed to complete

" his second term, which ends in;
l January.

Only the mayor and one oth— ‘
-er defendant, William Ritter,
~appeared before Common: Pleas

Judge John Uhler for the
15-minute hearing, which in-
volved a formal reading of the -
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charges. The other defendants;
waived their right to. appear at!
the arraignment. All nine men

. pleaded innecent yesterday.

Robertson and seven of his
co-defendants .are .free on bail.
The other man is serving a
prison term for an unrelated
conviction.

The -charges stem from the

July 21, 1969, death of Lillie .

Belle - Allen, a 27-year-old
preacher’s daughter from South
Carolina who was visiting rela-
tives in' York when she was
gunned down by a white moeb

on the fourth night of naeial\

disturbances in the city.

Robertson, then a city cop, is '

accused of handing out bullets
to white gang menibers and tell-
ing whites to kill'blacks earlier
in the ‘day that Allen was shot.

. Robertson has admitted shout-

ing “white .power” in a city
+ park at a rally the night before -
- the killing, but denied all other

allegations.

Ten days of rioting began
after a white gang member shot
and wounded a young black
man in the city. The unrest es-

. calated when Henry Schaad, a

+ 22-year-old rookie officer, was

. ors.to turn over all the evidence

+ séeking more specifics about
" the allegations underlying the

. stiot and killed. Buildings were

set afire, more than 60 people
were injured and 100 people ar-
rested before the National
Guard rolled into town with
tanks.

The same grand juty that rec-
ommended indictments in the
Allen case is also investigating
Schaad’s killing. \

Prosecutors have been tight- !

lipped about why the case is be- |

ing prosecuted only now, ex-
cept to say that witnesses WhO ‘
once refused to talk finally -
came forward.

On Friday, South Carolina |
authorities approved a request |

" by the York County Court’s su- |

pervising judge to exhume Al-|
len’s body. Several weeks‘
earlier, prosecutors had ex::
humed Schaad’s remains. ‘

Yesterday, Robertson’s law-
yer, William: Costopoulos, sub-
mitted a letter asking prosecut-

against the mayor and a motion

charges.

“We're asking for a dlsmlss-
al; that’s the bottom line,” Cost—{
opoulos said.

The judge set Sept. 24 as the1
date for a hearing on prefrial,

i motions.
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Grand jury witness
says he wasn’t there
when cop was shot

By MIKE HOOVER
Dispaich/Sunday News

A 54-year-old man with a long criminal
record was charged with perjury and making
false statements after allegedly lying to a
grand jury investigating the 1969 riot-related
death of York City Police Officer Henry C.
Schaad.

Henry L. Padgett, an inmate of the State
Correctional Institution at Albion, said he
would not answer questions about the 1969
riots or the events swrrounding Schaad’s
death July 18, 1969, when he appeared before '
the grand jury 'I‘uesday

Leaving his arraignment yesterday, Pad-
gett said the only response he gave to a series
of questions in front of the grand jury was
that he “didn’t know nothing” because he was
in the State Correctional Institution at Camp
Hill for a conspiracy charge at the time of the
riots.

Investigators and prosecutors in the case
declined comment, but the arrest affidavit
says Padgett made false statements. The affi-
davit did not elaborate.

that he was in prison during the riots has yet
to be substantiated.

hostage ...

(

A public records check into Padgett’s claim
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“I'm just being held hostage;
that’s all I know,” Padgett.
said.

According to the arrest af-
fidavit filed by York City
Police Detective John Dary-
man, Padgett took an oath
before York County Common!
Pleas Court Judge dJohn!
Uhler to tell the truth before'

- lieved he was being used to
send a message to others who
will appear before the grand
jury to cooperate with inves- !
tigators.

“They are trying to encour- |
age me to testify. It’s a bogus .

the grand jury. arrest,” Padgett said.
Daryman declined com-' Schaad, a white rookie
ment  yesterday, citing]  police ofﬁcer was fatally

Uhler’'s gag order on the
grand jurys investigation.
York County Deputy Pros-
ecutor William Graff, who isi

leading the Schaad investiga-! .
tion, also declined comment. ' “They are trying

Padgett remains in York' to encourage ,
County Prison, where he has = “
been held since his transfer me to testify.
from state prison May 29, It’s a bogus
where he was serving a 2V- ”
to 5-year sentence for retail arrest.

wounded July 18, 1969, when |
the armored car in wh1ch he |
was riding was hit by gun-

theft. Henry L. Padgett,
Padgett’s alleged false' an inmate at the State
| statements were made on the ' Correctional Institution
first day that the grand jury at Albion
convened to investigate
Schaad’s death. He was
charged the next day.

Dressed in orange prison

o a8 -2

garb and wearm%1 handcuffs,
Padgett said at his arraign- - SEARCHED nDEXeD_L
ment yesterday that he be- . seriALIZED (AL __FILED, Gle
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| fire. The vehicle had just ()?&a A P H 0D

. passed a group of black men,
+ at West College Avenue and
. South Penn Street — one of
2 the most violent sections of
1 town during the riots. Schaad "
f was wounded as the armored
, car crossed the West College
. Avenue bridge; he died 14
* days later at York Hospital.

« Padgett said police mis-

takenly believed that, as a

. black man who lived in York

in the 1960s, he has informa-
‘tion that could help the.
Schaad investigation. i

“It’s guilt by association.
They thought I knew some-
- thing. I don’t,” he said.

Padgett’s criminal convic-
tion history includes assault,
robbery, parole violations,
larceny, receiving stolen
property, armed robbery, as-
saulting another prisoner,
firearm violations, theft, bur-
glary, retail theft, drug viola-
tions and giving false
statements. He has been in
and out of the state and
county prison system since
1967, according to records at
Albion State Correctional In-
stitute.

On June 16, 1999, Padgett
pleaded guilty to retail theft
and was sentenced to 2V to
five years to run concurrent
with his other convictions.

York City District Justice
Barbara Nixon has scheduled
a tentative July 6 prelimi-)
nary hearing for the perjury,
and false statement charges..
She set Padgett’s bail at
$25,000 in the event he is re-
Jeased on the unrelated
. charges. ‘

| Heis not scheduled to bé
released from state prison
| before Oct. 26 j

JASON PLOTKIN/STAFF PHOTOGRAPHER

State Police Trooper Thomas Grothey brings Henry L. Padgett into District Justice
false statements before the

ing

the 1969 _shootina death of rookie police Officer Henry C. Schaad.

Pennsyivania
Barbara Nixon’s office yesterday to face charges of perjury and mak
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Hearing ends

in defense effort

J for Robertson
|

By ELIZABETH EVANS
Dispatch/Sunday News

Although prosecutors say

Charles Robertson did not
shake the murder case
against York’s mayor, a
lawyer with three decades of
criminal-trial experience said
the testimony
may have
served other
purposes.

Gerald C.
Grimaud, a
criminal de-
fense attor-
ney in
Tunkhan-
nock, Wyo-
ming County,
said that by questioning a
former neighbor and former
coworker of the mayor, lead
defense attorney William
Costopoulos is, in part, show-
ing the public his client’s side
of the story. ’

Costopoulos

ion, almost without -excep-
tion, hears one side of the
story,” Grimaud said. “The
prosecution ... often meets
with the press and describes
their position in some detail.”

_While a judge’s gag order

e

I
)

‘have an eye toward the

two defense witnesses for|:

public — the pool from which |
the jury is drawn,” Grimaud
said. “So (that) pool ... has an
opportunity to hear that
there is another side. That’s
very important. It shouldn’t
always be the prosecution
‘witnesses testifying without
.somebody answering them.”

nary hearing concluded

idea for defense attorneys to
' : 1.~ play their cards close to the
Testimony in the prelimi- vest,

@ﬁ%z,@m bt
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Also, he said, it’s a good | ,él PA

fice:

“When I have a prélimi— '

before lunchtime yesterday. nary hearing, I don’t want to

Attorneys for both sides are

'scheduled to make oral argu-

ments to Common Pleas'

show my hand any more than
ab.b;i)lutely necessary,”
said.
Court Senior Judge Emanuel cap

he
“I want to, as much as I
keep my witnesses to

A. Cassimatis at 9 am. myself and my client at that

Monday.

" early stage. But where the

The judge then will have' prosecution is well aware of a .

10 days to rule on whether' witness ... then I can feel free

.charges against the men to put that witness on the
should be bound over for stand as early as the prelimi- -

icourt or dismissed.

Robertson and eight other
men are charged in the July
21, 1969, ambush murder of .
Lillie Belle Allen. The eight
\are accused of shooting at the
‘woman and her family’s car. !
‘Robertson is accused of hand- |
ing out .30-06 ammunition fo |
white gang members and'

{urging them to “kill as many” |

blacks as they could.

Lawyer’s tactics: Gri-
maud — who stressed that
he can only speculate as to '
Costopoulos’ strategy — said |
there is nothing wunder-.

torney playing his client’s

“The court of public opin- |

side of the story to the public. !,

”i

“It’s being a good lawyer,”
'he said, but added that de-
fense attorneys have to be:
circumspect about taking the
uncommon step of putting on
‘witnesses at a preliminary"
thearing. : !

“‘through the roses on this

i “Youve got to tiptoe
stuff ... and Bill Costopoulos
knows that,” Grimaud said.
“He knows he has to put on

valid witnesses. I don’t want

to damage my client’s case by |

looking foolish.”

{ , the preliminary hearing.

. want to know now ...
. the testimony will be at |

handed about a defense at—;j’

i

mary hearing because I'm not |

igoing to disclose something
the commonwealth doesn’t’
already know.”

‘Freezing’ testimony: Gri-
ymaud said Costopoulos may
‘have had another reason to

'put on defense witnesses at

“One of the legitimate pur-
poses that the defense could
have is to freeze the testimo-
ny. They would, I think, :
what |

trial,” he said.

Grimaud said he specu-
lates Costopoulos “did not
put those witnesses on in
order to have the case thrown
out, simply because you had |
so much (commonwealth) tes-
timony,” he said. “But maybe
he did.”

Costopoulos said he ques-
tioned John Henry Blokzeyl
and James P. Brown “to put
more stone in our founda-
tion,” as well as to show the
climate in York during the
riots. )
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i Two witnesses: First up
was Blokzeyl of Red Lion,
. who was Robertson’s
' 14-year-old neighbor in the
summer of 1969. ‘

He testified to seeing his
late father, Henry John Blok-
zeyl, give Robertson a
.300-caliber Savage rifle and
. six rounds to go with it. He
said Robertson returned the
rifle and five of the original
six rounds to him some five
years ago.

The mayor’s second wit-

ness yesterday was Brown, a
32-year York City Police offi-

. cer who retired in August |

1998 and who saw Robertson
~with a similar Savage rifle
- July 18, 1969, the night city .
Officer Henry Schaad was:
mortally wounded.

Blokzeyl and Brown each
said they’d never seen Rob-
ertson with a .30-06 rifle or .
ammunition — the type of
ammunition he is accused of
handing out to white youths.

While cross-examining |,
Brown, first assistant district
attorney Tom Kelley showed
Brown was not always with
Robertson, so there was no
way Brown could testify with
any certainty that the mayor
did not hand out the ammu-
nition. ,

Kelley also learned from
Brown that Robertson likely
was violating police proce-
dure by -carrying the rifle
that night. Brown also con-
firmed that police knew
- North Newberry Street was a
. “yolatile” area where police
needed to quell emotions and
keep the peace.

Gun debate: Costopoulos
had a different take on the
testimony.

He said it shows “the;
mayor at no time ever gave |

30-06 ammunition”  fo
anyone.

The Lemoyne attorney
also

“misled” Robertson while !

"“confident”

But Cassimatis read aloud
a portion of Robertson’s
grand jury testimony, where
Kelley asked the mayor if he |
armed himself with a .30-06 .
rifle, and the mayor said yes, '
his neighbor had given it to .
him. |
After the hearing, Costo- '
poulos said he doesn’t believe
prosecutors made their case, .
although senior deputy pros-
ecutor Tim Barker said he’s
the common-
wealth did' prove it has
enough to take all nine men

1 to trial.

And the family of Lillie !
Belle Allen also seemed glad
the bulk of testimony was
over.

Although it was painful to
sit through the preliminary
hearing for the men accused
of killing her mother, Debra
Taylor said she was satisfied
with the prosecutors’ case.

“The DA’s done a fantastic

, job,” she said.

Self-defense claim: After
the hearing, Kelley rejected
the claim that armed youths,
including eight of the accus-
ed, fired at Allen in self-de-
fense — or, as Costopoulos
characterized it, protecting
“the women, children and el-

derly.”

Kelley said that when the
Cadillac in which Allen was a
passenger drove up New-
berry Street that night, sen-
tries didnt report it to the
crowd as a suspicious or pos-
sibly dangerous car.

_“The call was, Nigger,
nigger, nigger,”” Kelley said.
“That is nothing other than
saying, ‘Here comes a person
we hate.””

Ritter case: Yesterday’s
hearing had resumed with
testimony from a county de-
tective about what one of the
defendants had told the
grand jury.

Tuesday’s

hearing ad-

claimed prosecutors journed an hour early when '

Cassimatis gave prosecutors

questioning him before the ' and defense attorney Harold

grand jury, and that Robert-

son Wwas

whether ~ he  had

500-caliber or  .30-06 rifle,

Fitzkee time to research ar-
confused about guments on whether county
a Detective

Rodney George

" could testify about defendant
William C. Ritter’s grand-
' jury testimony.

After hearing arguments,
Cassimatis ruled George
could recount Ritter’s testi-
mony.

George said Ritter told the
grand jury he was standing
‘on the Penn Street Bridge
when he shot at least a
“couple shots,” maybe up to
six shots, at the Cadillac
with a .22-caliber rifle. He.
was 225 yaxds from the car, .
according to testimony.

Ritter told grand jurors he
didn’t know if anyone was
inside the Cadillac, and
didn’t immediately learn a
woman had been shot, ac-
cording to George. ‘

“He said he could’ve been
shooting at his friends ... and
that he could've killed some-
one,” he said.

Ritter testified that at the
time of the shooting he was
an “acid head,” or someone
who takes a significant
amount of the hallucinogen
LSD, adding, “T don’t recall a
lot of the stuff I did,” George
recounted.
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GREG MAHANY/STAFF PHOTOGRAPHER

Former York City police officer James Brown speaks to

y.

the media on the steps of the York County Courthouse

yesterday after the preliminary hearing, which was

1
B
[

halted until Monda
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“[York police Officer Charlie Robertson] said, ‘Hey Knousey, what type of weapon is that?’ He threw

omitted, defendant Rick Lynn Knouse testified, “niggers.”
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me a box of shells and said, ‘Kill as many . . . as you can.” Asked to say the word he had just -
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.Prosecution

—'witness says
. York victim
| carried gun

'BY PETE SHELLEM
! OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

YORK — A white, street”

.gang member who fired a:

shotgun at a car during the:

city’s 1969 race riots said a
black woman killed in the
blaze of gunfire was holding a .
gun before she was shot.

‘While there is no evidence
to support Gregory H. Neff’s
testimony that Lillie Belle Al-

.len was .armed when she

exited the car, the statement
feeds into defense contentions
that the suspects believed they
wereacting in self-defense.

“I saw a blue handgun in
her hand,” said Neff; the lead-
er of the Girarders street gang
who admitted firing at Allen’s
car and cut a-deal to testify for
York County prosecutors.

Neff’s- testimony capped a

day of dramatic testimony in

York County Court in which

another former gang member . :|
" said he felt they had a “license : '|'

to kill” because Mayor Charlie
Robertson, then a city pohce

i officer, handed out ammuni-
. #ion and told them to kill
 blacks.

. Lynn Knouse.

really pumped us up to ba- -
.sically take care of things be- .
* cause they couldn’t.” "

“It felt insane,” said Rlck
“The police

_ After hearing testimony
from -other witnesses whose
testimony seemingly -cut both

" ways yesterday, the prosecu-

tion abruptly announced it in-
tended to.rest its case today.
Senior Judge Emanuel A.

Cassimatis said he would give °

i attorneys two days to prepare
. for closing arguments after
+ testimony closes. He will then
. render a decision on whether

there is enough evidence to
send the cases against the six

men charged with murder —
including Robertson — to;

- trial.

' GREGORY H. NEFF

‘Belle Allen was holdlmg Anen
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" Neft testified in return for a'
promise that he would be al--
lowed fo plead to a misde-
meanor consplracy charge and
' serve no time in jail. He said
‘he saw other gang members,
including defendant Robert
" Messersmith, shooting at Al-
Ten’s vehicle on July 21, 1969,
but only after he saw she was:
holding the gun at her side.

ON THE STAND |

i

0,
¥

Highlights of testimony
yesterday, the second day ofa

preliminary hearing into the
1969 York race riots killing:

{
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testified that victim:

!handgun when she
stepped out of a.car and
was hit by gunfire _
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" Allen’s sister, Hattie Mosley -
Dickson, who was driving the |
besieged car during the slaying, !
said after yesterday’s court ac-
tion: that there were no guns i
the car. Police reports from the _
time also.said no weapons were
found.

“My sister, my father, my |
mother, my husband, we didn’t
have guns. We had no weap-
ons,” she said. ) )

1 Knouse testified that police

jurged the youth gangs to take

.action.and invoked racist rheto-
‘ric to merge the separate gangs
“ under white power.

. Robertson told the youths

hanging out their car windows,
Knouse testified.
| “He said anything that came
|down the street with a white
| hankie, leave it alone,” Knouse
' said. “If 1t didn’t, shootit.” \
Knouse said he obtained 'a
*30-06. rifle from the Newberry
Street home of Robert and Ar-

thur Messersmith, where other
youths were arming themselves !

on the day -of the killing. He °

said Robertson later gave_him’
ammunition for the gun.

Witnesses testified that a car
with gunmen in the trunk had
shot up the neighborhood the
night before, and a confronta- |
tion took place between the
Messersmiths and a black man |
who accused them of firebomb-
ing his mother’s-home. ‘

The vehicles in both inci-
dents were described as similar '
to the White Cadillac in which ;
Allen, 27, of South Carolina,‘i
was a passenger on July 21,
1969.

Knouse said that when Allen
stepped out of the car, which
had stopped on the railroad
tracks crossing Newberry!
Street, she had her hands in the
air. K

He heard people shoiiting
“she has a gun” and thought he

saw a flash coming from her

hands before dozens of shooters' ;
opened fire. ; !

' An autopsy showed she was |

......

IS

| that residents-of the largely «
‘white neighborhood Wo.u.ld ,
have white handkerchiefs .

slug.
The prosecutors did not call

- East Pennshoro Twp. Police

Chief Dennis McMaster, who

had been waiting two days to

. testify against Robertson.

McMaster told a grand jury

he had seen Robertson handing
-out ammunition to one of the '
defendants. His- testimony .
would have in part correborat-

ed Knouse’s. :

Knouse said Robertson and];

other officers told the youths to

- protect their neighborhoods
+ and kill as many blacks as they

could. ’

Robertson’s attorney, Wil-
liam C. Costopoulos, persuaded
Cassimatis to allow Knouse in

the courtroom when McMaster |

testified to see if he could iden-
tify him as one of the other offi-
cers with Robertson. *

» McMaster said yesterday he
did not know why he was not
called to testify,

"Pete Shellem may be reached
at 255-8156: or pshellem@patriot-
newscom.

*struck with a rifled shotgun
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' ROBERT STONER

. testified he called police -

toreport-armed youths in
the neighborhood but got - .

_ o response, After Allen
- Was shot, he said, he saw

Charlie Robertson‘talking
with other defendants,
who were still armed.
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' RICK LYNN-KNOUSE

said he felt he had a

“license to kill” after
. Charlie Robertson.and

other police officers
handed him ammunition

“and told him to kill as

|
L

many

blacks as he could, ‘

= -
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'Hattie Dickson, centér; sister of 1969. shooting victim Lillie Belle Allen, is flanked by Al-
len’s childfen, Debra Taylor and ‘Michael Alien, during a news conference yesterday at.
the York County Courthouse. Dickson, who was driving the carin which- her sister was
iriding just pefore her death, said there were no gunsin-hercar. . ., v
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accused says

Three others, including’
- Knouse, have waived a prelim- |
inary hearing and reached’
4 . " deals with the York County
out of the movie “Bonnie and | gictiict attorney to testify in
| Clyde.” The part where federal ' 40, hope -of getting a lenient
agents ambush Faye Dunaway ' gentence, !
and Warren Beatty in thelr 1, the quiet of the cold, cav- !
getaway car. They riddle it gpous courtroom, the image '
with bullets, a hailstorm of o that movie ambush, of that ¢
gunfire-sofierce that it shakgs old Packard bouncing up and:
the car. - ‘ ., down from the force of the bul-:
Two years. after the movies

ick Knouse thought *1ets, ,
%?%:QSR;%J}{I?S;S?M Scegne i of everyone who saw the film at

; veal ' the theater in 1967, or caught it
 again— only forreal.

2 (adillac: .,on cable TV late at night.

| Itwasa white Cadillac agﬂéeg +“The passing of 32 years may

with four black people, made Allen’s death seem
 was stopped on predominantly | have made Allen's feih see :
_ white Newberry Street during | 1ike 2 faded piece of the past,
' the race riots of 1969, and gun- | but the movie scene cited by

men hidden on: rooftops and in | Knouse in his descy1pt1or; of lthe
alleys Wer riddling it with! bulletravaged car in which she
" bullets ‘ v was riding drew a vivid, terri-
bullets. - fying picture.
‘ Prosecutors charge that gang
members, including teen-agers
from the Newberry Street Boys,
a gang that hung out on the
street where Allen was shot,
' fired at the car.

Several of the defendants
who have been charged were
gang members, according to
testimony. Knouse admitted in
court that he fired two shots
but denied hitting Allen. He
" said one struck a store on New-
_berry, a street of working-class
row_ houses; he didn’t know

'BY JIMLEWIS n
" OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

YORK — I;c was like a scene ;

",‘THE ASS;OC!MZED\PRESS /1969
Lillie Belie Allen was. ;shot
after stepping out of the car| Wwhere the other shot landed.

in which she had been rig|. Allen and her family were
ing, after it stalled. . driving to the store for grocer-
ad¢ o . ies, according to testimony by
. Allen’s sister, Hattie Mosley
{1 Dickson, who was driving the

A woman, 27-year-old Lillie
Belle Allen; died in the gunfire
after she climbed out of the
car. The foree of the shooting -
" knocked her out of her sneak-

ers. Her shoes sat, empty, on
the street as her body lay be-
yond. ) ‘

“It was insane,” Knouse tes-
tified yesterday in York Coun-,
| ty Court iy the second day of a 1
“preliminal'y hearing for six .

3 encharged in Allen's death. |

— Firing rocked car,

likely played in the mind’

Vot
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. Cadillac that night. - |

Sitting on folding chairs, the
crowd in the old brick court-
house’s largest courtroom grew

~ still as witnesses described the -

. shooting. Defense attorneys,

., seated at a long row of tables

- before the judge, took turns.

. prodding memories foggy from

. the passage of decades. The

. marble clock on the back wall
was frozen at 2 o’clock; the
hands never moved. ‘ “

On the night of Allen’s death,

. so many shots were fired thata '
haze from the blazing guns still
hung over the street when po-

.lice arrived, testified Robert
Stoner, an employee in York
County’s juvenile justice sys-
tem at the time who was in the |
neighborhood when the shoot- |
ing happened. ;

The street that day was filled |
with guns, Stoner testified — .
guns on stoops, residents carry-
ing guns, gang members carry- .
ing guns. Newberry Street,
Boys. Girarders. Swampers. ‘

He called the police and told :
thém it was a “scary situation.” .

The police said they were
keeping an eye on it, Stoner tes-
tified.
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The bullet-riddled car in which Lillie Belle Alien was riding.
shortly before she was shot to death on July 21, 1969,

Hours later, the Cadillac was
riddled by “a tremendous vol-
Jey” of shots as Stoner talked to
residents néar Newberry

Street, he said. Stoner dove to

the ground when he heard
.them. He had served in Viet-
nam.

For Dickson, thé rain .of bul-
lets seemed to last a long time,
she testified. She ducked -down.
Her husband, in the passen-
iger’s seat, and her parerits, in
the back seat, ducked, too.

They could hear Allen moan-

ing “Somebody please help
me,” as she lay outside the car,
Dickson said. ‘
The bullets rocked the Cadil- .
lac back and forth, she testified. i
“Just so many pinging and so ‘
many booms and ... oh, my |
God,” she said, overcome by the |
memory that played in her
head. ;
Jim Lewis may be reached at
255-8479 or jlewis@patriot-
news.cont. T |
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BY Jim LEWIS
OF THE ‘PATRIOT-NEWS

‘through the crowd of journal-
+ists, the legs -of his gray trou-

sers flapping wildly, as he left a .

preliminary hearing yesterday, ¢
ignoring questions shouted at’
him. He ignored a camera lens
stuck against the sedan’s back
window as the car paused in
- rush-hour traffic, then whisked :
" him safely down Market Street.

A small group of onlookers .

'gazed at the spectacle f=

benches and railings across
' street. Some had missed w
to see what would happen

" the courthouse on the first

ofthehearings.

[

ek

~i

Some had hoped to get a
glimpse of a national news ce-
lebrity. Robertson’s arrest had

YORK — Mayor Charlie Robertson H g;.%%%gﬁf :fci}lsd aéllild'l;}lfcﬁeg\irz
bounded down the stairs of the York news does not happen every
County Courthouse, pushing a horde {
of photographers out of his way, and :
jumped into a waiting sedan, hurrying ;
past 19-year-old Marlyse McAdam and
. the message she had written for him
on her T-shirt.
There it was, scrawled in black
marker, dlsplayed as she stood boldly H
on the “curb, silently watching him *
pass: “Robertson,” preceded by an ex- ﬂ
. pletive.
“[It’s] point-blank for how I feel,” the i
. York woman said, explaining the mes-/
t sage on her shirt.
~ The mayor had little tiine to read it
» Robertson, -one of nine people chargec
“"in the shooting deatn of Lillie .’
Belle Allen during the Yark °
-race riots of 1969, rushed |

day in York.

But there were no celebrities.
No CNN. No George Stephano-
poulos grabbing a Kustard De-

; light at the Maple Donuts on

Market Street. Just a line of col-
orful TV trucks from central
Pennsylvania, Baltimore and
Philadelphia, and a crowd of lo-
cal journalists and stringers
swarming every attorney who
wandered out of the court-
house.

“T thought there- would be
more people,” said Ellen Dick-
erson, a York resident, as she
stood across the street from the
courthouse. “When they ar-
rested the mayor, they came
from eve1 ywhere. Now, here it

“is.
Ins1de the cavernous court-’
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' ty, too. Only the “well” —

room, some rows of folding
chairs reserved for the media.

.were empty. The rows reserved

for the public were mostly emp-

space in front of the judge’s
bench — was crowded, as attor-
neys and defendants filled the
metal office-furniture tables
and chairs.

i
Residents such as Shannon

Fells, a custodian at the bank
across the street from the.

"courthouse, had tired of the in-

vestigation.
“It’s a big mess,” said Fells,
as he watched Robertson’s mad

dash from the courthouse yes-

terday afternoon. “I wish they
would just get it over with, I'm
tired of hearing about.it, tired
of seeing iton TV all the time.”
Larry Geier ‘Sr, pulled his
brawny yellow motoreycle into
the parking garage dcross the
street from the courthouse to
watch the crowd. Donned in
black clothes and a white ban-

the,

Sparse numbers of curious attend

from a shady sfone bench at the
garage entrance, while the

three Basset Hounds harnessed

to beds-on the back of his bike -

— he-calls the-dogs Felony, Ma-
licious Mischief and Felonious
Assault — panted. His pets
drew almost as many curious
stares as the courthouse specta- "
cle.

crowd,” said Geier, of York. “A

big crowd is like a mob kind of

crowd, and I don’t like that.
"This should be taken care of

quietly,”
perto Medina of York

‘brought his 12-year-old stepson

to the hearing to give him “a
lesson on justice.” The possibil:
ity that someone could be killed
in York simply because of their
‘race may be too disturbing for
others to see, he said. :

“People would like to stay
away from it, Medina said.
“Especially if you have to live
here.”

Jim Lewis may be reached at

danna, he stared at the seene 2558479 or jlewis@patriot-
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The deals came to light after RotT-i

Lemency due
for testimony
‘about mayor,
co-defendants

BY PETE SHELLEM -
| OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

| YORK — Three of the nine defen-

an during York’s 1969 race riots have
cut deals to testify for the prosecution
in return for lenient sentences.

The three, all of whom admitted fir-
ing shots at Lillie Belle Allen’s vehicle,
waived a. preliminary hearing yester-
day and are expected to testify later
this week against York Mayor Charlie
Robertson and the other five defen-
dants-charged with murder.
| Rick Lynn Knouse, Gregory H. Neff
and Clarence E. Lutzinger agreed to
plead guilty to misderheanor conspira-

they will serve no more than a maxi-

lleast one case, the deal is for the two
or three days. spent in jail awaiting

w Knouse, who is expected to testify to-
- morrow in York County Court, had
! told a grand jury that Robertson hand-
‘ ed him ammunition and told him to
: . kill all the black people he could.

It is unclear what Neff and Lutzing- -

~er will offer, but sources close to the
~ case have said prosecutors were shep-

ping the deals for anyone who would .

(provide further information'against
'Robertson and former gang member
Robert Messersmith, who prosecutors
a]lege fired the fatal shot. ,

ertson’s attorney, William C. Costo-

poulos, objected when Knouse told’

- Senior Judge Emanuel A. Cassimatis.

mum 23%-month county term; in at |

dants in the shooting of a black wom--

cy charges. Prosecutors have promised

that no promises were made in return
for waiving the hearing.
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get Robertson, a former policé;

‘officer who wasn’t even present.

“when Allen was shot. ‘

Costopoulos talked to Knouse's at-

torney, who then told Cassimatis
about the deal. The judge then had
each of the defendants put their under-
stariding of the plea bargain on the re-
cord.

Knouse told the judge that.he is be-

ing treated for mental illness and had
just been released from York Hospital.

'He said he is suffering from
post-traumatic stress syndrome
"due to the rehashing of the
shooting and had been thinking
about suicide.

The most specific agreement

was with Neff, who had a letter
from his attorney to First As-
sistant District Attorney Thom:-,
as Kelly outlining a deal in
which Neff would be sentenced|
.to time served followed by’ 23!
'months “nonreporting” proba—
| tion. ‘

In all three cases, prosecutors
agreed to withdraw the charges
altogether if the other defen- “
dants’ cases were dismissed on
legal grounds.

Cassimatis, who accepted the
waivers, cautioned that the
deals must be accepted by the
judge hearing the trial and are,
not binding.

. Kelly admitted the plea bai-
' gains were like making a “deal.
'with the devil,” but defended
'them as. necessary to get those
“most culpable” for Allen’s.
. Slaying.

i Costopoulos, who last week:
1told The Patriot-News that
‘deals were bordering on a solic-
.itation to perjury. questioned
.why the prosecution would cut
-deals with admitted shooters to

Allen was killed by a rifled
slug fired from a shetgun.
Knouse claims Robertson was
handing out .30-06 rifle ammu-.
nition.

The murkiness of 32-year-old
memories was ‘evident yester-
day as testimony began with
conflicting accounts of the
shooting.

Hattie Mosley Dickson, Al
len’s sister, said she was dr1v-
ing the car to get groceries:
when she saw a.man leaning
out a window with a rifle, :

She said she tried to turn
around on railroad tracks on
Newberry Street and stopped to'
let Allen, who was in-the back |
seat, take the wheel.

In choked emotional testlmo-
ny, Dickson said the bafrage of .
gunfire began after Allen got

| out of the car, and almost im-'

mediately cut down the
27-year-old mother of two.

“We tried to talk to her, tried -
to console her,” Dickson said. !

| “Those bullets were hitting up

agamst the car. You could hear --

‘| the pinging and the bangmg
|| against the car.”
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" Dickson said she got out of:
lthe car to get help, but her hus-|
'band pulled her back in as a
‘bullet whizzed by her head. The'
couple and Dickson’s parents
ducked down until the shooting
stopped, she said. :

A lone police officer ap-
proached the car, shouted for
the shooting to stop and told
the family to drive the car qut ‘
of the neighborhood, she said.

‘An armored police vehicle ar-y

dead. ‘
Dickson could hot identify
' the police officer. When asked
' if was Charlie Robertson, Dick-
' son said, “I can’t say anything

ago.”

Luis Mercado, a former New-
berry Street resident who wit-
nessed the shooting from his
home, said he had taken his
four children to a relative’s

feared what was happening in
the streets.

Dickson said they were un-
aware of the riots that had been
raging in the streets for four
days before the shooting. A’
state of emergency was de-.
clared and a curfew imposed,
two days before the shooting.

S. Frederick Flickinger, a for-
mer member of the Newberry
Street Boys street gang, pro-.
vided the only incriminating
testimony against Robertson
i yesterday.

Flickinger said he attended a
+ rally of more than 100 gang
members the day before the
shooting at which Robertson
told the youths to protect their |
neighborhoods and: repeatedly
shouted “white power.”
Flickinger also said that a’
 day earlier Robertson ap-
proached him and several other
. gang members on a street cor-
ner and said, “If T wasn’t a cop,

1 would be leading commandol

raids against the niggers in the

plack neighborhoods.” ‘
" However, under cross-exami+

. nation yesterday, Flickinger,
\ said he did not remember testi:,
h

|

bived shortly thereafter and :

took Allen to the hospital,’
where she was pronounced

— that’s been 30-some years’

home in Columbia becausé he

However, both Mercado and :

. fying af a 1969 civil rights trial’"
that he saw at least 25 police of-
ficers giving the clenched-fist

. white-power sign, ‘

' member what other gang mem-
bers were present when Rob-
ertson made the commiando

. raid statement.

“T've worked for 32 years to fw

~ forget those names,” Flickinger
said, adding that he had been
persecuted and shot at for testi-

. fying at the-civil trial.

The riots were sparked July«
17, 1969, after a black youth!

' said white gang members had i
doused him with a.flammable/
liquid-and torched him. - f

The youth later admitted het

- sét himself on fire playing with
> lighter fluid, but ‘the rumor
spread and acts of violence.
flared-throughout the city.

' Three days before Allen was,
killed, a white police officer,’
Henry Schaad, 22, was fatally:
shot while on patrol in a black'
neighborhood. ‘ f

Schaad’s Kkillers were never,
caught, but the same grand
jury that investigated Allen’s.

. gleath is looking into his’slay-

| ing.

v Pete Shellem may be reached

' at 255-8156 or pshellem@patriot-

|‘news.com.
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He also said he could not re- |
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“The news media surround attorney William €.

topoulos, ore of Charlie

Cos

outside the courthouse. —————— ——

Robertson’s lawyers,.
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Justice for
~ Schaad

6 6 X A T hat about Schaad?”
W How many times have
those words been uttered in
York over the last few weeks?

“P've had it up to here reading about
charges for the murder of that black
woman in 1969. When are they going to
make arrests for the murder of the white
cop?” These unsigned letters slither into
our mailbox on a daily basis — the ano-
nymity removing all doubt as to the send-
er’s essentially racist implications.

As if this were necessarily a package

deal.
As if jus-
- tice in one
It’s time for unsolved
anyone with murder had
. . any bearing
information on the per-
missibility of
about_the Tastice inan-
shooting of oﬂ}erc.1
t doesn’t.
Henry Sc_haad Our legal
to share it system is not
ith constrained
wi by any s,}lch
prosecutors. “if, then
logic — par-
ticularly not
on the basis
of the respective race of the victims.
The “score,” as York Mayor Charlie

Robertson so callously asserted in Time
magazine, is not 1 to 1.

| As the victims’ families might point
out, if there is a score, then it’s -1 to -1.

Anyway you add that up, it’s a losing
‘score for our community as a whole.

But ultimately, this isn’t about win-
‘win or lose-lose situations. It’s about jus-
tice. And the hard fact is that both of
. these cases are worth pursuing regardless
of whether both or either ever result in
convictions.
To be sure, the possibility of failing to
achieve justice for the riot-related mur-
. ders of both Officer Henry Schaad and
 Lillie Belle Allen is a dismal prospect.

But prosecutors would be derelict in
. their duties if they declined to pursue one
' promising case simply because evidence
:‘,in the other was less concrete.

W, e
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Does anybody truly believe that will
occur, though? Is there any credible
' reason to doubt the district attorney’s ex- -
i planation that he had to start somewhere ster:
" 50 he presented the grand jury with evi-

A8AAPH 40508

* dence in the case with the most fully de- ication: # 2 A
veloped leads, and that the investigation iting Office:
will now focus on the Schaad murder?
No, of course not. g:

y

. Yet on and on the anonymous grum-

/iblers go about justice for blacks but none
for whites.

|~ Let’s hope Wednesday’s news quelled
'their unfounded, misguided concerns.

it Officer Schaad’s family confirmed that
; authorities had exhumed his body to per-
, form an autopsy looking for further evi-

| dence to prosecute the three-decades-old

| | case.

'/ While the slain officer’s loved ones

|| were uneasy at the thought of his final

\J resting place disturbed, they expressed
hope the exhumation will help lead to jus-
tice for the rookie officer mortally
wounded by a sniper’s bullet.

We share that hope — along with the
hope that the unearthing was not a sign
of desperation on investigators’ part, as
some legal experts have theorized.

If the Schaad case depends on ;J

| 81-year-old evidence that may have !
Iturned to-dust, say legal experts, prosecu-
| tors may have a difficult time supporting
murder charges — without, that is, the
‘help of the sort of eyewitness testimony !
1that has clearly led to nine indictments

for the killing of Lillie Belle Allen.

So in that sense, the “what about
Schaad” worriers are right.

It’s time — long past time, actually — i
for anyone with information about the |
shooting of Henry Schaad, the only York
officer ever killed in the line of duty, to
share it with prosecutors.

It’s time for members of the community

A89MH D 4D

SCARGHED Y ____ INDEXED
seriALZED LL _Fiep ¢ L~

viflho know who ;hot Hemy-Scliiiaid to find y “be
the courage and conscience to help solve e 20
this murder. e 2g 2001 b7c

It’s time for York’s ugly past to be fi-
.nally covered over by justice rather than
denial.
It’s time for both Henry Schaad and
Lillie Belle Allen to rest in peace.

FBI/DOJ
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1969 RIOT SLAYINGS

N B

By .BILL CAHIR
Washingion, D.C., bureaw

the racial nature of both
deaths.

Already, the FBI is exam-
ining the case against nine
white men charged with the
ambush slaying of Lillie Belle
Allen during the riots, be-
cause it involves accusations
that a policeman may have
violated the victim's civil
rights.

However, the shooting of
rookie York City police officer
Henry Schaad three days ear-
lier, by a group of black men
who fired at an armored car
in which Schaad was riding,
, probably doesn’t raise federal
issues, legal experts say.

“They were private citi-
. zens, not government actors,

even if the killing was racial-
ly motivated,” said law_pro-
fessor Chuck Weisselberg,
director of clinical law pro-
grams at the University of
California, Berkeley. “On the
other hand, if a police officer
kills a civilian with a racial
_ motive, that’s a federal civil
" rights violation because the
| defendant is a police officer.
* York Mayor Charles Rob-

FBI: No
§chqad
I.nqmry

on police actions against
citizens, not the opposite

" ertson, a police officer at the

e Below)

Federal involvement in the 1969 York
riots killings is far more likely to focus on the
case of a white policeman charged in the kill-
ing of a black woman than the slaying of a
white policeman by black gunmen, despite

Schaad
... FBl says

doesn't likely
raise federal
issues.

Allen

... FBl is ex-
amining case
of those
charged in
her death.

|| Schaad case only if it were |
. | shown civilians conspired to

time of the kiiling, i§ one of
nine men charged with murder

21, 1969, slaying of Allen, a 27-year-old visi-
tor from Aiken, S.C. Robertson is accused of
inciting white gang members to violence and ' -
providing ammunition to some of those who

shot at Allen or her car.
Wednesday, Pennsylvania’s

Black Caucus called for a federal prosecutor
to investigate the case, both to get the case
resolved, and “because of the message it
sends regarding how seriously we, as a state

and nation, take such atrocities.”

Linda Vizi, spokeswoman for the Philadel-
phia office of the FBI, confirmed last week
‘that the agency is conducting a
civil rights investigation in the Allen case by

monitoring the local prosecution.

But Casey Stavropoulos, a spokeswoman
for the U.S. Justice Department, said while

Federal investigators
could get involved in the!

i

‘deprive their victim of his
civil rights, said Richard
- Singer, professor of criminal -

" ilaw at Rutgers University '
+ ' Law School at Camden.
shooting !

,  “The problem with (the
irelevant federal law) is that
it requires that they conspire
'not just to injure him, or kill
thim, but they do so to pre-
vent him from exercising con- |

stitutional or federal
statutory  rights,” said
Singer. |

N Statute exemption: The

" dJustice Department can

| | pursue criminal civil rights

| cases after the usual five-
year statute of limitations ex- |

pires if the cases involve an
“intentional” killing.

Such was the case When,g
in June 1964, federal civil
rights authorities launched !
an investigation into thet

newspaper, city ard state.)
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in the July
workers who vanished

Philadelphia, Miss.

While  state
Legislative
uties;  ultimately
ment secured

preliminary
their-civil rights.

Angeles
King.

Nationally, the dJustice:

Department  gets

. 12,000 complaints every year | OQ
alleging criminal interference | &
'with civil rights, and about \ R
: 2,500 of them are investigat- &
ed by the FBI. Prosecutors
file charges in 50 to 100 cases
for alleged police misconduct

'each year.

The division also has a .
special litigation section that |
 investigates patterns of prac-

| tice within police -depart-|
.. ments , that might indicate |

- widespaead
| civil rights:

~~

AR3A oY -40508

death of three civil rights |
visiting a burned church in

charges
against 19 white men, in- |
cluding a sheriff and his dep- |

dropped, the Justice Depart- 5
convictions ,
three years later against
seven suspects on federal
charges of conspiring to de- i
prive the murdered men of 1

The Justice Department’s
Civil Rights Division in-
cludes a criminal section,
which investigates miscon- .
duct by police officers, such

" as the racism alleged this |
! year in the Cincinnati police
| department, or the case of
the patrolmen who beat Los |
motorist Rodney |
|

abuse of cjtizens’,

after 3

{

were |

{

about | /

N

|
’

!
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By ELIZABETH EVANS
}Dispatch/Sunday News

A judge has denied a prosecutor’s request
to delay the preliminary hearing for York
Mayor Charles Robertson and eight other
men charged with the 1969 race-riot murder
of Lillie Belle Allen.

Yesterday, Common Pleas Court Judge
John H. Chronister ruled the hearing will be
held June 25 as scheduled.

Tom Kelley, first assistant district attor-
ney, had cited a possible time crunch for
prosecutors in his petition to delay the hear-
ing a month.

In that request, Kelley said a preliminary
hearing for another complex case, involving
many victims, was set for June 28 just four
days after the hearing for the defendants in
the riot slaying. That case involves William
Michael Stankewicz, accused in the Feb. 2
machete attack at North Hopewell-Winters-
town Elementary School.

Kelley wrote that the consolidated hearing
for the nine men accused of Allen’s murder is
expected to last three days.
| But Chronister, president judge of York

County’s Common Pleas Court, ordered the
consolidated hearing to “proceed as sched-
uled.” He offered no written explanation.

Hearing delay rejected

First court date in riot case will stay on schedule
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Chronister ruled on the motion because’

Judge John C. Uhler is on vacation.
Kelley’s petition said the defendants’ at-

torneys — except for William Costopoulos, ’

who is representing Robertson — were will-

ing to have the hearing rescheduled for July

23-25. .
The accused: Those charged with homi-

cide and first- and second-degree murder in

the July 21, 1969, ambush slaymg of South
Carolina res1dent Allen are:
H Robertson, 67

M Robert Messersmith, 52, of Perkiomen- ‘

ville

M Arthur Messersmith, 47, of Windsor
Township

B Gregory H. Neff, 53, of York

W Rick Lynn Knouse, 48, of York

B Clarence “Sonny” Lutzinger, 49, of York

M Chauncey Gladfelter, 49, of Windsor
Township

M William C. Ritter, 50, of Springettsbury

Township

M Thomas P. Smith, 50, of Manchester
Township

Robertson is accused of inciting white
youths to kill blacks, and providing them am-
munition. The other men are accused of
shooting at Allen and her family.
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Riot probe arrest
leads to decision
after primary win

BY IRVIN KITTRELL IHl
OF THE PATRIOT-NEWS

YORK — Facing a growing
wave of calls for his resignation
and to not seek a third term,
embattled Mayor Charlie Rob-
ertson met his adversaries half-
way yesterday by saying he has
withdrawn as a candidate for
re-election. .

Robertson, who has been
charged with murder in the
death of a black woman during
civil unrest in York in 1969
when he was a police officer,
said he realized it was “not pos-
sible” to serve four more years
as mayor and wanted to save
' the city from more unrest,

{ He reiterated that he won't
resign. “As of today, I am no
longer a candidate for mayor,”
he said outside his York home,
.| “I'm going to spend my last sev-
en months in office working
hard for the city of York, and
' T’m going to enjoy it.”
. 'Robertson’s announcement
fell short of the wishes of the
York chapter of the National
Association for the Advance-
ment of Colored People. At a
| rally yesterday-on the steps of
City Hall, chapter President :
Leo Cooper called on Robertson |

A e m o o el md

Robertson

1

race

for mayor

GARYDWIGHT “
York Mayor Charlie Rob- ‘
ertson plans to “enjoy” his |
last seven months in office. |

INSIDE

{7 Robertson career timeline . A7

to withdraw and resign.

Robertson’s announcement
came nine days after he defeat- :
ed Councilman Ray Crenshaw
by less than 100, votes in the
Democratic mayoral primary.

Crenshaw said Robertson did
the right thing by withdrawing.
“Things have happened so
fast,” he said. “I stated from the
begmnmg that if he was indict-
ed, he should step down, and he
has.” )

Crenshaw, the city’s first
black candidate for mayor, said
he will try to be the Democratic
Party’s candidate in November. |

“Someone must fill the void,”!
he-said. “I hope that will be me.

‘Thave proven that I can win.”

_Fugene DePasquale, chair:

s
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man of York County Democrat-

. ic Party, said the party’s
20-member executive commit-
tee will meet Wednesday to be-
gin selecting a replacement for
Robertson. The Jprocedure be-
gins with receiving applica-

tions from prospective candi-

. dates. By July, the executive
committee is scheduled to se-
lect a replacement.

| “We are going to do our best

"to find a nominee that all the

- city can'be proud of,” he said.

, DePasquale said Crenshaw
. has been the only person to ap-
ply, but he expects more.

{ “He obviously will be getting
'strong consideration,” he said.

, Robertson said he will not en-
jdorse anyone, but he will sup-
, port the candidate.

. Nancy Black v1ce chalrwom-

-

can Committee, said she was
unaware of the mayor’s an-
nouncement. She said the Re-
publican Party and its mayoral
candidate, Betty Schonauer,
will adjust.

Robertson’s is ore of nine
white men charged in the July
21, 1969, death of Lillie Belle Al-
len, 27, of South-Carolina.

According to:grand jury testi-
mony, Robertson, who was a
city police-officer in 1969, hand-
ed ammunition to white youth
and told ther to “kill as many
niggers as you. can.” That am-
munition was used to fire on
‘the car Allen was in, the testi-

mony said. Robertson admitted

he had racist views in the ’60s,

but has denied involvement.
The grand jury has -recom-

mended 11 mdmtments in. the

an of the York County Repubh- )

_l@patriot-news.cont.__
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“Allen case. No arrests have
been made in the July 18, 1969,

death of white rookie city po-

lice officer Henry C. Schaad,
who was shot on the f1rst day-of
civil unrest.

Bric MenZer, the c1ty s Direc-
tor of Economic Development,

said “there’s a certain amount

of sadness” about Robertson’s
decision. “He came to that deci-
sion on his own. I think at the
end of the day, he recognized
this is-probably what’s best for
the city of York, hot for Chaylie
Robertson.” )

Menzer said Robertson will -

continue to run the day-to-day
operations of the city.

Staff writer Jerry Gledson .

contributed to-this.report.

Irvin Kittrell III may be -

reached at 255-8412 or ikittrel-

— = -
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YORK COUNTY DETECTIVES OFFICE

The following investigation was conducted by Special

. Agent bt York, Pennsylvania, on August 2, 2001: b6
- b7C

York County| |
provided the following information in connection with the
investigation into the racially motivated homicide of LILLIE
‘BELLE ALLEN in 1969:

provided copies of the YORK COUNTY b6
l | BUREAU arrest booking forms for each of the nine b7¢
defendants charged in this matter. Additionally,| |
provided the specific criminal complaint and affidavit in
connection with each defendant. The following is a list of the
nine charged individuals, including descriptive data:
b6
1 b7c

8. CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON, white male, Date of Birth
April 12, 1934, Social Security Account Number 162-26-5606,
address 828 West Princess Street, York, Pennsylvania.

02f $H-90508 -H]
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1

b6
9. b7C

| |advised that defendants : ch

Legal proceedings are scheduled for

August 24, 2001 to begin hearings into the "delayed prosecution'
motions filed in behalf of the other six defendants.

[ bé
advised that the investigation appears to indicate that the focus b7cC
of the prosecution would be | |

| |advised that active investigation b6
continues as additional witnesses are being sought, located and b7C
interviewed. Exhumation orders for both LILLIE BELLE ALLEN and
Police Officer HENRY C. SCHADD, have been obtained and autopsies
are being conducted. Final reports have not been received but
additional metal fragments have been obtained in both autopsies.
opined that the two remaining iSC

individuals that were included in the Grand Jury's presentment,
but have not been charged, will likely not be charged, unless the
continuing investigation uncovers additional evidence against
those two individuals.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

A
REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 01/02/2002 | 08/24/2001-12/28/2001
TITLE OF CASE ' | REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON, )
York Police Department, SA drj b7cC
York, Pennsylvania; CHARACTER OF CASE
LILLIE BELLE ALLEN COLOR OF LAW-WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE
(Deceased) - VICTIM

REFERENCE

Philadelphia FD-610 dated 01/29/2001; and report dated
08/24/2001.

P*

ENCLOSURES

Enclosed for the Bureau are the following:

1. Copies of newspaper articles from The Patriot News,
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, daily newspaper for the following
dates: 11/21/2001 and 12/19/2001.

2. A copy of an article from the York Dispatch, a
daily newspaper from York, Pennsylvania, dated 12/19/2001.

3. A copy of the Order filed by Bucks County Common
Pleas Court Senior Judge Edward G. Biester, Jr., in regard to all

SPECIAL AGENT
APPROVED IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW

COPIES MADE:
2- Bureau

f— DOJ, Civil Rights Unit

PHILADELPHIA (282A-PH-90508)
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DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT Notations ‘ U WA
Agency
Request Recd.
Date Fwd. . bé
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defendants and, in particular, to case number 3320CA2001, the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania versus Charles Robertson.

LEAD

PHILADELPHIA
AT HARRISBURG, PA

Will continue to monitor local prosecution under the
guidelines of a Pending Inactive matter.
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Cover Page




FD-204 (Rev. 12-1-95)

Copy to:
Report of:
Date:

Case ID #:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

’ ‘
. 4

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Department of Justice #144-63-800
Attention:

SA offic:. Philadelphia Field
OffIce

01/02/2002
282A-PH-90508

PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON,

York Police Department,
York, Pennsylvania;
LILLIE BELLE ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM

COLOR OF LAW - WITH FORCE/VIOLENCE

On November 19 and 20, 2001, hearings were held in the
York County District Court, York, Pennsylvania, regarding
motions filed by the defendants requesting dismissal of
the charges based upon "delayed prosecution". Arguments
were presented before a visiting judge, Senior Judge
Edward G. Biester, Jr., Bucks County Common Pleas Court,
who, after two days of arguments, indicated he would make
a ruling on this issue on December 18, 2001.

On December 18, 2001, Judge Beister denied the motion
for dismissal of the charges in regard to the "delayed
prosecution" and denied certification of this issue to the
Superior Court of Pennsylvania.

On December 21, 2001, the York County District
Attorney's Office advised that other actions are pending
in this collective matter. The York County District
Attorney's Office advised that still pending are: motions
to suppress evidence based upon a search warrant that was

executed in this matter; a motion t?_dlsmiss_thg_gnzlxg___j
York Countv Bench from this matter:

No dates have been set for trial
OT argumencs on € Iisted pending issues.

- pP* -

DETAILS: Investigation continuing.

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI

and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.

b6
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b6
b7C
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after 32 years -

Riot murdelf ruhng put off -

: ny, former and current law en-

" forcement officials attempted to:

* . explain why it took more than
three-decades to make arrests,

D1smlssa1 sought

BY TIMOTHYD. MAY ~ - . ¢

< A

OF THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

YORK — A judge said he
won’t rule until at least next

T | month on whether charges

ANGELA GAUL / OF THE ASSOCIATED PRESS
‘Michael ‘Allen, -son of Lillie
Belle Allen, talks with his
aunt Hattie Dickson yester-
day as they leave the York
County Courthouse. Closing
argumerits will be heard Dec.
18 in a case ‘involving nine
men accused of killing Allen
in 1969.

against nine white men accused

. of murdering a black woman 32

years -ago should be dismissed

= -or forwarded to trial.

Bucks County Common Pleas
Judge Edward G. Biester Jr.
said he would wait until Dec. 18
to hear closing arguments. De-

fense attorneys.want the ’

charges dismissed because they
say too much time has passed
since Lillie Be]le Allen’s kill-
ing.
During two days of testimo-

including that of Mayor, Charlie
"Robertson, who was ‘a‘police of-

» Ticer at the ‘time of‘ Allen’s

death in Tly 1969.

Biester — who was “brought
in to hear the case in York
County when Judge John Uhler
recused himself because he isa
former district attorney —'said
he needs time to review written
matefials and grand jury testi-
mony. He said it is 'possible he
could issue a dec1s1on on the
matter Dec. 18.

. Both sides said no matter
what the decision, there is like-
1y to be an appeal.

“I don’t think there was ever
any intentional delay,” said
William C_ostopoulos, Rob-

"‘9—'12&4 /‘

Both sldes said no matter

what the decision, there is.
likely to be.ap appeaj;

.ertson’s lawyer  “i think there

was ‘either neghgence of the
highest order .-.-. or there was
a societal judgment call made
in 1969 [not to investigate].”
Lead-iprosecutor Ed. Paskey
said defense attorneys failed to
establish there was any 'negli-
gence or. intentional delay in
not brmgmg the case before
now. -
Before the hearmg con-
cluded, prosecutors questioned
a county detéctive about wit-
nesses he recently interviewed
about Allen’s shooting, which
happened during the city’s 1969
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raceriots.

Rodney George; a detective
for: the York County distiict at-
torney's office, said while some
of the' 309 people questmned in
the tasé were interviewed
‘around the time of the murder,
mast weré not.

rGeorge said some witnesses
who were interviewed by ‘the
 state police" in 1969 gave him
' new information when he re-in-
térviewed them, and that sever-
al .people apparently lied to in-
vestigators 32 years ago.

‘For example, he said defen-
dant Robert Messersmith
blained the shooting on another
‘man ‘who -committed suiéide
last: year after investigators in-

terviewed -him about the mur--

der

~:Messérsmith, a former gang
member “put the shooting on
‘Donnie Altland” in a May 2001
interview,: George said. When

~Messersiith - was interviewed .

‘by state police in 1969, he sa1d
€ had' gone into'his house, as
“the car’ carrymg Alien entered

h1s neighborhood where she
was shot, |

In early 2000, George also in-
"_tervlewed Altland ‘who took hlS
life‘thé next.day: *

.Twa other men who were not
interviewed until Tast year told
George they had information

about Rebertson'attempting to
destroy evidence related to the

" investigation. Prosecutors later

declined to specify what that
evidence was.” -

The prosecutors are trymg to
prove that they uncovered doz-
ens of new leads that justified a
re-examination of. the long-un-
solved murder. Defense ‘attor-
neys say it is too late to charge
the men now because too many

.potential witnesses are dead

and critical ev1dence has been
lost.
All the defendants except

-Robértson are accused of firing

at the car in which Allen was
riding when’ she was gunned
down by a white mob on the

.night of July 21, 1969. Rob-

ertson, a city police officer at
thetime of the riots, is charged
with handing ouf bullets and
encouraging whites to kill
blacks before Allen was shot.
All the defendarits have pleaded
innocent,

Allen, 27, a preacher’s daugh-
ter from South Carolina, was
visiting“ relatives in York when
she was killed. Three days

- earlier, York.Police Officer

Henry Schaad was fatally shot
while on patrol during the dis-
turbances. Two black men were
arrested last month and
charged with his killing.

H[Q\lm
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4 his case has been delayed
long enough.” -
— Bucks County Judge Edward G Blester
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As he walked out of the courthouse, Robertson

' sa1d he was not surprised by the decision. Asked
] . . how he felt about the prospect of a trial, he said:

YOI‘k maYOI‘, Othel’s “Ig}cd;l;;z};:oigl yg)&c}lly :ldes estimated that it
acc_used in. H '69 rlots

BY TIMOTHY D. MAY" v o -
OF THE ASSOCIATED PREsss g \‘_ ;:
YORK A Judge yesterday upheld the charges
against Mayor Charlie Robertson. and eight otH.~
er ‘white men accused i the- 1969 killing of a*~
black woman, rejectmgwthe defense s argument - !

that too much time-: had»passed to allow a falr :

trialy b Ty v

. Robertson and ‘the other defendants were
charged earlier this year with the murder of Lil-
lie Belle Allen on July 21, 1969, during.a 10-day
riot, Bucks County Judge Edward er-said
the delay in makingiar-t « . S
rests ‘was justified ‘be-
cause new information™
uncovered.by prosecut
ors last year gave them )
a legltnnate réason to. |
reopen the case, -+ . |

Biester also 'said he i
would hot- certify : his -
dec1s1on, which Wwould -
have “entitled defense
attorneys- to 1mmed1-

could be six-months to a year before the case

goes to trial.

“We are happy we’re going to
be able to proceed. We have suf-

iy ﬁc1ent evidence to convict all of

! the "defendants,” York County
District Attorney H. Stanléy Re-
bert said at a news conference
i after the hearing.
Defense attorneys said they’
st111 expected to appeal Bies-
ter's ruling, but that without
his certification, the Superior
Court would have, to decide
whether it would hear an ap-
_peal.
“I didn’t think we were going
to actually 'win at this level,”
; said attorney Frank Arcuri,
When the hearing began last
month, . defense attorneys ar-
.gued that it would be impossi--
ble for their clients to receivea
fair trial because of the lengthy
"delay between the kﬂllng and
the arrests.
They said that some witness-
es who might exonérate the de-

‘ately 'appeal his ruling -
to the state Superior ¢
Court . I

"‘Thls case has beenw S R R .
delayed lonig enough " Blester sa1d .

‘Seven -of.the nine defendants, mcludmg Rob-

ertson, ‘appearéd in ‘court yesterday Several
members ‘of Allen’s famﬂy Who* atterided the,
hearing smiled, hugged ' each other and shook
hands when Blester issued his rulmg S
"1 believed that" everything was-going to be all
right. I just had a feeling this was going to hap®
pen,” saidl Allen’s sister, Hattie- Dickson, whao
was with her on the night of the shooting.

fendants are now dead, memo-
ries have faded, and that
important evidence, including
the bullet fragment that killed
Allen, the car she was riding i in
" and the clothes she was wear: -
ing the day of the murder have
beén lost or destroyed. .
“The 30-year delay has not
only blurred what happened
back then ... but has. also
blurred why the killings were
not prosecuted back then,” Wil-
liam Costopoulos, Robertson’s

[ lawyer, said-in his closing argu-

ments yesterday. “Thirty years
have come and gone, and Char-
lie Robertson has been preju-
diced because of that delay. I'd
like to end thi$ nightmare for

" him today.”

Prosecutors tried to show
Biester that they unearthed
enough -new evidence in their
recent investigation —
launched last year after news-
paper coverage of the unsolved
murders generated new leads
— to warrant their pursuit of

FBl/boJs
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York City Mayor Charlie Robeftson, right, anz
swers questions ‘on'the steps' of the York;
County Courthouse yesterday With his laws
yer, Richard' Oare, left.” - " » - C ot

A . CHRISTQFHEB GLA'SS/OF THE YORK DAILY RECORD
Hattie Dickson, center, sister of Lillie Belle Allen, leads
mémbers of the Allen family to the York County courthouse
yesterday in York. .

the case. They also said the de- . of handing out bullets and en-
fendants failed to produce any couraging whites to kill blacks
evidence proving that the delay “before Allen was shot. All the
hurts their ability to mount-a defendants have pleaded inno-
defense: T cent. ‘
Biester was assigned to hear - . Allen, 27, a preacher’s daugh-
the case in York County Com- ter from South Carolina, was
mon Pleas. court. after Judge. visiting relatives in York when
John Uhler recused himself, cit- she was killed. ,
ing his status as a former York * Henry Schaad, a white York
. Colinty'district attorney. . police officer, also was fatally
All the defendants except shot while on patrol during the
Robertson are accused of firing disturbances; two black men
at a car in which Allen was rid- were arrested last month and
ing on the fourth night of the ri- charged with his killing: A pre-
ots. Robertson, who was a city liminary hearing for both men
c police officer in 1969, is accused , is scheduled to begin today.
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- — : %%"g‘é g.::g 8 :.:U 1969 race riots, is accused of incit- or ,738/% ﬂ)ﬂ h‘ 0/0 @g
Yam' O @ ,48F T E LR ing whites to violence against ssification: HRA
S "LrPrq%%&,’l ;_E’:; 3E,2 blacks and handing out’ ammunj-miting Ofiice:
0T g%r’é’ L F&,ﬁé%i 'tﬁln that was fired at Allen; the’
!:, R LI RAR- - - N others are acc i -
T % K gﬁnaﬁé H Earég her. cused of shooting at' was sentenced to life ilglll)rison ffolz; a
TS E S B 8.5 083 * Biester / denied their * 22-year-old shotgun killing of his
_? m ! a i"’ A8 3_%-5 E;,P« . and also refused to <:eri:if;l i%%“éﬁ;‘: friend, Martin Dillon. In that case,
: m E b 98 'Y AYEE for-appeal, which would have as- the Superior Court s;ded with the
. R S A % ool 85 ' sured the S ior C . ' defense and determined that too
o L 988F wg d° "3 h e oSuperior Court would: mych time had elapsed for the de-
Q g 8_ 88 E&Fg '§ hearthecase In certifyinga case, a’ fendant to get a fair trial,
Q S Efla Bhy S8 Judse acknowledges that judicial! The § Court heard oral
x Bp A2 g BSdddH minds differ and the case law is not | e SUpre %0 P
o wpBe MCEEES clear the i se law 18 not | arguments in May 2000, and it is
- @® = 887, o8 g5 % P °.nk e issue, said, Chnstl.an_] not known when the court will
Yo i ) 50 ¢ g 8 " g ! : 1isecaglc , ali)pea}s coordinator with™, jsgye a rulifg.
m ‘8 EA e é’g%p?,ﬁ B ney’ Aesnnsy (\;r_ama District Attor- | Defense attorney Frank Arcuri,
= é%“. ga -k g*,;} e NS S0 mihl.on‘ o . ! who represents Arthur Messer-
m - S SEEERge B o %W’ n f}: case, the Superior | gmith, said any trial is one year
M. O YF SEwmf e g g :ulr can refuse to hear any ap- | away if a higher court refuses to
m< - @8R A8sHs P ?3 i.t at an fmpromptu press-con g'ear an'%}ppeal, butfthehcas‘?hcogld
P~ Roodg e £ eon-  drag out for years if either the Su-
o .s: g 5L 58 %E 3 f%renceg esterday on the courthouse perﬁ)r Court):)r Supreme Court ac-
. E E 84{33_,?.. EE’ 3 % eps, Ro ertson attorney,Rlchard cepts the case. .
P_-s P e S8 - B Oare said he would appeal simulta- *
i <N BH g o 2%§ neously to both the state Superi As the appeals proceed, Albert
m R =P 28 8% - | Court and the hicher H tp Sor -Barnes, who represents Wllha}m
' T2 Hg g"uqn#’tlg\zb 88 ;preme Court in the Eext 333 © YU «gam” Ritter, said several pretrial
" : ;’8 8% 44 ngi'g o B TR, &% motions must be resolved, including
. m— ’“‘O.’g -gruﬁi, 278 g B » Although the usual next step in ! admission of evidence, the validity
s— 5 Leg B0 @ E ||| the appeals process is the Superior of an investigative grand jury that
o R g gEég i 8873 8 Court,” the Supreme Court can recommended charges in the Allen
o P E] ﬁ,g’nﬁ.‘a’g};’,m "8 ' aceept jurisdiction over any case | case and whether York County
m oL 2R SES “:'&‘g%ﬁ - and hear any appeal it chooses, he | Judge John Uhler should be the
' TS, e & 4% S said. Without Biester’s certification, | trial judge. (Uhler took no action on
— 2 BRI . first deputy prosecutor Tim Batker | the Allen case as a former district
B§L% . . sad the defense has a tougher| attorney from 1974-1978) °
hocB5 5. fight to get the courts’ attention.| Barnes said he warned Ritter to
TS5 58¢E  Typically, the appeals courts want | prepare for a long fight.
el o=258 to review a “concrete record” built: = “T've already told him that we
8 290 :é 6 2 ‘at trial and consider time-delay, will be going at this for a long

cases ‘as post-conviction appeals, he while,” Barnes said.
said. C
The state Supreme Court is now
considering a similar case, Com-
monwealth vs. Scher.
In 1998 dentist Stephen Scher

FBl/nol




FD-350 (Rev. 5-8-81)

(Mount Clipping In Space Below)

Robertson talks to the

: and hig co-defendants in the 1969 riot-era sla

press yesterday after a

{Indicale page, name of
newspapet, cily and state.)

THE YORK DISPATCH
York, Pennsylvania

14 lol
Daily

ol

Dale:
Edition:

Oroug
Cha:)z:cler: 3;83/4 ’p# '{77056)5

Classillicalion:
Submilling Oflice:

BILL KALINA/STAFF PHOTOGRAPHER
Judge refused to dismiss murder
ying of Lillie Belle Allen.

FBI/000




FD-350 {Rev. 5-8-81)

]udge orders’
slaying case "
to go forward

' By ELIZABETH EVANS
‘ Dzsjmtch/Sunday News

A visiting judge refused to dis- :f

(1N

‘ mlss murder charges agamst York *’

" Mayor Charles , Roberfsorni. and his .

co- defendants yesterday, ther of-

" fered-*his own, reﬂec,lons on'the -

39:year-old not‘slaymg casés .

*" “Many people ... who are mem-

_ bers of the commumty may prefer

lifoigee these’ isspes’ :, burled and.}
“put away,” Bucks County, Common ¢

- Pleas Court sénior .-
- Judge Edward G -
+ Biester Jr: said yess
 terday, N
“However, unt11

. they rare resolved .:
.one way or. another
'...n no_amount «of X
tamping .;"-th :
s+down ... is- really’
possﬂ)le, .. .
Only after there,

is' a'resolution in

the murders

Rebert w
~said he was’
of: .pléased with

+.Lilli¢' ;Belle . Allen Judgesdem-_

"and * rookle
Pohce I

ity sion.
Ofﬁcer -

" Henry Schaad during “that ternble .
i, July’} in 1969, Biestér said, can -

people in this commumty f‘put the:

* past fully and permanently behmd;-',
. There is'no-doubt that
this city was ‘convulsed “and’ its”-

this city. .,

social fabric Jjust torn.apart,l.2 .. ne

<

In a 25-minute.ruling . from the

bench Blester dénied motlons from

six of 'the niné Allen defendants to
drop the charges based on’an al-

leged préjudicial ' pre-arrest delay,-‘

of three decades,. -

District Attorney Stan, 2Rebert ’
_said the defense is “pretty much'

out of ammo at this pom
Two-day hearing: B1ester ,“

sided over a hearing on the time- ’
delay .issue Nov, '19-20, During.

»delav »..

A

yesterday’s proceeding, Bies-
ter heard final arguments

. from -attorneys representmg

Robertson, William “Sam”

Ritter, Chaunéey Gladfelter, -

Gregory H. Neff and brothers
Robert’ and Arthur- Messer—
smlth .

The other three de-
fendants — Rick L. Knouse,

'Thomas P. Smith and Clar-

ence “Sonny”. Lutzinger —
have plea agreements and
did not join in the defense ar-
gument that the delay has
compromised their ability to
receive-a fair trial.

Biester also refused a de-

fense request that he certify,

the casé for appeal, which

.woauld have assured the state

Superior Court would hear
the case,

—— |
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After Biester adjourned
the proceeding, Allen’s family
members hugged each other

.:Although defenise " attor-| { and first assistant district at-

_neys, including William Cos-

topoulos; Robertson’s - lead

attorriey, have said they will'

appeal, -the Superior Court
may choose not to hear that
appeal. i . .

Biester’s ' ruling also
means the local case can
move, forward right away,
and prosecutors . said they
predict both the Allen and
Schaad cases will go to trial
in six to nine months.

The preliminary hearing

for accused Schaad shooters
Stephen ' D. Freeland and’

Leon “Smickle” Wrighit was

set to - begin at 1;:30 p.m.
today.

Biester said he denied the
motion becduse it can be

more effectively determined .

after trial, when the trial
record’ can more specifically
pinpoint any prejudice —

“and also because this case
long‘

has ‘been delayed

enough,”
1

No negligence: The judge
said that when prosecution in
the Allen case became possi-
ble, it was’ carried out
promptly.

->~“There was no intentional
to-achieve a tactical

torney Tom Kelley.

“Praise ' the Lord,” said
Hattie chkson Allens
sister,

At a press conference yes-
terday afternoon, Rebert —

who sat through yesterday’s
proceeding with Kelley, chief
deputy prosecutor Bill Graff
‘and first deputy district at-
torney Tim Barker — said,
“we’re obviously very pleased
with the decision.”

{ “Now we can seek justice
i father -than go through the
_appellate  process, which

- could’ve taken years;” Rebert

'said. “We've survived all
those (defense) motions,
which speaks volumes as to
the validity of the (prosecu-
tion’s) case.” -~

Kelley said moving for-
ward to trial is “what’s most
.1mportant to the victims’
.families” in both cases.

] Changing stories: In ar-
guing for dismissal, attor-
'neys for the defendants had
‘claimed the 32-year delay
"has resulted in lost or tainted
witness memories, dead or
otherwise unavailable wit-
nesses, lost or destroyed eyi-




" recent witnesses’ statements
and what they said in 1969. -
.Barker handled the: final
:argument for.the prosecutlon
‘during yesterday’s  hearing,’
‘speaking for . . 40- *minutes
“about how policé ii 1969 had:
no eyewitnesses swilling to .
testify in the Allen homicide, .

N “Thére was no one w1111ng
'to come forward,” Barker
said — nothing to corrobg-
rate rumors ~“and . the
_statements of conﬁdentlal in-
formants. He dismissed .de-
fense allegations that ‘the
DA’s Office’in 1969 deliber-
ately “shelved” the case,

", Henoted that of 28 people
interviewed in' 1969 who
were re-interviewed in the
last twq years by county De-
tective Rodney George, 18
either changed their stories’
or provided new J,nformatmn

It was a lack of Wltness co-
operatlon fat the - time that .
kept law mnforcement from
filing charges in the. case,

Barker argued.

“'I‘hat doesn’t mean th‘e‘

quest *to prosecute fhese
cases concluded,” he said,
adding that of ‘all the former
district attorneys: who testi-
fied at the tlme delay hear-
ing, “not one” 'said, he
wouldn’t have prosecuted if
he had rece1ved new 1nforma-
tion.

Barker also sa1d that in a

:pre,]udlmal delay argument
the defense must show both
‘that prejudice ogccurred and

"that the reasons for the delay -

. were improper, He argued
thé défense did not do that,
an -argument Biester later
agreed with.

He then. pointed out that-
in similar case law, the prej--

e o A S ey e

udicial delay argument was
properly brought” up: after

conviction, He: said} that zat :
this point, only specqlat;on, is’

possible,:
“The trial record 1s crucial
. for how preJudlce is estab-
l1shed ” he said. “These
issues .., will all become clear
at trlal B

’ ‘ BILL KALINA/STAFF PHOTOGRAPHE
‘Rick Knouse leaves the
York County Couithouse
yesterday after a judge re-
fused to dismiss murder

.charges against York

Mayor Charles Robertson
and his co-defendants in
the 1969 riot-era slaying of
Lillie Belle Allen.
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. ‘ STEVE RUSS PH
-Hattie Dickson, center, Lillie Belle Allen’s sister, is surrounded by Lillie Belle Allen’s son, Michael, and other family
members as she answers questions yesterday outside the York County Courthouse.
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IN THE COGRT OF COMMON PLEAS OF YORK COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA

CRIMINAL DIVISION
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 3316 CA 2001
Y. 3
FIRST DEGREE MURDER

SECOND DEGREE MURDER
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b7C

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
3318 CA 2001

. FIRST DEGREE MURDER
: SECOND DEGREE MURDER

.
-

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
' ‘ 3315 CA 2001

FIRST DEGREE MURDER
SECOND DEGREE MURDER
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA °

3314 CA 2001

FIRST DEGREE MURDER
SECOND DEGREE MURDER
b6
b7C
 COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
: ~ o . 3319 CA 2001
V.
FIRST DEGREE MURDER
SECOND DEGREE MURDER
’ b6
b7C
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ,
. : 3320 CA 2001
VY. -
FIRST DEGREE MURDER
SECOND DEGREE MURDER

CHARLES ROBERTSON

. ORDER

AND NOW, to wit , this 18™ day of December, 2001, it is ORDERED AND

DECREED that the Defendants’ collective motions for dismiss_al of the charges herein

due to a violation of due,process rights caused by pre-arrest delay in this matter are

- hereby DENIED.
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It is further ORDERED AND DECREED that Defendants’ collective motions for

[
iy

L

certification of this issue and Order fo the' Superior Court of Pennsylvania are hereby
DENIED,
BY THE COURT: ;™

!
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By RICK LEE
[ and TERESA ANN BOECKEL
| Daily Record staff

|
’ Heading into the pre-trial
| conference for the 1969 murder
of Lillie Belle Allen case, de-
ﬂ fense attorney William C. Cos-
topoulos predicted the most
P important thing to come from
the hearing would be a frial
i date.
[ Costopoulos, one of three
| lawyers for former York Mayor
| Charlie Robertson, said the
! ftrial could begin this summer.
! But the Allen homicide de-
fendants left the York County
Courthouse Tuesday afternoon
with a number of unanswered
questions, including when they

. m Defendants in a 1969 murder case left
court with unanswered questions.

will go to trial.

Allen, a 27-year-old black
woman from Aiken, S.C., was
killed in York in 1969 at the
railroad tracks on North New-
berry Street when shooters
fired at her family’s car. Two
white gangs hung out in that
area — the Newberry Street
Boys and the Girarders.

Tuesday’s hearing before
Judge John C. Uhler to address
all outstanding issues before
trial did resolve a handful of
defense requests.

W Potential jurors may be
questioned individually by at-
torneys during jury selection;

W A request for Uhler to
remove himself from the case
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Edition:
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was taken “under considéra-
tion;”

B Uhler said he is hesitant
to sequester the jury durmg
the tnal

B “Nothing of evidentiary
value” was taken from the
homes of defendants Robert N.
Messersmith and Arthur N.
Messersmith during searches
in 2000 and no items will be
admitted at trial.

B A defense petition fo
have co-defendant and pros-
ecution witness Rick L. Knouse
undergo a psychiatric exami-

nation is “not proper ... at this
time.”
Outside the courtroom,

Knouse tugged at a bracelet
with the letters “WWJD” The
letters stand for the question
“What Would Jesus Do?”

“I'm going to stay honest

Judge hears many requests

through the whole process,” he
said. |
The prosecution, represent- |
ed by First Assistant District .
Attorney Tom Kelley, F1rst
Deputy District Attorney Timo- |
thy Barker and Chief Deputy
Prosecutor Bill Graff, confirm-
ed that any statements Robert
Messersmith made to doctors
during court-ordered mental
health treatment in the 1970s
cannot be admitted at trial.
According to defense attor-
ney Thomas Sponaugle, Robert
Messersmith discussed the
shootings of Taka Nii Sweeney
and John Washington at state
hospitals. Messersmith shot
Sweeney and Washington four
days before Allen was gunned
down. He was later convicted
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LILLIE BELLE ALLEN CASE

Former York Mayor Charlie Robertson,
‘afternoon aftér arguing for a separate tria

left, and one of his attorneys, Richard Oare, leave the York County Courthouse Tuesday
| from eight other defendants in connection with the 1969 murder of Lillie Belle Allen.
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DALY RECORD / CHRISTOPRER GLASS

Another Robertson lawyer, William C. Costopoulos, said the big question is when the trial will be set. Costopoulos predicts it

could be as early as the summer.

of the shootings and served nine
months in prison.

Sponaugle said Messersmith
told doctors about shooting two
people — Sweeney and Wash-
ington — with “pumpkin balls,”

i another name for rifled shotgun
slugs. According to court testi-
mony, Allen also was killed with
arifled slug.

' Barker said that none of the
statements would be introduced
at trial unless first raised by the
defense. To do otherwise, he
said, would impinge on court-or-
dered rehabilitation.

Uhler deferred ruling on
whether the Sweeney shooting
and a pallistics report identify-
ing the projectile that killed
Allen as a rifled slug would be
admissible at trial.

‘to

Sponaugle argued that admis-
sion of both the shooting and the
ballistics report “would pre-
clude (Robert Messersmith) from |
any chance of' getting a fair
frial.”

] think the prejudice would
be just overwhelming if both of
those are admiftted,” he said.

Uhler, likewise, did not rule
on a request to bar statements
allegedly made by Messersmith
York County Detective
Rodney George during the drive

from Messersmith’s home in. |

Montgomery County to York‘
after his April 2001 arrest.

George, one of two witnesses |

to testify Tuesday, said Messer- |
smith told him, “There was no
way they could tell who fired the '
(fatal) shot because there were:
so many people on the street
shooting.”

George said he advised Mes-
sersmith to hire an attorney and
he would give him the opportu-
nity to tell the truth about the

. Allen shooting.

+ “He laughed and said, ‘You,
don’t want to know the truth,”!
George said. “He said, ‘If you
wanted to know the truth tell me
how many police officers did
you arrest? I told him to read
his affidavit. He said, ‘The ani-.

* mals were going to burn the city

|
. down this time.’ |
' “I asked him what animals |
,and he said, ‘You know who I'm J
-talking about,’ ” George said. “
George said he met with Mes- -
.sersmith six days later at York\\
County Prison.

“He said he was banging his
head against the wall and he
,was going to die in prison,”
1George said. “He said, ‘You can’t

|




it

‘put this woman’s body on me. '
' You can’t. Thate to do thisato a |
friend, but it was Donnie Alt-|
:land who killed that woman.
/' Why do you think he was gray by '
} 20?) » 7 \"
i Altland took his own life on;
' April 11, 2000, the day after;
being questioned by investiga-:
| tors about Allen’s death. (
! Unler also did not rule on re-
. quests fo consolidate or sepa-
; rate cases for {rial. ,

Costopoulos argued that Rob-
» ertson’s trial should be severed 1
' from the other defendants’ be-
! cause “the facts are vastly differ-
. ent. He wasn't on the street that
'night and he didnt shoot
i anyone.” .

He told Uhler he wanted fo |
i distance the ex-mayor, a police |
! officer in 1969, from the armed, .
, white street gang members who .
| bunkered down on North New- .
, berry Street to protect their:
! neighborhood. ,

“What they (the prosecution) |
have been trying to do, and |
they've been successful up fo
this point, is put him in bed with
{ them. =

After leaving the hearing, '
Costopoulos said the prosecu-'
tors should not “target” Robert-:
son for “some sort of ethnic
cleansing after 32 years.”

. also wanted Robertson’s case

While Sponaugle and Frank
Arcuri, attorney for Arthur Mes-
sersmith, called for a consoli-
dated trial, Matthew Gover, rep-,
resenting Chauncey Gladfelter, |

separated from the rest. Gover
maintained that Robertson’s

. presence draws too much atten-

-

tion to the case. !

His contention was supported.
by the exodus of media and Rob-
ertson supporters who evacuat-‘\
ed the courtroom when formeri
mayor and his attorneys left
before the end of the confer-
ence.

Uhler dismissed a subpoena |
for York Dispatch reporter Mike |
Hoover. Robertson’s atforneys
had subpoenaed Hoover to testi-
fy Tuesday about an QOctober
92000 article in which he quot'ed ‘f
Knouse as saying he saw police |

. tossing ammunition to people

. the day Allen was killed, but!
. Robertson did not hand out any i

. his reason for dismissing the
. subpoena. - -

ammunition. !

Uhler cited the Pennsylvania
Shield Law, which protects re-
porters from having to disclose
source names or information, as

1

o2
2[102.
2% APk 050D




roavsias

‘ANGELA GAUL / OF THE ASSOCIATED PRESS
Michael Allen, son of Lillie
Belle Allen, talks with his
aunt Hattie Dickson yester-
day as they leave the York
iCounty Courthouse. Closing
arguments will be heard Dec.
18 in a case involving nine
imen accused of killing Allen
fin 1969.

Riot murder ruling puf off

Dismissal sought
after 32 years

BY TIMOTHY D. MAY
OF THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

ny, former and current law en-
forcement officials attempted to.
explain why it took more than
three decades to make arrests,
including that of Mayor Charlie
Robertson, who was a police of-

~ ficer at the time of Allen’s

YORK — A judge said he
won’t rule until at least next

. month on whether charges

against nine white men accused
of murdering a black woman 32
years ago should be dismissed
or forwarded to-trial.

Bucks County Common Pleas
Judge Edward G. Biester Jr.
said he would wait until Dec. 18
to hear closing arguments. De-
fense attorneys.want the
charges dismissed because they
say too much time has passed
since Lillie Belle Allen’s Kkill-
ing.

During two days of testimo-

death in July 1969.

Biester — who was brought
in to hear the case in York
County when Judge John Uhler
recused himself because he is a
former district attorney — said
he needs time to review written
materials and grand jury testi-
mony. He said it is possible he
could issue a decision on the
matter Dec. 18.

Both sides said no matfer
what the decision, there is like-
1y to be an appeal.

“I don’t think there was ever
any intentional delay,” said

Both sides said no matter
what the decision, there is .

“likely to be an appeal.

ertson’s lawyer. “I think there:
was either negligence of the:
highest order . . . or there was
a societal judgment call made:
in 1969 [not to investigate].”

Lead -prosecutor Ed Paskey
said defense attorneys failed to.
establish there was any negli-
gence or intentional delay in
not bringing the case befoie
now.

Before the hearing con-
cluded, prosecutors questioned
a county detective about wit-
nesses he recently interviewed
about Allen’s shooting, which,

happened during the city’s 1969

W.illiam Costopoulos, Rob-
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‘raceriots.

Rodney George; a detective
for the York County district at-

'torney’s office, said while some

of the 309 people questioned in

‘the case were interviewed

around the time of the murder,
most were not.

George said some witnesses
who were interviewed by the
state police in 1969 gave him
new information when he re-in-
terviewed them, and that sever-
al people apparently lied to in-
vestigators 32 years ago.

For example, he said defen-
dant Robert Messersmith
blamed the shooting on another
man who committed suicide

'last year after investigators in-

terviewed him about the mur-
der.

Messersmith, a former gang
member, “put the shooting on

~Donnie Altland” in a May 2001

interview, George said. When

‘Messersmith was interviewed

by state police in 1969, he said
he had gone into his house as
the car carrying Allen entered
his neighborhood, where she
was shot.

In early 2000, George also in-
terviewed Altland, who took his

ife the next day.

Two othier men who were not

" interviewed until last year told
"George they had information

‘ about Robertson attempting to

destroy evidence related to the
investigation. Prosecufors later
declined to specify what that
evidence was.

The prosecutors are trying to
prove that they uncovered doz-
ens of new leads that justified a
re-examination of the long-un-
solved murder. Defense attor-
neys say it is too late to charge
the men now because too many

_botential witnesses are dead

and critical evidence has been
lost.

All the defendants except
Robeértson are accused of firing
at the car in which Allen was
riding when she was gunned
down by a white mob on the
night of July 21, 1969. Rob-
ertson, a city police officer at
the time of the riots, is charged
with handing out bullets and
encouraging whites to kill
blacks before Allen was shot.
All the defendants have pleaded
innocent.

Allen, 27, a preacher’s daugh-
ter from South Carolina, was
visiting relatives in York when
she was Kkilled. Three days
earlier, York Police Officer
Henry Schaad was fataily shot
while on patrol during the dis-
turbances. Two black men were:
arrésted last month and,
charged with his killing.
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“This case has been delayed 1
long enough.” ~ . ‘:
— Bucks County Judge Edward G. Biester

Charges
upheld
in killing

York mayor, others

——

J
o
I

IBY TIMOTHY D. MAY
OF THE ASSOCIATED PRESS

against Mayor Charlie Robertson and eight oth-
er white men accused in the 1969 killing of a

Erhiﬁ too much time had passed to allow a fair
i

Robertson and the other defendants were
charged earlier this year with the murder of Lil-
lie Belle Allen on July 21, 1969, during a 10-day
riot. Bucks County Judge Edward G. Biester-said
the delay in making ar-
rests was justified be-
cause new information
uncovered by prosecut-
T ors last year gave them
a legitimate reason to
'veopen the case.

Biester also said he
would not certify his
decision, which would
have entitled defense
attorneys to immedi-
ately appeal his ruling
to the state Superior
Court.

“This case has been
delayed long enough,” Biester said.

Seven of the nine defendants, including Rob-
ertson, appeared in court yesterday. Several

'LILLIE BELLE ALLEN

hearing smiled, hugged each other and shobk‘
hands when Biester issued his rulmg

1 %1 pelieved that éverything was gomg to be a]l
'right. I just had a feeling this was going to hap-
‘pen,” said Allen’s sister, Hattie Dickson, who
|was with her on the night of the shooting.

accused in 69 riots

members of Allen’s family who attended the

YORK — A judge yesterday upheld the charges

{

|

,Below)

black woman, rejecting the defense’s argument
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As he walked out of the courthouse, Robertson
said he was not surprised by the decision. Asked
how he felt about the prospect of a trial, he said:
I didn’t shoot anybody.”
Attorneys for both sides estimated that it
could be six-months to a year before the case

goes to trial.

“We are happy we’ré going to
be able to proceed. We have suf-
ficient evidence to convict all of
the defendants,” York County
District Attorney H. Stanley Re-
bert said at a news conference
after the hearing. .

Defense attorneys said they
still expected to appeal Bies-
ter’s ruling, but that without .
his certification, the Superior
Court would have to decide
whether it would hear an ap-
peal.

“I didn’t think we were going
to actually win at this level,”
said attorney Frank Arcuri.

When the hearing began last 1
month, defense attorneys ar-
gued that it would be impossi- -,
ble for their clients to receive a |
fair trial because of the lengthy |
delay befween the killing and !
the arrests.

They said that some witness- |
es who might exonérate the de-
fendants are now dead, memo-
ries have faded, and that
important evidence, including
the bullet fragment that killed
Allen, the car she was riding in

" and the clothes she was wear- *

ing the day of the murder have
been lost or destroyed.

“The 30-year delay has not
only blurred what happened
back then ... but has also
blurred why the killings were:
not prosecuted back then,” Wil-
liam Costopoulos, Robertison’s

ST

[ lawyer, said in his closing argu-
ments yesterday. “Thirty years
have come and gone, and Char-
lie Robertson has been preju-
diced because of that delay. I'd,
like to end this nightmare for

" him today.”

Prosecutors tried to show'
Biester that they unearthed
enough new evidence in their
recent investigation —
launched last year after news-
paper coverage of the unsolved
murders generated new leads
— to warrant their ptrsuit of

&%3&% QOSO‘K "75/

FBI/DOJ
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' N CHRISTOPHER GLASS} OF HE Y(‘)RK DAILY RECORD
York City Mayor Charlie Robertson, right, an-
.swers questions on the steps gf thg York
‘County Courthouse yesterday with his Iawg
yer, Richard Qare, left.

CHRISTOPHER GLASS / OF THE YORK DAILY RECORD;

Hattie Dickson, center,

sister of Lillie Belle Allen, leads

-members of the Allen family to the York County courthouse

‘yesterday in York.

the case. They also said the de-
fendants failed to produce any
evidence proving that the delay
hurts their ability to mount a

, defense.

Biester was assigned to hear
the case in York County Gom-
mon Pleas court after Judge

' John Uhler recused himself, cit-

' ing his status as a former York

. County district attorney.

- _All the defendants except
Robertson are accused of firing
at a car in which Allen was rid-
ing on the fourth night of the ri-

‘ots. Robertson, who was a city

‘police officer in 1969, is accused

of handing out bullets and en-
couraging whites. to kill blacks
before Allen was shot. All the
defendants have pleaded inno-«
cent.

Allen, 27, a preacher’s daugh-:
ter from South Carolina, was'
visiting relatives in York when
she was killed. ‘

Henry Schaad, a white York '
police officer, also was fatally
shot while on patrol during the ‘
disturbances; two black men
were arrested last month and '
charged with his killing. A pre- |
liminary hearing for both men

1s scheduled to begin today.
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tion that was fired at Allen; the

others are accused of shooti - ; ,
her. shooting aty was sentenced to life in prison for a

Biester denied thei 92-year-old shotgun killing of his .
and also refused to ce?tri@ai%gné::: friend, Martin Dillon. In that case, |
for appeal, which would have as. the Superior Court sided with the ,

’ foo |
sured the Superior Court would defense and determined that too

o much time had elapsed for the de-
hear the case. In certifying a case, & fendant to geta fairptrial. ‘

Jjudge acknowledges that judicial ‘
minds differ and the case law is not | 4. The Supreme Court heard oral ?
. ; 1SN0t arguments in May 2000, and it is
clear on the issue, said Christian’ ot known when the court will |
Fiscanick, appeals coordinator with! jssue a ruling.
Eé;siiggiﬁziiﬁla District Ator- | Defense attorney F}fank I\?rcuri,
h P . " who represents Arthur Messer-!
Coyr%w’ n thf}lf case, the Superior - gmith, said any trial is one year
peals can refuse to hear any ap- ' away if a higher court refuses to'
B o an mprompt pros o 22t 0, 05, B o ol
ference yesterday on the courthouse perior Court or Supreme Court ac-
g:eps, Rgbltlartson attorney Richard cepts the case
are said he would appeal simulta- - ’
: As the appeals proceed, Albert
Sy o o ihe Sialo Superior e iy reprcenis William
preme Court in the I%ext 30 3a§7s " “Sam” Ritter, said sclaveé'al pfefﬁlal |
) motions must be resolved, including !
Although the usual next step in admission of evidence, the validity |
. the appeals process is the Superior; of an investigative grand jury that
i Court, the Supreme Court can recommended charges in the Allen
accept jurisdiction over any case case and whether York County
and hear any appeal it chooses, he Judge John Uhler should be the
said. Without Biester’s certification, , trial judge. (Uhler took no action on
first deputy prosecutor Tim Barker | the Allen case as a former district
said, the defense has a tougher| attorney from 1974-1978.) ;
. fight to get the courts’ attention. Barnes said he warned Ritter to
Typically, the appeals courts want prepare for a long fight. '
to review a “concrete record” built “Pye already told him that we
. at trial and consider time-delay will be going at this for a long
ca§3s as post-conviction appeals, he while,” Barnes said.
. said.
The state Supreme Court is now
considering a similar case, Com- .

monwealth vs. Scher. 4
ol oarg - e

In 1998 dentist Stephen Scher: d

"
PR E FH

The men had argued that
too much time had passed
since the July 21, 1969, kill-

eal his decision.
trial. Robertson, a white city

ing for them to get a- fair

men Police offic

son, 67, and
charged with the murder of

. I don’t have no more difficult for them to
white

other

43

tmares. I sleep well at app

h

“I didn’t shoot anyone,” he Allen, a black preacher’s
judge ruled he should stand nigi

said as he left the court- daughter, he also made it

But Judge Edward G.

out-of-county house.
York

an
murder,

After

Higher courts may not hear arguments until after a trial

By MIKE HOOVER
Dispatch/Sunday News

Ruling makes appeal diff

said yesterday he is still op- to dismiss murder charges
timistic an appeals court against Robert:

will ultimately throw out five

Mayor Charles Robertson Biester Jr. not only refused
the charges.

trial for his role in a 1969 night.”

race-riot

said
next 30 days

Oare ...

he will file an
appeal inthe
for Mayor
Charles .
Robertson.
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set for 9
in 1969
slaying

York court will try
ex-mayor Robertson,
'8 others together

'BY MARC LEVY
Of The Associated Press

Nine white men, including former
York Mayor Charlie Robertson, are
;scheduled to be tried in September
fin the 1969 homicide of a young
/black woman during 10 days of race
irlots. ‘

i Jury selection is ™
'scheduled to begin ‘ ‘
Sept. 23 for all nine
men to be tried to-
gether, although
three of the men
have tentative plea
iagreements that -
thave not been sub-
'mitted to the judge
Ifor approval yet.

.+ "Matthew Gover,
the attorney for de-
‘fendant Chauncey Gladfelter, esti-
.mated that jury selection could take
a week followed by a monthlong
trial. The date was set by York
County President Judge John C. Uhl-
.er during a hearing yesterday.

- All nine 'men have -pleaded inno-
cent to the charge of murder.

ROBERTSON

Robertson is the
only who has not
been accused of
shooting at the vic-
tim, Lillie Belle Al-
len of Aiken, S.C., on
July 21, 1969.

Intense media at-
tention to the issue
— newspaper sto-
ries 30 years after
the riots prompted

_investigators to re-

' - ‘L THE PATRIOT NEWS
[ rla a e ng In Space Below) ‘ Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

,open the case — should not signifi-.
‘cantly taint the jury pool, Gover

said, .

“If T had perceived a problem, we

- would have filed a motion to change
the venue,” Gover said.

A trial date in the case has been
set nearly a year after authorities be-
gan arresting suspects in the case,
including handcuffing and charging
Robertson while he was serving as
mayor of the city of 41,000.

The riots began after a white gang
member shot and injured a black
man. Fights broke out, buildings
'were sét ablaze and police began

barricading black neighborhoods.
More than 60 people were injured
and 100 arrested before the National
Guard rolled into town with tanks.

Authorities say Allen, 27, and fam-
ily members were in a car that had
strayed into the neighborhood of a
white gang during one night of riot-
ing. Allen got out of the car, waved
her arms, and yelled “don’t shoot”
before being killed by a bullet, au-
thorities say.

Allen was one of two people killed
in the riots. Henry C. Schaad, a
white rookie police officer, was shot
while traveling in an armored vehi-
cle days before Allen was killed dur-
ing the 10 days of rioting.

Two black men were charged last
year in Schaad’s death. That case is
pending. Stephen-Freeland, 50, and
Leon Smickle Wright, 53, pleaded in-
nocent to first- and second-degree
murder charges in February.

Robertson, a police officer at the
time of the riots, has denied accusa:
tions that he handed out bullets on
the day of Allen’s homicide and told
members of white gangs to shoot as
many blacks as they could.

The former mayor has acknowl-
edged yelling “white power!” at a
rally in a city park the night before
Allen was killed but says he had no
involvement in the killing.

He has also said he nho longer has
racist attitudes.

£

{Indicate page, name of
newspaper, cily and state.)

6-0

Hawlo

Daily

me;W )&’5 ;AuL /bis
J e R0 G gy

or ARAPH G050 &

Classilicalion:
Submitting Office: HRA

Date:
Edition:

Indexing:

AR2AC 90505 - 49
SEFRCHED INDEXED

SELIALIZED HLEDJLZC_—:_—:
WAL~ 000

fe La X 72 245

pEavt) nRarm-

Fat/oo4

b6
b7C




P ) ® Ulenees . qp

' ‘e
FD-263 (Rev. 9-8-97)

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 04/26/2002 01/02/2002 - 04/26/2002
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY ‘ TYPED BY
PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON, ) b6
York Police Department, SA drj b7C
York, Pennsylvania; CHARACTER OF CASE
LILLIE BELLE ALLEN CIVIL RIGHTS - COLOR OF LAW -
(Deceased) - VICTIM; FORCE AND/OR VIOLENCE

REFERENCE

Philadelphia FD-610 dated 01/29/2001, and report dated
01/02/2002.
- P* -
ENCLOSURES

Enclosed for the Bureau are the following:

1. Copies of newspaper articles from The Patriot News,
a daily newspaper for Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, dated 04/26/2002.

2. A copy of an article from the York Daily Record, a
daily newspaper from York, Pennsylvania, dated 02/27/2002.

LEAD

PHILADELPHIA
AT HARRISBURG, PA:

Will continue to monitor local prosecution under the
guidelines of a Pending Inactive matter.

SPECIAL AGENT
COPIES MADE: /L/
2- Bureau

(i; DOJ, Civil Rights Unit

PHILADELPHIA (282A-PH-90508)-SD

Py
8 AP H 9p5pa-59
s op |
TEn A S D Tror e
@af 14 2009
DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT Notations I TN b6
Agency d
Request Recd. 7 5’2‘ o
Date Fwd.
How Fwd.
By

A
COVER PAGE
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Copy to:

Report of:
Date:

Case ID #:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Department of Justice #144-63-800

Attention: | | bé
b7C

SA * Office: Phil adelphia

0472672002

282A-PH-90508

PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON,
York Police Department,

York, Pennsylvania;

LILLIE BELLE ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM;

CIVIL RIGHTS - COLOR OF LAW -

FORCE AND/OR VIOLENCE

This matter continues through process in the York County,
Pennsylvania, court system. The case has been assigned a
trial date in September of 2002, to begin with jury
selection on September 23, 2002. All nine (9) defendants
have entered not guilty pleas, but three plea agreements
are in negotiation with defendants other than subject
Robertson.

- P* -
DETAILS:

Investigation continuing.

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI

and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD

. -~
PHILADELPHIA PHILADELPHIA 10/02/2002 | 04/27/2002 - 09/20/2002
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
PATROLMAN CHARLES. HENDRY ROBERTSON, ) bé
York Police Department, SA drj b7C
York, Pennsylvania; CHARACTER OF CASE ‘
LILLIE BELLE ALLEN CIVIL RIGHTS - COLOR OF LAW -
(Deceased) - VICTIM; FORCE AND/OR VIOLENCE

REFERENCE

Philadelphia FD-610 dated 01/29/2001, and report dated
04/26/2002.

- P* -
ENCLOSURES
Enclosed for the Bureau are the following:

1. Copies of newspaper articles from The Patriot News,
a daily newspaper for Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, dated 07/19/2002; kj}

08/02/2002; 08/15/2002; and 08/30/2002.

2. Copies of newspaper articles from the York Daily
Record, a daily newspaper from York, Pennsylvania, dated
08/22/2002.

LEAD
PHILADELPHIA
AT HARRISBURG, PA:
SPECIAL AGENT

APPROVED 7@/ IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW
COPIES MADE:

2- Bureau : *

1z DOJ, Civil Rights Unit |

(1- PHILADELPHIA (282A-PH-90508) — |

DISSEMINATION RECORD OF ATTACHED REPORT Notations

2528 PR-4050% — B

Agency A0 Hov

Request Recd.

Date Fwd.

How Fwd. .

By A L} n‘ 6 \ s D \)
COVER PAGE , & \’J
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Will continue to monitor local prosecution under the
guidelines of a Pending Inactive matter.
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FD-204 (Rev. 12-1-95)

Copy to:
Report of:
Date:

Case ID #:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Department of Justice $#144-63-800
Attention:

sa| | ofic: Philadelphia
10/02/2002

282A-PH~-90508

PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON,
York Police Department,

York, Pennsylvania;

LILLIE BELLE ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM;

CIVIL RIGHTS - COLOR OF LAW -
FORCE AND/OR VIOLENCE

This matter continues through process in the York County,
Pennsylvania, court system. The case is scheduled to
begin on September 23, 2002, with jury selection. All but
three (3) defendants have entered into "pending" plea
agreements with the District Attorney's office. At this
time, subjects Robertson, |
are the three defendants preparing for trial.

- pP* -
DETAILS:

Investigation continuing.

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI

and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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10th man charged in 1969' riot deéth |

killing of a 27-year-old black ‘lets earlier in the day and told
woman during race riots in members of white gangs to
York in 1969. . shoot blacks. He has, how-
Ezra Slick, who lived near ever, acknowledged yelling
the site where Lillie Belle Al- “White power!” during a rally
len was gunned down while in a city park the night before
-getting out of a car on July 21, Allen was killed. ‘

The Associated Press

YORK ® Authorities have ar-
rested a 10th suspect in the

Robertson said he had no

1969, was arrested Wednesday
and charged with criminal
homicide, York County police
detective Rodney George said.

It had been more than a
year since the last arrest in
the case. Last year, nine white
men were chiarged after police
said they were involved in the
killing, including then-Mayor

involvement in the killing.
Slick was being held with-

"out bail in York County Pris-

on.

He has told police that he
“did not have a gun and did
not shoot” while sitting out-
side his family’s home when
Allen was killed.

Charlie Robertson. Police refused to offer
Robertson has since left of~ many additional details re-
fice. He has denijed accusa- garding Slick’s alleged partici-

mojag aoeds U Buiddyy Junopy)
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tions that he handed out bul~ pation in the shooting.
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Robertson tells court he will have an alibi

The Associated Press

YORK ® Former York Mayor
Charlie Robertson, who is
charged with homicide in the
shooting death of a black
woman during race riots in
York in 1969, has filed a notice
saying he will present an alibi
at his murder trial.

But prosecutors said it
doesn’t ‘matter if Robertson
was at the site of the homicide
or not because Robertson
hasn’t been accused of shoot-

Jof
" C o~ 2050 RI-BELE

NE

ing Lillie Belle Allen., Prose-
cutors say Robertson pro-
vided ammunition to the
group and made no attempt to
disarm the gang members. "~
Allen was shot to death by a
mob after her family tried to
drive through a white neigh-

borhood guarded by a group

of men, authorities said.
Robertson and nine other
men have been arrested in the
killing over the past two
years. Robertson has filed no-

tice that he will present an al- .

ibi at his trial, which is set for
September.

“At the time of the alleged
offense, as alleged by the
commonwealth, [Robertson]
was a York City Police officer
on duty deployed in an arm-~
ored ‘personnel carrier togeth-

er with other police officers at-

varjous places within the city
of York,” the notice states.
The alibi notice names wit-
nesses, including former York
police officers Dennis
McMaster, now chief of police

for East Pennsboro Twp. in
Cumbetrland County; James V.
Vangreen, now chief deputy .
sheriff for the York County
Sheriff's Department; and Ray
L. Markle,

First Assistant District At-
torney Tom Kelley said Rob-
ertson has néver been accused
of shooting Allen or being at
the scene. ‘ ‘ ’

‘Witnesses said that, . while
he was on duty and wearing a
uniform, Robertson incited
white gang members, shouted
“white power” and provided
ammunition to gang members
before Allen’s death.

During a pietrial hearing in
March, Judge John C. Uhler
also said Robertson made no
attempt to disarm the gang
members. o
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Their deals don’t
WOITY €X-Imayotr,
his attorney says

BY JACK SHERZER
Of The Patriot-News

4 plead guilty.
to conspiracy
in York riots

Four of the 10 white meén
charged in the shooting death

11969 race riots in York
| pleaded guilty yesterday to
reduced charges that guaran-

two years in jail.
District Attorney Tom Kelley

said the plea agreements are
an effort to get to the truth.

... has been to get the shooter
and those most culpable,” Kel-
ley said. .

Five other defendants
charged with homicide, in-
cluding former York Mayor
Charlie Robertson, are sched-
uled for trial Sept. 23. A 10th
defendant will be tried later.
The men who pleaded guilty
yesterday could be called to
testify.

Robertsor’s. attorney, Wil-
liam C. Costopolous, said the
pleas were expected.

“It comes as no surprise to
me. 1 anticipate at least two
more will accept pleas, if not

e

pleas to cut their losses ... my
hope is that they testify truth-
fully and if they testify truth-
fully, then I have nothing to
worry about.” )

of a black woman during the |
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_Angelina Dickson said the
district attorney’s office in-

; formed the family about the
plea agreements a couple of

B xé days ago. :
“It’s been a very long time:
( ¥4 for us,” she said. “We’rg very!

) ¥ # pleased.” ,
e s Of the four who entered

i/y Sy / pleas yesterday, only Knouse

Xw: ~has implicated Robertson in

LUTZ * Allen’s death. Robertson, who
SINGER . )

b was a York police officer at

the time, is the only defendant
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"B who has not been placed at
the scene of the crime or ac-

York County First Assistant "

“The most important thing

M cused of firing at Allen.

tee each of them no more than 7

F—Y

RITTER KNOUSE

Rick Knouse, Clarence
Lutzsinger, william Ritter and
Tom Smith pleaded guilty to
conspiracy to commit first-de- |
gree murder. Each faces .ak
| maximum of two years in |
| prison and 2 $500 fine. In xe; |
| turn, prosecutors dropped !
' first- and second-degree mur-
| der charges, which carry life
. prison sentences.

Lillie Belle Allen, 27, of -Ai-
ken, S.C., was gunned down
by a white mob on Newberry
Street on July 21, 1969, the

more,” he said. “Even though
 these individuals are entering |

fourth day of the riots in
York, when the car in which
she was riding strayed into a
neighborhood controlled by a
white gang, prosecutors say.
«Speaking for the family,
we’re very happy they’re ad-
mitting to what they done,”
said Angelina Dickson, daugh-
ter of Hattie Dickson, one of

Allen’s sister. “We feel a little
happiness that they’re con-

fessing after all of those

years.”

Yol

Knouse told a grand jurv
that on the day Allen was

' killed, Robertson provided

ammunition to young white
men on Newberry Street,

* according to court papers.

He told the grand jury that
Robertson gave him 30.06 ri-
‘fle ammunition and told him
to “kill as many niggers as you
can.” Knouse told the grand
jury he used the ammunition
when he fired on Allen’s car.

Robertson has denied hand-
ing out bullets or telling peo-

ple to shoot blacks. He said he |

. shouted “white power” during
a rally the night before Allen’s
death, but said he had no part
in the killing.

be reached for comment.

|
|

Knouse’s attorney could not }

{
i

\

Allen was one of two peo-

ple killed during 10 days of ri-
ots in 1969. Henry Schaad, a
' white rookie police officer,
was shot while riding in an
armored vehicle days before
Allen was killed.
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Two black men were

charged last year in his death.
That case is pending.
Attorneys for Ritter,
Smith, also 51, said their cli-
ents regret their roles in the,
crime. Ritter has admitted fir-
ing a shot at Allen’s car, said
attorney
. was at the scene with ammu-

51, and‘

!

Albert Barnes. Smith .
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The York Daily Record

_ Lillie Belle Allen, 27, of Aiken,

' S.C., was shot to death by a
white mob on Newberry
Street in York on July 21,

' 1969, after the car in which
she was riding strayed into a
neighborhood controlled by a
white gang, prosecutors say.

'nition and a gun, but did not
firé a shot, said his attorney,
Joe Metz. Srmth also attended
, the rally the night before the
; shooting, but did not know
Robertson.
Metz said he expects Smith
to testify.
“He was right there at the

scene and saw the shooting
and [prosecutors] will want

of 2
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The Associated Press, 2801
Former York Mayor Charlie
Robertson is to stand trial .
Sept. 23. A York pollce officer
during the 1969 riots, he is
accused of providing ammu-
nition to white men on New-
berry Street that was used to
kill Lillie Belle Allen.

detail on that, I'm sure, plus
he’s a credible witness,” Metz
said, “He is a good guy who as
a teenager was in a bad spot
— that is what it amounts to.”
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1969 death of Lillie Belle
Allen, if he does not have to
go to jail or plead to a
, murder-related charge.

has to apologize for inciting ,
whites to violence during the (
riots.

must answer to allegations
that he

r“jAllén( kindbpdse dea

‘until Robertson talks
about riots, shooting

By MIKE HOOVER
Dispatch/Sunday News

The family of .a black
woman killed in the 1969
York race riots will not for-
give Charles H. Robertson
or support a plea bargain
for the former city mayor
and police officer until he
accepts responsibility for
his role in events leading to
ther death, the family’s at- g
itorney said yesterday. ,
. Attorney Michael §
McGuckin announced the [
family’s position after Rob-
ertson’s lawyer indicated
last week that he would
consider pleading to lesser
charges in the July 21,

Robertson

McGuckin said Robertson

He said Robertson also'

IS

shouted “white
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Roberison and s sior.
ney, and his attor-

could not be reached f,
ment last night, . COII-I-

Robertson has admit &
bertson | ed t

j shout{ng ‘white power” at g / /
- rally in Farquhar Park but

) ! has denied all allegauiuu, naracter:

! that he somehow contributed of
‘ to Allen’s death.

. McGuckin said he is un-
" aware of any plea discussions
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involving Robertson but he 'exing:

wanted Robertson to under-

stand what the family ex-

¢ pects. The family wants the
truth to come out and justice
served, he said.

Apologies accepted: The
. family has accepted the apol-
ogy of five defendants who

pleaded guilty to lesser
charges of conspiracy to
commit murder in exchange
for testimony at the Septem-
ber murder trial of Robertson .
and three ofher codefen-
dants.

The pleas would not have
:.been offered without the
% Allen family’s support, York
€ County  Prosecutor Tom
4 Kelley said yesterday after a
'C court hearing for one of Rob-
ertson’s codefendants.

York County Judge John

ronmus

he York County Courthouse ,
;esterday, declined further ‘
comment. 3

Kelley said he cannot com-
ment on plea discussions, but '
said it is clear that the apol- |
ogies have helped the Allen |
family heal after suffering \
from years of no one caring. |

Codefendant ~ Chauncey
Gladfelter’s guilty plea yes-
terday was an example of the
Allen family finally getting
some accountability, Kelley |

said.

ésistant

power” and advocated vio-
lence against blacks at a.
rally in Farquhar Park the
day before Allen was killed,
handed out ammunition to/
white gangs that was used to
fire at Allen’s car, and di
not disarm or arrest any of
the shooters when he was the
first police officer to respond '
to Allen’s slaying. ‘

Robertson also needs to - -55 .

'explain why he did not pro- AR - DH C[ 0 508

oy ntemalin ot T W o) Sew

make arrests, McGuckin - - were not injured. be

- said. l “Those who truly repent
“When he accepts respon-‘ from the goodness of their M/% b7cC

‘ sibility for this murder, only heart, she (Dickson) will for-

1* then will the family consider ! give,” McGuekin said.

ﬁsupporting a plea,” McGuck- . Dickson, who stood by
' in said. '. McGuckin’s side and nodded
PamafloterantiSps e as he spoke on the steps of

® Uhler said he wanted to hear
©® the wishes of the Allen
. family in considering wheth- |
% er to accept the pleas.

X Allen’s sister, Hattie Dick-
E son, said the family supports

“He admitted his cul_pabili—
ty and he also apologized to
the family. It means a lot to
the family. They were genul-
nely thankful he was admit-
ting his remorse,” he said. »

the pleas. Dickson was with
Allen the night she was !
killed. Three other family
members who were in the
car, which was hit by a bar-
rage of gunfire from an esti-

¢
“He (Gladfelter) admitted h

culpability and he also apologized to
the family. It means a lot to the
family. They were genuinely thankful
he was admitting his remorse.”
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Fifth suspect

enters a plea '=
Gladfelter offers apology

By MIKE HOOVER ,
Dispatch/Sunday News

Chauncey Gladfelter stood on a balco-
ny, a lookout posted to shoot blacks th,e
night a woman was killed during York’s |
1969 race riots. i
When gunfire erupted July 21, 1969,

- he had no idea who was shooting or what

' they were shooting at, Gladfelter said. He ¢
said he was too scared to fire or pick up a

*
#D-350 (Rev. 5-8-81)

n.
gu‘When the shots ended, Gladfelter tes-
tified yesterday in Common Pleas Court,
he ran out onto Newberry Street, where
he saw Robert Messersmith standing '
with a shotgun. He later learned that
Lillie Belle Allen, a 27-year-old black
woman, had been killed.
With that testimony, Gladfelter
became the fifth person charged in

Allen’s death to plead guilty to a lesser
' charge of criminal conspiracy to commit |

KIS PR AT

pe j ]
Chauncey Gladfelter is followed by
supporters after his hearing yesterday
at the York County Courthouse.

M Ruling on 26-year-old murder case may
have effect on riof cases.
Page A4

| . 1
. murder, a misdemeanor that carries up
'to two years in prison and a $500 fine.

i Co-defendants Rick Knouse, 7Cla1j¢nc_e:

" felter

D

P

Lutzinger, Thomas Smith]

and William Ritter entered!
similar pleas last week.
In exchange for their coop-

eration, the York County Diss_ |

trictc  Attorney’s Office;
dropped murder charges that
carried possible life sen-
tences.

York County First Assis-
tont District Attorney Tom'
Kelley, who is lead prosecu-'
tor in the Allen case, said the,
pleas help build a case!
against those most cilpable '

in Allen’s death.
He said the co-defendants’
cooperation has enabled

investigators to gather infor-
mation and evidence needed

- to break open the 83-year-old

murder case.

Gladfelter’s role as . a-
lookout was part of an overall
conspiracy that ultimately
led to Allen’s death, Kelley*
isaid. -
" “It was part and parcel
with- the gantlet created in
the neighborhood to attack
any black who came into the ,
area,” Kelley said.

York County Judge John -
Uhler said he will take the
pleas under advisement and, °
if he accepts the pleas, he

ill not sentence the de-
fendants until after an up-
coming Sept. 23 trial of the
other four defendants: former
icity Mayor Charles H. Rob- |
‘ertson, who was a city police
officer during the riots; Greg
' Neff;, Robert Messersmith;
and his brother, Arthur Mes-

sersmith. Ezra Slick, who -
was charged last month, is
expected to go to trial at a
later date.

“Young and stupid’: Glad-
said yesterday he
wanted to accept responsibili-
ty for his role in Allen’s
death, apologize to her family
and get on with his life.

“Back then, I was young
and stupid. I regret being
there. I'd like to apologize to .
the Allen family for this tra-
gedy,” Gladfelter said.

Gladfelter placed Robert
Messersmith, the leader of a
white street gang called the
Newberry Street Boys, at the
‘murder scene. Investigators
have said they believe Robert ¢
Messersmith fired the shot !
that killed Allen, o
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In detailing the events of |
dJuly 21, 1969, Gladfelter said
“he went to the Messersmith !
home at 299 N. Newberry
St., With. his friend, Mike |

essersmith — the brother |
of Robert and Arthur Messer- !
smith, “
- Once they were inside, |
- Gladfelter testified _Vr-,fst_er:/H
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}'Wd’ay, the  Messersmiths’
father, John, gave Mike a
loaded rifle and told him to

|

i be a lookout for blacks from

. an upstairs balcony. Gladfelt-
"er went with Mike, figuring

he was trying to protect the
- neighborhood during

' Mike Messersmith  com-
. mitted suicide in 1988. John
' Messersmith died in 1985.

| John Messersmith was
' handing out guns and ammu-
| nition to white gang mem-
bers and stationing them in
the mneighborhood, according
to Gladfelter. Moments later,

the |
'city’s fifth day of rioting. |

a Cadillac with Allen andT

four family members inside,

mated 100 shooters, accord-
ing to witness accounts.

The police: Gladfelter
said he thought the white
residents committing vio-
lence had the support of city
police during the riots.

The night before the Allen :
shooting, Gladfelter said,
whites were throwing rocks
at cars occupied by blacks.
He said he was standing on
North Newberry Street pre-
paring to throw a rock when'
he noticed a police car at the
-top of the hill, watching the
exchange. He said he put the
rock down, fearing he would |
be arrested. ;

“They (the police) never:
came down. It made you feel |
like they were on your side,”
Gladfelter said.

Knouse, Lutzinger and
Smith also have said police
incited whites to violence and
advocated that whites shoot

. blacks.

Robertson is accused of
giving white gang members

was ambushed by an esti- -

ammunition that later was

used to shoot at the Allen
car, and telling whites that if
he weren’t a cop, he would be
leading commando raids
against blacks.

1 . After yesterday’s hearing,

Gladfelter referred questions
to his attorney, Matt Gover.
Gover said Gladfelter is
relieved he no longer faces
the possibility of life in

prison and that he had an op- '

portunity to apelogize to the
Allen family. ‘

Gover described Gladfelter
as a decent family man who'
has a steady job and no crim-
inal record. . _

“When he was I7 years
old, he screwed up. He shqulc’l’
have been home in bed,
Gover said.
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York County First Deputy Prosecutor Tim Barker, left, !
and special assistant Fran Chardo confer while York
County First Assistant District Attorney Tom Kelley talks
with the-media yesterday on the steps of the York

County Courthouse.
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Famlly No plea for ex-mayori
| |
PHOTOS BY BILL KALINASTAFF PHOTOGRAF;HER' ‘
- Attorney Mike McGuckin walks behind Lillie Belle Allen’s sister, Hattie Dickson, second from right, and her supporters after
leaving the York County Courthouse yesterday after a hearing for Chauncey Gladfelter. Gladfelter pleaded guilty to alesser
* charge of criminal conspiracy to commit murder in the July 21, 1969, shooting of Lillie Belle Allen. McGuckm is Dickson’s &
- . attorney.
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'BY MARC LEVY
'0f The Associated Press

YORK ® A sixth defegdant
. pleaded guilty yesterday to
plgharges in the killing of a |
| black woman during
York’s 1969 race riots, tell-
ing how he sat atop a wall
at an intersection and fired
| a 12-gauge shotgun at her
stalled Cadillac. .
Arthur Messersmith
pleaded guilty to at-
tempted murder and con-
spiracy charges in the
death of Lillie Belle Allen, |
27, of Aiken, S.C.
He admitted in court
that he attacked the car in

which Allen and four fami-
ly members were riding
when they took a wrong
turn into a white neighbor-
hood crowded with armed
white gang members.

“We thought we were
going to be shot at, so we
shot at it,” Messersmith,
49, told Judge John Uhler.

Messersmith, whose

whisper, could face nine years
in prison. Murder charges
were withdrawn in exchange
for his plea, which Uhler has
yet to accept. Four defendants
remain charged with murder.
Three of them, including
former York Mayor Charlie
Robertson and Robert Mes-
sersmith, Arthur Messer-

b

smith’s brother, are schedul.ed
to stand trial together begin-
ning Sept. 23.

lice officer at the time of :che
riots, is accused of handing
out ammunition and encour-

~ shoot blacks. o
"~ Robert Messersinith is ac-
| cused of firing the shot that

| killed Allen.

| " The other suspect facing |

Man pleads guilty
in 1969 killing case
| | |

trial, Greg Neff, is accused off “

firing at Allen’s Cadillac.
It is a “realistic possibilityi
Arthur Messersmith could

testify against his brother, his

attorney Frank Arcuri said.
~After the hearing ad-
journed, Messersmith ap-
proached Aller’s sister, Hattie
Dickson, and apologized.
 “When I shook his hand, T’
felt it,” she said. “I felt the sor-

voice often dropped to a .

A

Arthur Messersmith, ¢

7
' .
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CHRISTOPHER GLASS, The York Daily Record
enter, is escorted from the rear -

of t‘he York County Courthouse by Walter Trayer, right,
assistant to Messersmith’s attorney, Frank Arcuri, yes’-‘
terday. Messersmith pleaded guilty to attempted mur-
der and conspiracy in the killing of Lillie Belle Allen in

1969.

Robertson, who was a po-|

. aging white gang members to!
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{Thomas “Kelley, who pointed |

jout that Zeager initially told a [

barrier

Allowing Allen car
into mob area was
‘mistake,” he says

" igrand jury investigating the ;
| !case he didn’t recall the barri- '
- didn’t know why.
i Another witness who was
rec S . standing near the barricades
S

| After strained questioning

\ by the prosecution, Clyde

‘Bennett said he heard an offi-

stopped, to which another of-

ficer replied “if they make it

to the railroad tracks they're

on railroad tracks intersecting

.Newberry Street and at-
.tempted to turn around. Most '

cades being up. Zeager ad-
said an officer there tried to
,cer at the barricade say that
lucky.” .

witnesses say Allen was shot

|
EX cop yping Mitted he lied, but said he .
. stop the car, but it kept going.
the Allen vehicle has to be
|
|
} The white Cadillac stopped
|
|
i
[
t

stepped from the vehicle. |
The prosecution claims °
there was a tacit agreement
between city police and white
'street gangs to kill blacks after
a white police officer was
'mortally wounded while trav-
eling in an armored vehicle

BY PETE SHELLEM
Of The Patriot-News

YORK e A former York police officex
said yesterday that he made the big-
gest mistake of his life when he
moved a barricade that allowed.Lil< days before Allen was shot.
lie Belle Allen’s vehicle to drive into  They say Robertson, 68, a
a volatile armed mob during the patrolman at the time, incited '
city’s 1969 race riots. - the youths to violence by in-
But Ronald E. Zeager told a York voking racist rhetoric and
County jury hearing murder charges' handing out ammunition.
against former Mayor Charlie Rob-|, Costopoulos contends Rob-
ertson and two other defendants that' . ertson had nothing to do with
he tried to stop the Allen vehicle. He' . Allen’s slaying. Attorneys for

s

' testified at the outset of the trial that

| entrance of Newberry Street, and
| two police officers stationed there:
{ 1aughed as she drove by.

told the jury that he warned the oc-|- co-defendants and former
cupants to go in another direction. = gang members Robert Mes-
“I said they better go around be- sersmith and Gregory Neff
cause they were having problems in; say all the youths that shot at
this area,” Zeager testified. “They, Allen’s vehicle were on edge
said they were visiting people in the} because of prior violent inci- -
projects. I wouldn’t say it was an in-, dents involving a similar car
sistence, but they just wanted to go: arid thought they were pro-
that way.” " tecting their neighborhoods.
Under cross examination by Rob-! In other testimony yester-
ertson’s attorney William C. Costo- ' day, James Spells Jr. testified
poulos, Zeager agreed that he didn’t« that he and his brother con-
want to seem racist by singling them fronted Messersmith after
out. . youths threw firebombs and
“That was the most wrong deci~! shot up the Spells’ mother’s

sion I ever made in my life,” Zeager home. Contrary to prior wit-
said. |

, . tradict !\ nesses, who said the pair went
Zeager’s testimony contradicts: ;. Messersmith’s home in a

that of Allen’s sister, Hattie Dickson, ! ' white Cadillac, Spells said he

who was driving the car. Dickson, ' and his brother Sherman went
-1 in a brown Dodge.

the barricades were moved off thei

in a hail of gunfire when she l

. Defense attorneys have said
t , Sherman Spells recently ad-

Called as a state witness, Zeage-‘ boé?g:iﬁ;:v}:g:hﬁﬁnﬂlﬁ'es_
came under fire from prosecuton geigmith fired the shot that
-  killed Allen. Allen, 27, of Ai-
 ken, S.C., who was visiting rel-.
| atives at the time, was struck !

mitted shooting up the neigh- :
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‘from a shotgun. Messersmith
'was convicted in 1970 of
shooting a man with a similar-
weapon during the riots. ,
. Messersmith, Neff and Rob-.
ertson could face life in prison
if convicted. Neff originally!
had a plea bargain with prose-!
cutors, but that was with-
drawn after he testified at a|
preliminary hearing last year’

that he believed Allen was:
holding a gun when she exited:

|

the vehicle.

i Six other defendants who!
admitted shooting at the vehi-
cle have entered plea agree-
ments to testify for the prose-
cution. Five of those
defendants pleaded guilty to!
misdemeanor conspiracy
charges that carry maximum'
terms of 1 to 2 years in prison,
but are likely to receive little

- or no jail time.

. Messersmith’s brother Ar-

' thur pleaded guilty to conspir-

.acy and assault with intent to
kill, which carries a maximum
possible sentence of 4% to 9

' years.

. In what has become a con-
tinuing frustration throughout
the trial, prosecutors have vir-
tually had to cross examine

~many of their own witnesses,
confronting them with earlier
statements or testimony, be-
cause of memory lapses and
perhaps reluctance to testify.
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over yet

Robertson is a lucky fellow today,
thanks to his lawyers’ legal strategy
and the statute of limitations that
prevented him from being considered
for a lesser charge than murder.

Verdicts are in but
this thing isn’t

@
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ast night, for probably
the first time in more
than two years,

former York Mayor Charlie
Robertson might have slept
like a baby.

Who could blame him?
The pressure was off. Rob-
ertson was found not guilty
of first- or second-degree
murder in the race-riot
death of Lillie Belle Allen
in 1969. He walked away
from the York County
Courthouse last night a free
man.

But know this much:
Robertson is a lucky fellow
today, thanks to his law-
yers’ legal strategy and the
| statute of limitations that
} prevented him from being

considered for a lesser
charge than murder.

His two co-defendants,
Robert N. Messersmith and
Gregory H. Neff, weren't
treated nearly as well. Both
- were found guilty of second-
" degree murder in the Allen
* death.

At long last, the verdicts
are in. Thank God, I told
+ myself about 6:30 last
night, this thing is finally
finished. We've been living
with this ugly cloud over
our heads for 33 years, and
now it’sover.

" Except that it isn’t really
over. We all know there will
be appeals by Messersmith
and Neff. They could drag
on for a couple more years.

And we should be re-
minded that two men have

been charged with murder
in the death of York City
rookie police officer Henry
C. Schaad during the '69
riots. Schaad was struck by
bullet frag-
ments while
riding in the
back of an
armored ve-
hicle just
three days
before Allen
was killed.

That trial
will be held
in upcoming
months.

Now
might be the appropriate
time to applaud the efforts
of the men and women who
served on this jury. They
couldn’t possibly have had
an easy moment from the
day they were selected to
serve on the jury until the
verdicts were read in the
York County Courthouse
last night. There was a
great deal at stake with
this trial, and they stood
tall in the face of it.

From the beginning, I
doubted that Robertson
would be found guilty of
murder. There just didn’t
seem to be enough evidence
to make that stick.

He was accused of urging
young men and teenagers to
arm themselves and shoot

LARRY
HICKS

than one witness of having
distributed bullets to angry,
frightened and impression-
able young men.

Witnesses said, and Rob-
ertson admitted, that he
stood at a gang rally in Far-
quhar Park and shouted
“White Power,” the day
before Allen was killed. And
he did it while wearing the
uniform of a York City
police officer.

J
Clearly, Robertson was !

guilty of being a racist cop
who contributed significant-
ly to the atmosphere of
racial hate that existed
during the summer of ’69.

But none of that is the
same as murder, especially
since there was no forensic
evidence, no bullets or even
fragments of bullets, noth-
ing concrete that absolutely

tied Robertson to Allen’s
death.

That, in a nutshell, was
the strategy of Robertson’s
lawyers, who steadfastly re-
fused to allow their client to
be judged on the lesser
charge of voluntary man-
slaughter. They obviously
couldn’t applaud his con-
duct as a city cop, not with |
straight faces anyhow, but |
they could argue that one
plus one plus one didn’t
equal murder in this case. |

\

f

blacks during the race riots. :

He was accused by more

S

_ But interviews with .
Jurors last night left hardly'
any doubt that Robertson
can be glad their’s wasn’t a |
', choice I?etween murder and|
, something less than
1 . murder.

| ‘ . Because if there had

'| been any way the jury ¢

‘ haye found Robergsoll'ly ould

‘ l guilty of, say, involuntary

.. manslaughter or even con- 1

: trlbut{ng to the delinquency |

- of a minor it very well :
might have done it.

Bt}t it was murder or [
nothing, and the jury decid- |

. ed on nothing. i

Whether or not Robert- i
f

. son contributed to Allen’s
- death will be decided by a

{
higher authority at a later ]
time. The statute of limita- |
tions won’t be a factor then.|
Yes, I believe he’s a far |
better person today than he{
was 33 years ago. That’s to
his credit.

But by his conduct in |
1969, he did disgrace and (
dishonor his uniform as a [
York City police officer. !

There can be no doubt ,
about that. |

AZAALH OV 5

w seeed




FD-350 (Rev. 5-8-81)

The riots
of 1969

Among the many casualties of the
[~ trace riots in, York City in July 1969 were
'two homicide victims: Henry C. Schaad
and Lillie Belle Allen.

That July 18, Schaad, a 22-year-old
rookie York City police officer, was in'the
back seat of an armored vehicle, cross-
ing the West College Avenue bridge
over the Codorus Creek, when bullets
penetrated the steel plating, wounding

at York Hospital.

On July 21, Alien, 27, a preacher’s
daughter from Aiken, S.C., was visiting
York with her parents and two children.
Her sister and brother-in-law, Hattie and

- Murray Dickson, lived in the city. !

' The family had been on the way to
 buy groceries when her sister made a

+ wrong turn into the white neighborhood;
. at North Newberry Street and Gay

' Avenue.

., The streets were filled with an armed
" white mob.

| in a hail of gunfire.

No one was charged with either slay-
ing for three decades. ,

Law-enforcement officials in York
said they had suspects, but never
enough evidence to bring charges.

Case is
“reopened

The York County District Attorney’s !
Office refocused its efforts on the cases
in.December 1999, after receiving new
| information that began surfacing after
| The York Dispatch/Sunday News pub-

‘ lished a week-long series on the 30th
anniversary of the riots.

In Séptember 2000, District Attorney
Stan Rebert convened a 23-member
investigative grand jury.

; After meeting for seven months, the
| grand jury recommended indictments

ber recommended indictments against
two men in Schaad’s slaying.

Charges filed

To date, 1 0 have been charged in
the Allen slaying, and two in the S¢haad

case.

' Ofthe Allen defendants, three went
' on trial Sept. 23: Robert Messersmith of

him in five places. He died 14 days later |

Perkiomenville, Gregory N&ff 6f Yoik,

and former Mayor Charles Roberison,

who was a city. police officer at the time
- of the riots,

A six-man, six-woman all-white jury
was seated; testimony began Oct. 1.and
, concluded Wednesday after jurors .
+ toured the crime scene.

Closing arguments followed Thurs- |
. day morning, after which jurors began

. deliberations, sequestered for two nights -
in the Yorktowne Hotel. i

Yesterday, Messersmith and Neff
were convicted of second-degree
murder; Robertson was acquitted. ;

Six others have accepted plea bar-
gain agreements, providing prosecutors
with their testimony in exchange for
lesser sentences.

Judge John Uhler announced a Nov.
18 sentencing date for the men: Clar-
ence “Sonny” Lutzinger, William “Sam”
Ritter, Chauncey C. Gladfelter, Thomas
P. Smith, Rick L. Knouse, and Arthur N.
Messermith, Robert's brother.

The 10th defendant, Ezra Slick,
awaits trial during the January criminal

Allen got out to drive the car and died' court term.

Schaad case
pending

In the Schaad case, Stephen D.
Freeland and Leon F. “Smickle” Wright,
both of York, are now awaiting a hearing
an whether their prosecution was de-
layed too long to allow them to have a
fair trial.

Last December, an out-of-county
judge rejected similar motions in the i
Allen case. .o

Background
on the Web

News reports of the case, dating to
its reopening in 1999, can be found on

. our Web site at www.yorkdispatch com. |

i Thesite also complete transcripts of
! the prosecution and defense closing ar-

April 26, 2001, against 11 people in con- guments in the Lillie Belle Allen murder
nection with Allen’s slaying, and in Octo- trial, together with Judge John C..Uhler's

instructions to the jury.
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Opinions
welcome

_ Ifyou have opinions on the trial you'd
like to share, we welcome your lettersto
the editor. ‘

Send them to The York Dispatch/ |
Sunday News, PO Box 2807, York
17401, or drop them off at 205 N.
George St., or email them to letter-
s@yorkdispatch.com.

Reporters on the case can be
reached at 854-1575. They are Mark
Scolforo, mscolforo@yorkdispatch.com;

" Lauri Lebo, llebo@yorkdispatch.com;

and Scott Rappold, rsrappold @yorkdis-
patchcom.
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. 'WE COULDN'T IDENTIFY A SPECIFIC INDIVIDUAL

FBI stymied inprobe-of Allen’s death

Ex—prosecgtor explains why case dropped

By BILLCAHIR
Washinglon, D.C., bureat

The U.S, Justice Depart-
ment in 1969 wanted to file
federal civil rights charges

against the gunman who,

killed Lillie Belle Allen on

the fifth day of York City’s o

riots. .

Howeyer, federal autho-
rities dmgped the case be-
cause they -could. not
definitively identify ¢
pect, according to Washing-
ton attorney Jerris Leonard.

Leonard was assistant
secretary for civil rights in
1969, the first year of the
Nixon administration, .He
ordered a probe of Allen’s
homicide eight days "after

the 27-year-old mother “of '

two was gunned down on
North Newberry Street,

Ultimately, Leonard
said, he had no choice but to
let the matter drop. The
FBI had failed {o identify a
suspect.

“Under. the then-statute
as it hdd been interpreted
under a number of court
proceedings, you had fo be
able to identig' a specific in-

.dividual,” Leonard said.
“We couldn’t identify a spe-
cific individual at that time,
.. If we could’ve identified
somebhody I can assure you
we would've pursued the
case,” *

Allen was killed July 21,
-1969, after a gang of white
youths fired at her and her
family’s car. Her sister,
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“Under the thféh-statute as it had

been interpreted under a number of

individual,” -

court proceedings, you had to be
able to identify a specific

J B
York resident Hattie Dick-
son, suryived the barrage
and filed a complaint with
the FBL

" Police actions: "After a,

trial got under way this
Sept. 23 for former g'ork
Mayor Charles H. Robert-
son and two other men in
her slaying, the York City
Council asked the Justice
De)iartmgnt to launch a fed-
inyestigation of the
York City Police Depart-
ment’s actions in 1969.

Their request was simi-
lar to ones made in the
summer of 2001 by. the
Pennsylvania Black Legis-
lative Caycus and U.S. Rep.
John Conyers, D-Mich.

But as' those legislators
were told last year, a feder-
al probe is no longer possi-
ble for the reason Leonard
cited: The five-year statute
of limitations has lapsed.

The FBI said it was mon-
itoring " the York County
prosecution of Robertson

_ Jeryis Leonard, Washington atlomey

and other defendaits, but is
taking no other action.
Thirty-three years ago,
the FBI concluded that it
would be “nearly impossi-
ble” to determine who
among the gang of whites
had shot and killed Allen.
So many gunmen had
fired at Allen’s car, the FBI
said in a letter dated Dec.

81, 1969,. that the mur--

derer’s identity likely would
never be known unless a
witness came forward.

“I can assure you this
was not the only situation
where we could not identif}
a suspect,” Leonard said.
“There were many situa-
tions in which we couldn’t
identify a shooter.”

But during 12 days of
testimony in the trial of
three men chm;(ired with
Allen’s murder, allegations
were made about police mis-
conduct — including moving
a barricade that allowed the
Allen family into the white

Newbérry Street neighbor-

" hood and that little, -if any,

investigation was done after
her slaying.

The FBI did not have
that information in 1969
and Bernard J. Brown, the
U.S. Attorney in Harrisburg
in 1969, said Friday he
didn’t recall the Justice
Department ever advising
him to pursue indictments
in the Al?en slaying.

Other  cases  pros-
ecuted: Two Nixon-era Jus-
tice Department attorneys
said the administration ag-
gressively pursued allega-
tions of police misconduct
whenever they were raised.

James P. Turner, a
lawyer with the Justice
Department’s civil rights di-
vision from 1969 through
1994, said that as a Nixon
administration lawyer, he
had prosecuted -Chicago

olice officers suspected of
illing two members of the
Black Panthers.

“They talked a good
policg game and they tried
to be sympathetic and tough
law-and-order people and
everything,” Turner said of
the Nixon team. “But when
it got down to cases, if there
was an _allégation that a
police officer had violated
the law, federal law, and it
was colorable, they would
investigate it. I worked for

15 different attorneys geh-
eral, and it was essentially
the same from the begin-
ning to the end.”

The Civil Rights Divisiqn
was formed in 1957 in part
to ferret out police corrup-
tion, prosecuting cases that
state or local authorities
failed to zealously pursue.
The division was directed to
investigate ‘police agenciés

-or individual officers, espe-

cially those in the South,
who had trampled on citi-
zens’ civil rights under color
of law.

J. Stanley Pottinger, who
was assistant attorney gen-
eral for civil rights during
Nixon’s second term, said
those in authority — Nixon,
Attorney  General John
Mitchell and then FBI chief
d. Edgar Hoover — well
might have welcomed the
positive publicity associated
with prosecuting a white of-
ficer in a northern city.

“This is not the kind of
case that would have raiséd
the atlention of political
eyes or been in any way the
subject of partisan or politi-
cal interference,” Pottinger
said, “It just wouldn’t. And,
in fact, on the contrary, be-
cause the department took
so much heat about its
busing policy, it was always
looking for opportunities o
do God’s work in dther
cases. And this would have
been such a case.”
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erdicts provoke mixed reactions

Some York residents say justice was done, others say justice stopped

STAFF REPORT

Five-year-old Kevin Bones Jr.
sal on his father’s shoulders, strain-
ing for a view above the television
reporters and cameramen swaim-
ing around the jury members for an
interview.

“What does guilly mean?” he
asked his father, Kevin Bones.

“Guilty means he did it,” the
older Bones explained.

Bones was at home watching
television when he saw the verdict
would be announced at 6:20 p.m.
He left his York City home and
went to the courthouse,

“I wanted to show him how the
court system works for some, and
not for others,” he said. “He never
even knew what guilty meant
before today.”

To some, yesterday’s two guilty
verdicts meant justice had been
served.

To others, like Bones, who is
black, justice stopped short with
former York City Mayor Charles
Robertson’s acquittal.

“You can’t do much with guns if
you don’t have ammunition,” said
Bones, a lifelong city resident. Rob-
ertson was accused of providing
ammunition to while youths who

" shot at Lillie Belle Allen.

Official reaction: While many in
the crowd outside the courthouse
last night expressed disappoint-
ment at the verdict, some of the
local officials atlending the “Tavern
Night”  fund-raiser for the York
County Heritage Trust said they
were pleased.

“A’lot of people are relieved this
part of the process is over,” York
County Commissioner James Dona-
hue said. “Now, we'll see what the
trial for the officer’s death brings.”

Two men await trial in the slay-
ing of rookie policeman Henry
Schaad, who also died during the
1969 riots .

Block party postponed

R Y

I

JASON PLOTKIN/STAFF PROTOGRAPHEF

A group of 14 Newberry Street residents — most of them children — joined hands and prayed yes-
terday at the railroad tracks where Lillie Belle Allen was slain during York’s 1969 race riots. “What

A

(mojag aoedg ug- Eﬁidduo unowy)

happened here was very sad, very tragic, and it really shouldn’t have happened,” The Rev.
Norman “Skip” Spangler of Otterbein United Methodist Church told the group. “So we are gath-
ered to remember that the greatest meaning be found from suffering and tragedy and death.” The
noon prayer was supposed to be part of a neighborhood block party celebrating unity, but the :
event was postponed because of light rain that organizer Donna Watkins worried would ruin the
gisq,.jockey.’s.equipment. The celebration was rescheduled for today, from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. on Gas

ausaie, off NorthiNewherry Street. ‘
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_ As the Allen family waited for
Justice in Courtroom No. 1, “Tavern
Night” patrons paid their $10 ad-
mission, which included a free beer.
_As the Allen family made a
silent procession in front of tele-
vision cameras to their posi-trial
press conference, “Tavern Night”
patrons participated in a silent auc-
tion.

“‘I'm glad that the process went
its course. I'm glad that the issue
was finally aired in public,” said
York City Mayor John Brenner,
who attended Tavern Night. “At
least some level of justice is now
going to be done for the Allen
family. That’s what is most impor-
tant.”

Many of York’s business and po-
litical leaders had supported Rob-
ertson throughout the investigation
and trial, and some testified as
haracter witnesses.

One who did so was former U.S.

ep. Bill Goodling, who refused to

comment on the verdict last night.
Others, such as state Rep. Stephen
Stetler, D-York, could not be
reached for comment.

But not all community leaders
supported Robertson.

York City School Board presi-
dent Jeffrey Kirkland said he
thought the most important — but
not surprising — statement made
was Robertson’s acquittal. He
heard the verdict as he waited out-
side the courthouse.

“It’'s what I expected. I expected
that Bobby Messersmith would be
charged. I thought the prime sus-
pect, Mr. Robertson, would have got
off. I am still highly disappointed
because Mr. Robertson represented
the legal justice system in this
whole matter. For his actions not to
have experienced some type of con-
sequences is justice denied,” Kirk-
land said.

“The city had the opportunity to
move forward .. and to ensure
people in the city that no one is
above the law. And I think now,
that people who are connected, like
Mr. Robertson, and people who can
pay high prices for lawyers appear

to be above the law.”

Subject for sermon: While Kirk-
land waited outside the courthouse,
Temple Beth Israel’'s Rabbi Irwin
Goldenberg said he learned of the
verdict when he logged onto the In-
ternet. He had been thinking of
writing a sermon about the case.

“I was thinking about making
the connection between Jonah seek-
ing to escape his responsibilities
and being unsuccessful doing it,”
Goldenberg said.

“T hope (the verdict) should calm
the community,” he said. “I can’t
speak for the black population.”

But, he added, “I believe that all
together the African-American com-
munity has been waiting for justice
... and for the community to own up
to its history. At least the jury has
done so. When a jury comes in with
a verdict and says they are guilty,
then they are guilty and I don’t
second-guess it.”

M.B. Whisler, an executive com-
mittee member of the York Chapler
of the NAACP, was talking to tele-
vision reporters outside the court-
house about the verdict when the

in the right direction. At least

3. 2
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f\.llen family walked by in.a quiet
ine.

Everyone stopped for them.

Whisler and the women with her
told the Allens they were sorry for
the verdict. They told them to
pursue their case in other courts, if
need be.

“The business powerhouse that
came here and testified for the
mayor let that jury know that they
are the rulers of this county,”
Whisler said later. “You only have a
few people employing everyone in ;
this county ... At least this is a step |

something has been resolved.” |

Kevin Bones Jr. came down off
his father’s shoulders. They stood |
beside each other holding hands |
and wearing matching baseball |
caps. ;

They watched the jurors walk |
away and the throng of reporters '
move on. And Kevin Bones Jr.
knew what guilty meant.

Staff writers Jennifer Gish,
Laura Giovanelli, Sarah Lifshin,
Lisa Rab and Charlie Young con-
tributed to this report.
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x-mayor free;2 guilt

Jurors say their verdicta di

Families |

grapple
with pain

By-LAURI LEBO

| Dispatch/Sunday News
As the verdict was read, Lillie

. Belle Allen’s family sat silently
. in a solid row, linked by tightly
' grasped hands. Across the aisle,
‘family members of the de-

fendants yelped and gasped.

But it wasn’t until the hand-
cuffs snapped on the men’s
wrists that the reality of it all
settled over the courtroom. . -

After more than three dec-

ades, two men,
Greg Neff and
Raobert Messer-
smith, were con-
victed last night
of second-degree
murder in Allen’s
killing. And
. York’s former
mayor, Charles

Robertson, was Allen ... .
acquitted. killed in
Ashewasled 1969. °

from the court-_
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room, Greg Neff never looked at
his family. But his daughter and
mother thrashed about, sobbing
and screaming.
Robert Messersmith, turned
to his wife, Deb.
“I love you, baby,” he told her
from across the courtroom,
“I love you too,” she said.
Then, Deb Messersmith, who
had sat unmoving in her chair,
stood up and started walkin,
toward the end of the aisle. “
hope oure happy,” she
mouthed to the Allen {amily.
And then, “I hope you burn
in....” She didn't finish her sen-
tence; a family member covered
! her mouth.
| 8]

Outside the courtroom, any
-emotions still pent up erupted.

As a member of Robertson’s
défense team used a cell phone
to plan a celebration, Deb Mes-
sersmith told Allen’s family, “I

hope you f—ing burn in hell.”

c9)-ACQp HIVERE

Debra Taylor was 11 wher
her mother was killed by Mes-
sersmith’s  husband.
screamed at Deb Messersmith
as her uncle Ben Mosley pulled
her away.

“We need to get champagne,”
Robertson defense aide Ellen
‘Wagner said, peeking out at the
commotion from ‘around a
corner.

Neff's mother snapped that
Wagner should stop celebrating;

She * 4imes takes a long time,” he said.

her son was going to prison.

As she was escorted away, Deb
Messersmith said, “I hope you can
sleep tonight.”

Both Messersmith’s and Neff’s
families left without talking to re-
porters.

Still sobbing, Neffs daughter
climbed into a car and drove away,
the driver threatening Lo run over
cameramen if they didn’t get out of
the way.

Messersmith’s attorney, Peter
Solymos, said he understood the re-
action of his client’s family.

“I think that is human nature
and a natural reaction,” he said. “I
would have expected them to act
like that.”

HEN

Later, during a press conference,
Michael Allen, Lillie Belle’s only
son, spoke for the family.

“We all know that justice some-

He was interrupted by Robert
Mann, who had been a constant
presence during the trial.

“T'ell the whole story,” he yelled.

Mann, who was in the North
Newberry Street neighborhood
when Allen was killed, maintains
he saw Allen fire a gun.

However, despite his assertion,
the defense never called him to.tes-
tify. Mann was ignored.

Instead, Michael Allen spoke of
sympathy for Neffs and Messer-
smith’s families.

“I heard them cry out with pain”
when the verdict was read, he said.

It brought back memories of his
cries the night his mother was
killed. He was only 9.

“We musl have compassion of all
our brothers,” he said.

And he hopes the families will
have compassion for his family as
well.

“We're all one people and God
loves all of us,” Allen said.

TR

For the Allen family, the verdicts
were bittersweet.

“Justice is not perfect, but it’s all
we got,” Allen said of the jury find-
ing Robertson innocent.

Even though only a few people,
including the six defendants who

have J)leaded guilty, have been con-
victed in his mother’s death, at
least a hundred people were

involved in her shooting on the fifth
night of York’s riots of 1969.
Throughout the trial, witnesses
testified about police inciting white
gang members to violence during
the city’s riots and then allowing
Allen’s sister, Hattie Dickson, to

fficult decision

drive into a barricaded neighbor-
hood where armed gang members
were waiting.

“Pm not sad,” said Dickson, who
reluctantly took the podium after
Allen. “I feel sort of disappointed.”

But it’s not over yet. .

Lawyers for the family have said

| they are considering filing a wrong-
| ful death lawsuit against the city.

“We're not going to stop ‘here,”

Dickson said. “We will continue to '

' investigate the rest of the people
involved in this tragedy.” o
Staff reporters Laura Giouanel}t
and Mike Hoover contributed to this
report. ‘
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‘ STEVE nus PHOTq
‘Deb Messersmith, center, breaks into tears as she leaves the York County Courthouse with attorney |
Peter Solymos yesterday after her husband, Robert Messersmith, was convicted of second-degree ‘
murder in the death of Lillie Belle Allen. The person at left is unidentified. ‘

R "GREG M»\H.QNYIST PHOTOGRAPHER
Lillie Bélle Aller’s sister, Hattle Dickson, right; hoids up fwé ° .
fingers and says “at least two had” seen justice as Allen’s,_ - .

childréil, Michael Allen, left, and Debra Taylor, center, comfort
her. '

Former.York City Mayor
Charles Robértson.breaks
down in tears during a news
conference on the front steps
of the York County Court-
house last night.
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. Thirty-three years after Lillie Belle Allen was
:-slaih, jurors last night found two former white
teen gang members guilty of second-degree
inurder in the black woman’s death, but ac-
quitted York’s former.mayor; Charles H. Robert-
son. - ‘
The _decision was met with mixed reactions
; acrosg York, where the case has Krompted much
. debaté since 1t was reopened threé years ago.
Some said justice was served, but many blac
expressed outrage at Robe: S
Son's acquittal. Cot
Rohertson, whoset stone-
d during the four-week trial;,
ied and hugged his lawyers
When his not-ghilty verdiet was
read; his lavyer leariéd aver and
kissed his hand.- .
t - Ouitside the courthouse aftei-
, ward Robertson thanked those
“who kept him in their prayers;

Keliey ...

and broke down in tears again. )
. ‘Tmalittle tired, and I'm ~ - léadpros-
" going honie,” Said Robertson. ecutor satis-
"+» A he left, Robertson was fied with
.‘aisked whethér his were tears of

outcome.
-joy. “Of prayer,” he replied. “It's “:
:beén two years.” .
;*;‘Bobertspn was aceuséd in May 2001 of pro-
«yiding ammunition to white teen gang fiembers |
duting the' 1969 riots, and-urging therd to kill.
« blatks. He 735 8 city policé officer it ther irde. ™

... Two convictions: His co-defendants, Gregory
H. Neff and Robert N. Messersmith, were con-
victed of mutdering. Allen, who was visiting
York:with Ber fatnily and died ifi a hail of gun- -

| fire. after, her é’aixii}fs caF, wag, driven into a

ared a5 he Was led away i

el
9 laes g

i A

™ "Neff's faniilly gasped iii Shotk and- were
unable to stifle pained cries.

The two men face maximum sentences of 10

to 20 years in state prison, but
Judge John C. Uhler has discretion
to release them on probation at sen-
tencing Dec. 18.

Appeals planned: “The family’s
devastated. 'm sure he’s devastat-
ed,” said Neff’s lawyer, Harry Ness,
who had assumed any guilty ver-
dict would be for the lesser charge
of voluntary manslaughter.

“Thank God it’s not life in prison.
But it’s jail time. We were hoping
for an acquittal,” Ness said.

He vowed to appeal, saying one
basis will be lead prosecutor Tom
| Kelley’s biblical quote during clos-
}Eg arguments: “Thou shalt not

in> :

Ness had called for a mistrial
after the statement, which is a vio-
lation of state trial rules, but was,
turned down by Uhler.

Messersmith’s attorney, Peter
Solymos, said he will also try to
overturn the conviction.

“We are very disappointed, obvi-
ously, and we are going to look hard
at our appeal issues,” Solymos said.

Justice at last: For the Allen
family, the verdicts were bitter-
sweet.

“Pm not sad, I feel sort of disap-
pointed,” said Hattie Dickson, the
"sister Allen had come from Aiken,
S.C., to York to visit.

“We're not going to stop here.
We're going to investigate the rest
of the people involved in this trage-
dy,” she said. The family is consid-
ering a wrongful death lawsuit
against the city.

Kelley, however, expressed satis-
faction over the outcome, saying the
trial “finally found justice for the
Allen family.” )

Robertson’s acquittal, he said,
reflected how difficult it was to
charge a police officer in the case.

“But we felt we had to bring

rges based on the grand jury’s
:Bgoglmepdgtiog. As we \he%{q

during the trial, there (was) some
pretty terrible behavior on behalf of
the police,” Kelley said.

“The easiest thing to do was not
to charge Charlie. It took true
moral courage. It was the n‘gh!:’
thing to do despite the verdict,
said  special prosecutor  Fran
Chardo, brought in from Dauphin
County to assist with the case.

Neff and Messersmith ‘“were
living on borrowed time,” Chardo
said. “They should consider them-
selves lucky because they escaped
justice for 33 years.”

“These s were able to live
their 1ivesgui)rlxm their 50s. Lillig,’
Belle Allen is in & pauper’s grave,
Kelley said.

Neff, 54, of York City, works for
an area electrical contractor; Mes-
sersmith, 53, now of Perkiomen-

“Thank God it’s not
life in prison. But it’s
jail time. We were
hoping for an
acquittal.”

Harry Ness,
Gregory Neff's altorney

ville, Montgomery County, has
been on disability since a 1995 car
accident.

Neff admitted to a grand jury he
shot at Allen’s car; witnesses testi-
fied that Messersmith also fired at
{the car, and boasted of it afterward.

Jury issues: Under 1969 state
law, a first-degree conviction would |
have required a “specific intent to
kill,” Ubler had told 'the jurors;
second-degree murder is any other
killing committed with malice.

The jury also had the option of
convictijn;y Messersmith and Neff of
voluntary manslaughter, an inten-
tional killing in which the de-
fendant has an “unregasox}able
belief” his actions were justified.

‘But because he was not present
1 when Allen was killed, Robertson
| could not have been convicted of the
\_ Jesser charge. ‘

During 10 hours of deliberation
that began Thursday qftemqon, the
jury “struggled mightily” with the
decision in all- three cases, said a
juror who identified himself as Jay,
an engineer.

He was one of four me:mbers of
the 12-person, all-white jury who
spoke briefly with reporters after-
ward.

Jay said the panel “never

reached consensus” about whether -

the central allegation against Rob-
ertson was true — that he gave the
street gang membe'rs ammunition
and urged them to kill blacks.

Jugor Charles Law, a computer
technician with the state govern-
ment and the only one to fully iden-
tify himself, said he found it a
challenge to wade through the
mountain of testimony.

He found it particularly difficult
to sort out the timeline of events
that occurred more than three dec-
ades ago.

“Asidq from the death of my par-
ents, this was the most difficult
thing I've ever had to do in my life,”
he said.

Listening to Dickson testify
about the assault that took her sis-
ter's life, he said, made him want to
cry. “L_aw said he “was ashamed”
and “sickened by the whole series of
events.”

Law said the late John Messer-
smith was “one of the biggest cul-
prits here.” .

., A constant question during de-
liberations, -he said, was, “Where |
the hell were the parents?”

During the city's 1969 riots,
dJohn Messersmith allegedly estab-
lished a command center in his
home, giving out bullets and guns
to the frightened young men who
congregated on Newberry Street.
His son, Robert, was the leader of
the Newberry Street Boys gang.

Another juror said he found “one
- truth” in the case.

“Mothers and fathers, love your
children. Teach them the impor-

tance of equality and diversity,” he
said.

No bond: Attorneys for Neff and
Robert Messersmith urged Uhler to
allow their clients to remain free on
the $100,000 bond they have been
under for the past 17 months, but
Uhler declined, citing the likelihood
the men would serve jail time.

The two-were driven from the
back of the courthouse in separate
marked Sheriff's Department vehi-
cles. They were placed in the gener-

i
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Jurors talk with the media shortly after they announced the verdicts in the murder trial of three men ac-

cused in the slaying of Lillie Belle Allen in 1969.

“Mothers and :
fathers, love your
children. Teéach
them the
importance of
equality and
diversity.”

Jurar .

al population at the York ’Coﬁnty
Prison, said Warden Tom Hogan. -

Robertson, his lead attorney Wil-
liam Costopoulos by his  side,
walked out the front doors a free
man. 7

“It’s a huge case, it’s a hlg"ge win,
and there’s no question about .it,”
Costopoulos said. ;o

’ L
The lawyer said Robertson
“wants the community to heal, York
has been his life.” 4

As for the Allen family, Costo-
poulos said he and his clieht were
*very sorry that what happeried,
happened. It’s just that it would'not
have brought them any satisfaction
to convict a man that is innocent”

. Ellen Wagner, aide to Robertson
attorney Richard Oare, got on her
cellular phone just outside the
courtroom to order champagne.
Neffs mother, Trudy, heard her
and broke down.

“She’s talking about plans for a

- party and my son is going to jail”
‘Trudy Neff said. She and -other

members of Neff's family left out
the back door, declining comment.

“I always feel sympathy for the
defendants’ families. It is a pain.
they don’t deserve,” Chardo said.
“But it is a pain I didn’t bring
them.” ‘

Staff writers Mike Hoover, Jenni-
fer Gish, Lisa Rab, Sarah. Lifshin,
R. Scott Rappold and Rochelle
Brenner contributed to this report.
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BY IRVIN KITTRELL Ili
Of The Patriot-News

YORK ® Hattie Dickson held p two
fingers, not as a sign of peace, but to
show the humber of mén who.weré
‘convicted in Yotk County Couit
yesterday in the 33-year-old slaying
of her sister, Lillie Belle Allen.
“Justice,” she $aid about 90 min-
has got theirs.”
Dickson was driving thé 1961
white Cadillac thé night of July 2i,
1969, during the height of raceriots
when Allen was fatally shot on Néw--
berry Street. She witnessed the :, -
death of her sister, but she had to
wait until yesterday to see jusfice._
“I'm not sad,” Dickson, 56, said
about the outcome of the trial, “I feel
soft of disappointed and yet I know .

... this is God’s will. So be it.”

The 12-member jury returned con-
victions against two of the three de-
fendants in the Allen murder trial, a
case that has polarized the commu-
nity. - L

Gregory H. Neff, 54, and Robert N.
Messersmith, 53, were found guilty
-of second-degree murder. Former
Mayor Charlie Robertson, 68, es-
caped a conviction when the jury
found him not guilty of first- and
second-degree murder. .

As Robertson stared ahead after
‘the reading of the verdicts, some
members of Neff’s family cried and
called out his name. Neff showed no
emotion. Arthur Messersmith, Rob-
ert Messersmith’s brother, dropped
his head.

Dickson and her family remained
calm. They also showed no emotion
after the verdict, but Dickson smiled
slightly. She sported that same smile
throughout most of the night.

“I have Jesus in my life,” she said
about the smile. “I'm not here to be
angry about anything.”

Dickson said the verdict will not
stop the family from seeking more
justice. She said there are more peo-
ple the family and their attorney
want to interview to 'brmg out more
of the facts of that fatal night.

“We will continue to investigate
the other people involved,” she sa},d.
o] know [Allen] would want us to.
Though Dickson appeared to be at
peace with the jury’s decisions, it
was not the case with others.

Former York Mayor Charlie Rob.ex"t'_so:b‘;a tears bixt;;dé of the co
Justice? I feel:

utes after the verdict. “f feel that two - :

Michael Allen.

Smith, 52, of York. Smith, like other
residents, said she believed Rob-
ertson should have been convicted
of a crime. She said Robertson was a
police officer during the race riots
and should have been “held account-

, able for what was dorie.” |

When Robertson was chirged

. with murder in the Alle case, the

1 arrest did not sit well with many

i people of York County. Some .

' learned for the first time that Rob-

" ertson was involved, shouting
“White Powerl” at a rally of white
gangs the day before Allen was
killed, and reportedly handing out
ammunition to at least one youth.
Robertson has admitted he held rac-
ist views but denied handing out am-
munition. i

L Y
TENARR T MICHAEL FERNANDEZ;
urthouse

Mémbers of Lillle Belie Allen’s farnily Iéave
Fromi left are Allen’s slster Hattla Dickson,

* a political move by the district attor
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ed, But everyone just thought it was
even, One lflyack had been killed and *
one white — even.” R o

Rhonda Generette stood outside
of the York County Colurthouse to
experience the scene. Generglte‘, 4
life-lorig resident of York, said she
was “upset” about the verdict.

“The way I feel is that two gentle*
'men [convicted] — they were young
at the time had to be influenced by
someone,” she said. “You listento .
your adults fof guidance, and I be-
lieve Charlie Robértsori was there
guiding them. They were listening to..
the adults and he was right there.”

Juror Charles Law of Camp Hall
also questioned the adult leadership
that swayed the youth in 1969. He
asked where wére the parents of. .
theseyouth. " . ‘

“John Messersmith,” he said about !
Robert and Arthur Messersmith’s fa-
ther, “where in the hell were the par-}
ents?” | N .

As she was leaying the area, Seci- *
na Toole, a member of the Allen
family, said the verdict brought clo- -

sure to her. She also said the verdict
brought the family closer. :

“My sister and parents would be
* so proud of Deb [Taylor] and Mi-

8 chael [Allen], they will become a
positive force in the community.”

Michael Allen, Lille Belle Allen’s
son, was 9 at the time of his mother’s
death. .

“I wish they [his mother 2~d .
grandparents] could ser *his day,” hé
said.
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the corthoisse last night.

daughtér Deb Taylor and soi.

y

Others cried foul, saying that Rob-
ertson was the victim of political
maneuvering by York County Dis-
trict Attorney H. Stanley Rebert.
Robertson even questioned the fe-
opening of the case. He also called i

ney's office,

People of note in York County
came to Robertson’s defense. Some-
wondered out-loud why Rebert,
would reopén a case that was 32
years old. . '

Some wanted Robertson to be *
held accountable, Robertson then
poured fuel on the debate after he
was quoted in Time magazine days
after he was charged in Allen’s
death,

*Everyone knew who was involvz
' 1

Hattle Dickson, sister of victim Lillle Belte Allen, says: “Justice? | feel that

two has got theirs.”

~
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BY PETE SHELLEM
Of The Patriot-News

YORK @ After more than two grueling
days of deliberations,’a York County

, jury last night acquitted former
Mayor Charlié Robertson of murdei

1969 race riots bt convicted two
formet white gang members.

The two-term mdyor and 23-year
veteran of thé city’s police force
broke down in tears after the jurors
absolved him of complicity in the -
July 21,1969, murder of Lillie Belle
Allen, The 27-year-old mother of
two was shot down by a mob of
white youths during the riots. .

The other two deferidants — Rob-
ert N. Messersmith and Gregory H.+

Neff — were
Storie-faced as
the jury rendered
second-degree

murdeér verdicts,
They face 10'to.
20 years ini pris
.on Whe the¥ dr¢
fghtenéed D&&, -

But after Judge ¥
Jobn C. Uhlerre- -,
voked théir bail -
and committéd
them to Yotk .
County Prison, | ~
their families
broke downas . .
thetwonien
were led from

the courtrooi in'

A haildcilffs. ; :
;. Emotions éon-

" tinled to flafe as
e etowd that |
ypdcked the eotirt-"
‘tooni
+Messé

MESSERSMITH

teréd but into the hallway,
Messersiith’s wifé got into a shout-
}i’)g‘gigtch with members of Allen’s ©

A L aal, P
 Facing the héws iedid ‘dlitside the!

broke down and thanked his attor-
néys and §iipportérs; . § . 7
“It's been two yeats,” Robertson =~
said. “I'm 4 little tired and I'm going>
home.” . .
Meanwhile, shouts of “It ain’t over
© yet!” could be heard from the ctowd’
that had gathered outside the court-
house.
Ten days of rioting in 1969 shat-
tered the city, leaving two dead, 60
people injured and swaths of buiid-
ings smoldering. Many worried that
reopening the investigation into'the
two deaths also would reopen old
wounds.
Some rifts were still apparent yes-
erday. R
Leo Cooper, former director of the
York chapter of the National Associ-
ation for the Advancement of Co}-
ored People, said Robertson’s ac-
quittal was an “injustice.”
Robertson stepped dowri as mayor
when the charges were filed against
him shortly after he had won York's
Democratic Party primary a year
ago. His attorneys hdve long main-
tained that prosecutois were moti- .
vated by political and personal rea-
sons and that the case never ‘
amounted to murder. .
The prosecution originally had
planned to charge him with conspir-
acy, but upped it to first- and sec-
ond-degree murder after the defense
pointed out the statute of limitationg
had expired on everything else, -
Prosecutors asserted that Rob-
ertson handed out ammo to white
gang members and urged them to

kill blacks after a white police offi-
cer was mortally Wounded diring
the 10 days of riots. o
They cut deals with six other de-
fendants, many of whom shot at the
Allen vehicle when it stopped in the

charges in connection with the city’s

| courtligtisé, Robértson once agair -

sinith latet bragged about the $lay-
;gi,_ 5aying, “Iblew the nigger in

was likely hit With a slug from a
12-gduge sholgusi that ripped ,
through her chest and exited her ab-
-domen, ’

Prosecutors before a préliminary

N heanpg lat Year thdt would Have.
!eft him with probation, admitted fir|
ing a shotgun loaded with birdshot
at the car after the shooting erupted|

Allen Was holding a gun led prose-
cutors to withdraw the dea),

tually fired the fatal shot. Judge John|

predominantly white Newberry
Street neighborhood, where police
had vrged white youth gangs to
“draw the line” against riting
blacks. :

Those deals reduced murder
charges to misdemeanors. .

Robertson, who like the otper de-
fendants did not testify, admitted
harboring racist feelings back in
1969. But he denied handing out
ammo or urging anyone to kill. He
admitted yelling “whité power” at a
rally before the shooting, but com-
pared that to blacks urging the bla?k

N
X

LILLIE BELE ALLEN

power slogan at the time.
The prosecution pointed out that

Robertson and other officers who ar- ;

rived on the scene moments after
Allen was shot did not question wit-
nesses or confiscate weapons. .
- But defense attorhey William C.
Costopoulos showed that Robertson
and the other officefs traveling in an
armored car were dispatched to oth-
er scenes of violence rocking the
city' moments later.

In aninterview with Timé maga- .

. zinie last year, Robertson said: “Ey=

eryohe knew who was involved. But
everyone just thought it was even.
One black had beeh killed and one
white — even.” .

Jurors said they struggled with -
Robertson’s role, but éoitld come to
no consensus on whether Robertsoii
handed out ammunition or incited . "
the youths to violence. They said the
evidence did not amount to murdet: +

“Unfortunately, that’s all we had,” ,
said juror Charles Law after the ver-
dict was rendered. “I don’t think

there aré any winners here.”

Prosécutors contended Messer-

$mith, who jurors did not know shot
and wounded a black man with a
sho{gun slug the day before Allen’s
slaying, fired the fatal shot.

.Several witnesses said they saw

Messersmith standing in the middle
of Newberry Street firing a shotgun
at the Allen vehicle when, confront-~
ed by an arméd mob, it stopped and
tried to turn around on railroad
tracks.

According to witnesses, Messer-

Expért téstimony showed Allen

Neff, who had cut 4 deal with

But his insistence that he thought

[y

However, it didivt matter who ace

¢ The
. Allén, f-old mothef
- froni Aiken; S.G,; Was visiting her .

C. Uhler told the jury that anyone

- who fired at the vehicle could be.

found guilty of murder under dc-- .
complice liability theoriés,
, Attorneys for Messersmith and

- Néff drged their clienits thought

they. were,acting iii self:defense be- -

cause the black occupants of & vehi-

cle similar to Allel’s had ferrorized

he neighborhood in the days and

OuEs: forésb'y r{ndom@y firing *
ey R v

i h »
wed to.appeal the vet
27-year-old mothét of two.

‘sister, Hattie Dicksot, ifi York while

_ on hér way to New Yotk Dickson

was driving the Vehicle, which was
occupiéd by Dickson, Dickson’s hus-
band, Allen and her parents.

Dickson said the family members
had gone fishing and were on their _
way to a food store when they en-
tered Newberry Street around 9 p.in/
that night. .

The case put the entire York po-
lice department on trial as First As-
sistant District Attorney Thomas
Kelley suggested there was an “un- ,
easy alliance” between police and *
the white youth gangs to kill blacks
after a rookie patrolman was fatally ,
wounded shortly before Alleri was’. ;
killed. .

Dickson said barricades that were
supposed to keep blacks off Newber-
ry Street were down and officers
laughed as they diove by. .

However, Ronald Zeager, a retired
York officer who was manning the ,
barricade, said the car’s occupants |,
insistéd on going through., 9

Kelley, noting that Zeager had ini-;
tially told a grand jury investigating ,
the case the barricades were down, :

-~

waed

said he was lying again. J

Fran Chardo, another prosecutor-
in the case, said he was satisfied
with the verdicts because the actual
shooters were corivicted. He said the: ‘
long delay iri bringing the ¢ase
played against the prosecittion of
Robertson.

. A state police investigaticn and 4 ",
federal civil rights probe both ended’,
withiout charges decades ago. ~

But three yeats ago, after the city’s
two daily newspapers provided ex-
tensive covérage of the 30th anni~
versary of the riots, prosécutors re- .
opened the investigation. A number-,
of community leaders éxpressed

fears that reopehing the cise would .

]

. be ablack ege for a community that }

had shoved
divisioris, """ 5, .
“The greater &mbartassment is
not that yoiit indyor Was chdtged,”
Chardo told reporters, “It’é that it
went unresolved for 33 years.”
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WITNESSES
FOR THE
PROSECUTION

o

L2
SHighlights of testimony for the
rosecution in the murder trial of
Fox’mer York Mayor Charlie Rob-
ettson, Robert Messersmith and
Giegory Neff.

DENNIS McMASTER: former
York police officer; testified that. he
accompanied Robertson to a white
gang rally where Robertson shoutgd
“white power.” McMaster was also
one of three witnesses to testify that
Robertson gave out ammunition.

THOMAS D.
SMITH: one of
six defendants i
the case who
pleaded guilty;
Smith identified
Messersmith as
firing the first
shot with a shotq
gun. Allen disap
peared behind
the car after
Messersmith

shot, Smith said. .
He also identified Neff as having

shot at the car.

ﬂ FRED FLICKINGER: a

20-year-old gang member in 1969;
testified that Robertson addressed
gang members in front of their hang
out on Newberry Street and told
them, “If I weren't a cop, I'd !)e out
leading commando raids against”
blacks.

MARTIN L. FACKLER: a woung
ballistics expert; identified the fatal
bullet as an unjacketed lead shotgun|
slig that must have been shot from 4
10-gauge, 12-gauge, or 16-gauge shot-}
gun. The slug fractured and most of
it was never found or disappeared
from state police custody in 198). -




RICK LYNN
KNOUSE: one
of six defendants
in the case who
pleaded guilty;
testified that
Robertson gave
him 30.06 rifle
ammunition and
told him to “kill
as many” blacks
as he could.
. Knousé also
identified Neff and Messersmith as
Having fired at the Allen car.

1]

¢ ELLIS W, STOUGH: worked
with Messersmith at a filling station
in 1969; testified that he overheard
Messersmith talking to fellow gang
members about a week after Allen’s
shooting. Messersmith told them
“we got one”.and that he was “fairly
sure” it was a bullet from his weap-
dn that felled Allen, Stough said:

1

' WITNESSES
'FOR THE
DEFENSE

ROKEdi
KNOUSE

i
i
|
; | Highlights:of testimony for the de
fense in the murder trial of former
b York Mayor Charlie Robertson, Rob
« ert Messersmith and Gregory Neff.

! RAY E. MARKLE: an officer

who rode to the scene in an armored
car; testified that he never saw Rob-
¢rtson hand out ammunition and
Was not aware of an alleged alliance
Hetween police officers and white
gang members to kill blacks.

’

CHAUNCEY
C. GLADFELT-
ER:a former
gang member
who pleaded .
guyty toacon-
Spiracy charge in
the case;]tes tified
€ Was a looke
for blacks theom
night Allen was
killed. He said he
never saw Rob-
munition or use

': GLADFELTE,

1
s;t'f'oln hdnd out am,
; cia eplth?ts,

' WILLIAM C, RITTER: 3 former

conspiracy in Allen’s de i
1 ath, sayj

2: 5 uc:l% at her family's Cadillac}: t?esti~
at he never saw Robertsc'm ‘

Kand out iti
oo au ammunmon_qr use racial “
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A look at
‘the jury

Here's a look at the six-man,
six-woman jury that heard the
Allen case.

Their identities were pro-
tected during the trial. Yester-
day, some came forward to
speak about the case and their
verdict.

No. 1: A York County Prison
guard for the last 11 months. He
had a run-in with the law as a
youth.

No. 2: A world history
teacher, 44, who grew up in
North York and lives in Spring-
ettsbury Township. He has also-
worked during the summer
driving a truck for Martin’s
Potato Chips.

No. 3: A Camp Hill area res-
ident who works on computer
equipment for state unemploy-
ment offices. He formerly lived
in New Cumberland and moved
to York County eight years ago.

No. 4: A woman who has
coordinated volunteers at York
Hospital for the last 19 years.
She was 28, living in Philadel-
phia and the mother of a new-
born during the 1969 riots.

No. 5: A native of Malvern,
Chester County, she was in
high school during the riots. She
sings in her church choir and
has worked for a surgeon for
the last decade.

No. 6: A General Dynamics
! engineer, he is 41 and his

o s s

family lived in West Manchester
Township and avoided York
City during the riots.

No. 7: The wife of a Dents-
ply salesman, she moved to
York from New Jersey in 1980.
She is retired from Bel} Atlantic,
where she was an administra-
tive assistant in the government
liaison office.

No. 8: He oversees 15 retail
Rockpott shoe stores along the
Atlantic coast. He moved to
York County 23 years ago from
Baltimore, and lost a nephew in
the Sept. 11 terrorist attacks on
America,

No. 9: She works in a res-
taurant and lived across the
street from York City Police Offi-
cer Henry Schaad, who was
also slain during the riots, At the
time, she was eight. She is a
distant relative of two city police
detectives.

No. 10: A 33-year-old man
who works for a club in Lan-
caster that lets people buy di-
rectly from a group of 850
manufacturers. He grew up in
Michigan, moved to the county
in 1988, moved away and then
moved back again six years
ago. He and his wife, who is the
granddaughter of WGCB-TV
Channel 49 owner John Norris,
live in Springettsbury Township.

No. 11: A woman who is an
accountant for an engineering
firm.

No. 12: A woman whoisin
her early 40s and fived in Jaco-
bus at the time of the riots.
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Plea bargains close with emotional bang

Arthur Messersmith heads to state prison; five other men
got lesser sentences.

By RICK LEE and TERESA ANN BOECKEL
Daily Record staff’
Thursday, November 14, 2002

With two men facing maximum  udetphoto reprint
total sentences of 20 years in prison §
and a third acquitted of all charges, {
the family of Lillie Belle Allen
expressed dissatisfaction
Wednesday when six more
co-defendants received plea
bargains and short sentences for Bil Bowden - YDR

their roles in Allen’s death. Arthur Messersmith, left, his wife,
Jeanne, and Walt Trayer, a paralegal

: : for Messersmith atiorney Frank
“Under the circumstances it was the ...+ enter the York County

best we could get because they had Courthouse. Messersmith got the
plea bargains,” said Jennie Settles, longestjail term of the six men

s . sentenced Wednesday.
one of Allen’s sisters. bigger version & more photos (3)

Allen was a visitor to York on July 21, 1969, uninvolved and
apparently completely unaware race riots had split parts of the
city into armed camps.

She was killed by a single shot when the car carrying her family
strayed into a white neighborhood guarded by white gang
members and was riddled with gunfire.

Wednesday in Common Pleas Court, her brother, daughter and
two of her sisters unleashed years of pent-up emotion when five
former gang members and a local resident were sentenced to
terms ranging from a minimum of three months to a maximum
of three years.

All six men had negotiated guilty pleas with the York County
District Attorney’s Office to avoid going to trial for first- and
second-degree murder. As part of their plea deals, they were
required to cooperate with the murder investigation and testify
truthfully to their knowledge of the events leading to the black
woman’s death.

Allen’s daughter, Debra Taylor, took the opportunity to address
the defendants and respond to their requests for leniency.
Admittedly angry and unapologetic, she also lashed out at those
in the county who had protested the cold-case investigation, the
charges and the trial.

http://ydr.com/story/riot/3680/printer/

12/5/02 12:38 PM
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“Some people in this courtroom said I should die and go to hell
(for the guilty verdicts for her mother’s death),” she said to one
defendant. “We were just passing through.”

“I still see a nullification here of my mother’s death, just some
old black woman,” she said to another.

To a third, she said, “This community still has this attitude of
‘Let’s get it over with.” This slave mentality has got to end. A
mother, a daughter, a sister died and you’re still trying to sweep
it under the rug.”

The sentences

Arthur N. Messersmith, 49, received the lengthiest sentence —
1Y% to three years in state prison for felony attempt with the
intent to kill and a concurrent one to two years for misdemeanor
criminal conspiracy to commit the unlawful act of first-degree
murder. He was placed in handcuffs immediately after
sentencing and remanded to county prison to await transfer to a
state correctional institute.

The other five men who entered guilty pleas to the misdemeanor
conspiracy charge all received county prison terms with delayed
reporting dates and permission to apply to the outmate work
release program.

Rick L. Knouse, 50, was sentenced to nine to 23 months with a
reporting date of Jan. 1. He also must perform 200 hours of
community service and pay his share of the costs of prosecution.

Clarence “Sonny” Lutzinger, 50, was sentenced to nine to 23%
months with a reporting date of Jan. 1.

William C. Ritter, 51, received nine to 23% months with a
reporting date of Dec. 13, a $500 fine, 200 hours of community
service and his share of court costs.

Thomas P. Smith, 51, was sentenced to three to 23%2 months
with a reporting date of Dec. 13, a $500 fine, 200 hours of
community service and a share of court costs.

Chauncey Gladfelter, 50, received three to 23% months with a
Dec. 10 reporting date, a $500 fine, 200 hours of community
service and a share of court costs.

Robert N. Messersmith, 53, and Gregory H. Neff, 54, were

convicted of second-degree murder last month and are
scheduled for sentencing in December. Charlie Robertson, a

20f6 12/5/02 12:38 PM
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former mayor and retired city police officer, was acquitted of
murder charges in the same trial.

The last of the defendants to agree to a plea arrangement,
Arthur Messersmith, received the additional felony charge,
according to First Deputy District Attorney Timothy Barker,
because of his more active role in the shooting. At his plea
hearing, Messersmith admitted he shot into the car.

Of the remaining defendants, those who received the nine-month
minimum sentences were those who admitted or were identified
as firing shots at the car carrying Allen.

There was no testimony or evidence that Gladfelter or Smith
shot at the car. Both denied firing weapons.

Barker noted for the record that the six defendants already had
received the benefit of a charge bargain, allowing them to
escape the possibility of conviction at trial and potential
sentences ranging up to life in prison without parole.

He asked Uhler to take into consideration that Knouse,
Lutzinger and Smith had cooperated with the investigation
without any plea agreement in place and no assurances they
would not face murder charges.

Barker said the prosecution would stand by the sentences
recommended by the probation department for the other three
men.

Apologies offered

The defendants, each in turn, claimed remorse for their actions
and offered apologies to Allen’s family.

Taylor, Settles and Allen’s brother, Henry Mosley, chastised
each one as they came before Uhler for not volunteering
information earlier in the past 30 years, for not providing
investigators with more names and identities of suspects and for
not seeking them out and apologizing before or after they
entered guilty pleas.

Knouse, who was instrumental in the district attorney’s ability
to file homicide charges and bring the case to trial, admitted to a
longtime drug addiction, ongoing emotional problems, a list of
physical ailments and a lengthy criminal record. He confessed, “I
cannot say I’ve been a productive member of society.”

He said that when prosecutors approached him in 2000 about
Allen’s murder, “I knew I had to own up to my part.” He said

http://ydr.com/story/riot/3680/printer/
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he volunteered information seeking closure for himself, Allen’s
family and the city.

His attorney, John Moran, characterized Knouse as an abused
child and “a follower” who was easily “influenced by older kids
on the streets” and “authority figures to do what he did.” Moran
said will petition Uhler next week to reconsider the sentence.

Knouse testified at trial that Robertson provided him with
ammunition before Allen was shot and directed him to kill as
many black people as he could.

Taylor said she could empathize with Knouse’s emotional state,
explaining she also had recurring nightmares and unrelenting
emotional problems. Taylor had stayed behind at her aunt’s
house when her mother and others went to the store. She
testified at trial she heard the barrage of gunfire that riddled the
car and killed her mother.

22

“But society has told me to ‘Suck it up,’ she said.
She added that “we teach our children” to take responsibility for
their misdeeds and expected Knouse to do the same.

Lutzinger, a former heroin addict with a long record of petty
crimes, cried when a local police chaplain and a longtime friend
spoke on his behalf.

In a wheelchair recovering from recent hip surgery and medical
complications, Lutzinger told Uhler, “I was part of something
real wrong. For some reason, at the time, I thought I was doing
the right thing.

“(But) this isn’t about me. It’s about an innocent lady who
died.”

Taylor repeated her comments to Knouse, telling Lutzinger, “If
you do the crime, you do the time.”

“If you guys had told the truth back then, we wouldn’t be sitting
here today,” she said.

Defense attorney Frank C. Arcuri said Arthur Messersmith had
the added burden in this case of being a “Messersmith.”

“This is a particular case of the sins of the father being visited
on the son,” he said.

According to trial testimony, the Messersmiths’ Newberry
Street home was the center of activity during the riots and

http://ydr.com/story/riot/3680/printer/
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especially in the hours before Allen was killed.

John Messersmith, the father of Robert and Arthur Messersmith,
reportedly marshaled his sons, their friends, Newberry Street

Boys and rival gang members as his personal troops during the
1969 riots.

Witnesses testified the Messersmith home contained an arsenal
of hunting weapons, shotguns and Molotov cocktails, and John
Messersmith assigned the young men to guard different areas of
the neighborhood.

Arthur Messersmith, who said he found God during an earlier
stint in prison and after a continuing alcohol problem has been
sober for 20 years, told Allen’s family, “I truly have a
repentative heart. I apologize to all youse folks.”

“It would have meant so much to us if you said ‘It was a terrible
thing. I am so sorry.” It would have meant more than doing
life,” Taylor said.

“Today, I don’t believe you,” she said. “You say you’re sorry
but it seems to me you’ve got your butt stuck in a crack and you
will do anything to get it out.”

Ritter admitted he did not even know who he was shooting at
when he fired a rifle at the car that night.

He said bullets came at him, he went home, retrieved a weapon,
ran back and fired at the car.

“He acted inappropriately, doing what everybody around him
was doing and he should have known better,” his attorney,
Albert Barnes, said.

“I don’t hate you but I don’t like you,” Settles said to Ritter
who was subpoenaed to testify for the defense at trial. “You
continue to slap Lillie Belle in the face. And you still have not
apologized.”

Gladfelter told Uhler he had been a “productive member of
society” since the shooting and that the past two years have
been financially and emotionally draining for him and his family.
Taylor frowned when he asked for leniency “so I can get on
with my life.”

Smith, the only defendant who did not live in the city in 1969,
had smuggled a rifle into the area and put it in the Messersmith
house.

http://ydr.com/story/riot/3680/printer/

12/5/02 12:38 PM




Plea bargainls close with emotional bang - York Daily Wd

6of6

Although he initially claimed to friends that he shot out the back
window of the car, he recanted that statement as just bravado
and testified he never fired that night.

His attorney, Joseph Metz, said Smith was “effectively
encouraged by police” at a rally the day before Allen was killed.

At the rally, teens were told to arm themselves and protect their
neighborhoods during the riots.

Smith conceded he was not “blameless” but “I am sorry and
ashamed I had any part in this tragedy.”

Settles also confronted Smith about not providing more
suspects’ names to investigators.

“Lillie Belle was a loving, kind person,” she said. “I’m not sure
she would have any hatred for you today. But she would have
wanted to know the truth.”

Reach Rick Lee at 771-9707 or rlee@ydr.com. Reach Teresa
Ann Boeckel at 771-2031 or teresa@ydr.com.

ST L DELLELIEIS SESEELS

* Feds rebuff council
(Nov 23, 2002)

* Defendants make second try for jury notes
(N ov 22, 2002)

* Trial passes test of time

(Nov 20, 2002)

» Jury foreman: Notes didn’t affect decision

(Nov 18, 2002)

* Pre-arrest delay argument difficult
(Nov 18, 2002)
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‘Messersmith drops= i

By MARK SCOLFORO
Dispatch/Sunday News

A judge was forced to stop
a sentencing hearing this

morning for the two men con- )

. s pivon ally - uh

Egltlzd A(ﬁenm%vr}?:;mg Llhhe rwhliZh athfél%sozr Illja?sr . a?in—
one de- mitted he raised a clenched

fendant’s new accusations i
[ 12
brought screams from Allers fist and yelled “white power!

' daughter.
Robert Messersmith told Son and former York City

Judge John C. Uhler that Police Officer Dennis McMas-

former York Mayor Charles "ter also gave ammunition to’

Robertson gave Donnie Alt- and.

land the gun that was used | ‘Donnie  Altland  wor-.

to kill Allen on July 21, 1969, shipped Charlie Robertson,”

¢ ¢ Messersmith said. “ !
According to Messersmith, | an icon to him.” He was

e

- R
j. “I-(I)Efgti?ﬁ o t%lx('is ) t‘?llt{?m’l’.’ After Taylor began yelling’
eTPats whga%; re ‘g’élu 1 it;ollsriy at Messersmith, Uhler called;
: ”» : " arec .
1 best friend,” Messersmith Speescsial prosecutor Fra
| said. Both Messersmith and 2
| Altland were members of the | .~ BS

. Newberry Street Boys youth
| B Stand |
Itland committed suicide |
April 11, 2000, after leavinge :
a taped statement about the -

y race-riot-related murder of 4
the black preacher’s daugh- y
ter. \ b —— -

dMessersmi(iihj;s1 allegation ' Messersmith Neff
' today angered Allen’s daugh- . . ’
| ter, Debra Taylor, who beggan Chardo said today, ‘After all
. screaming at him. this time, it is bottled-up
I “You are just as guilty, emotion. It’'s easy to blame
you bastard,” she yelled. (}the dead. I wish he (Messer-
“Why didn’t you tell that l’Smit}q) said this a long time-

e S

‘before, you son of a bitch!” ago. ) {
Taylor had to be re- Messersmith and codefen- |
strained by sheriff’s deputies, | dant Gregolliy II‘II:tNeff, jailed :
| and prosecutor Bill Graff | since an all-white Jury con- |
! victed them of second-degree |

called for an ambulance Crow murder nine weeks ago, faced !

| o examine Allen’s sister, X >

| Jennie Settles, who has high 2@ possible maximum of 10 to ,

. blood pressure. 20 years in jail The men |
were in court today to learn

According to Messersmith,
| Altland received the murder
| weapon om Robertson
\ shortly after the white-power

their sentences. r

Robertson, who went to
trial with Neff and Messer- .
. smith but was a}cgultted, i

Cm.

sentencing
| bOmbShe“ B o, OB 2O QOSDE

Alleges Robertson supplied murder
weapon as well as ammo ’

Messersmith said Robert-- . not be reached for comment.

‘tried to bring up Messer-
‘smith’s_allegation, but “the
DA didr’t want to hear it

e 1|10

Edition: T aily
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about the case “which ‘thel
District Attorney’s Office did.
noi';r fspi)nd to.” :
. - e lawyer said Messer-
Egi}rﬁi g; the accusations this :mith has “expressegl 1 ox- ]
- reme remorse” to en’s .
His attorneys also could {\sgrvivogs ‘I;and has coofperat-

- lied with the victim’s family
NeI:sefPssai d aﬁﬁ%m(fg’f’ensgaﬁgi lisurrounding the events’ of!
» % her death. The letter did not
"elaborate on that cooper- |
ati%n. }
» ponaugle said a report by
J-ch%léfore the sentencing the York County Probation,
hearing began, the defense ;lc)uﬁ};?rgm:nt 11‘:1pr9per1y cal-
‘ : | ed a sentencing recom-
attorneys said they had each mendation, but he did not'

planned to- call about six |
«character witnesses to the |58V what sentence had been

}suggested.
Staﬁld tx?ec%:?;t weeks friends ' Messersmith, 53, of Mont-g

and supporters of both men  gomery County and Neff, 54, |

have written letters to York’s - of York City were among al

two daily newspapers argu- STOUP of armed white young‘}
ing for leniency, citing ques- | 4

' men who attacked Allen and
tions about who fired the. her family as they drove
fatal shot and how the men’
had led their lives in the 33

ears since the killing. 21, 1969. o
Y Messersmith z‘%frlt‘,’corneym Six others pleaded guilty

‘Thomas Sponaugle wrote the | to conspiracy charges in ex-

Ry 1d day,' change for possible testimo-
Igili‘gi?n%actg;‘ls e Mglguaeyd .ny, and were sentenced last,

should result in a sentence of! gélonth to jail terms ranging
two to 3%% years in prison. | Lo three months to three

Sponaugle told Uhler that years, along with fines and\
Messersmith has maintained tommunity service.
NS
Q-
stance-abuse problems, and,

a clean criminal record for 30,
in 1969 was acting under the @_% QMH~QO% > w
i D) ,

years, has had a series oft
influence of his now-deceased; *tArChLE

could not be féaéﬁéld for com-

-across the North Newberry!
Street railroad tracks on July

health and mental-health|
problems, has overcome sub-!

father and at the direction oi’Sf-RmuzﬁD FILED__ ok
police.

Both before and after the £ 1 .
murder trial, Sponaugle, el v d

wrote, he went to county
prosecutors with informationy
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. fendants’ Oct. 19 convictions for sec- |
- ond-degree murder. |
“We’re not pleased with [the sen-

———2 dra V‘; %Mtences], that’s for sure, when you _
} consider all the freedom that [the

prison

in ’69 riot

slaying

BY MARC LEVY
0f The Associated Press

defendants] had for 33 years,” said
' Allen’s brother Ben Mosley, of Co-
. lumbia, S.C.
.. With only one case pending out of
he original charges against 10 white
men in Allen’s slaying, prosecutors
said their three-year investigation
appeared to be nearly completed.

Date:  |a \\Q\ O~

Edition: Daily

Ci ter:
“No case like this is ever closed,” 13:’"’ " ﬂ 577 A 10 /’/ 90 52)8
said York County District Attorney- Classification:
Stan Rebert. “But I think as a practi- Submilting. Offiear HRA

cal matter, we're at the end of the
road.”

Immediately after the sentencing,
lawyers for Allen’s family an-

Victim’s kin threaten ' nounced that they would file a civil

lawsuit seeking damages from York,

laWSU.it against YOI'k “ possibly state police and some peo-

ple unless the city makes a satisfac-

‘tory settlement offer before Jan. 1.
The suit would allege that the ac-

‘tions of officers on the streets on the

erupted in anger.

!

.that Uhler had
,considered their
‘arguments.
' George Barton,
an uncle and
godfather of
Neff, said prose-
cutors “came up
'with the wrong
| answer” for who
'should be held
iresponsible for
-the July 21, 1969,
'slaying of Lillie
IBelle Allen. Mes-
sersmith’s attor-
ney Thomas
Sponaugle said
the sentence was
“unreasonable
and too harsh.”
Allen’s family
members had
asked Uhler dur-
ing the hearing

Still, the packed York County
| courtroom was quiet enough to hear
‘a chair squeak when Judge John C.
Uhler sentenced Robert Messer-
smith to nine to 19 years in prison
.and Gregory Neff to 4/2 to 10 years.

i The sentences evoked disappoint- |
ment from all sides, except prosecut-:
.ors, who said they were satisfied |

Nk handing out ammunition to

to impose the maximum sentence of
110 to 20 years in prison for the de-

.night of Allen’s slaying led to her

YORK ® Two white men convicted in death, attorney Harold Goodman
the 1969 race riot slaying of a black isaid, *
woman were sentenced to prison
yesterday after a hearing in which
relatives of the men begged for leni-
ency and the victim’s daughter

In yesterday morning’s testimony

courtroom became chaotic when!
Messersmith, in a 15-minute state-

ment, blamed Allen’s shooting

on a man who committed sui-

cide in April 2000 and said

police had equipped the man

with the rifle.
© . “Why didn’t you tell that
before?” Allen’s daughter De-
bra Taylor screamed repeat- .
edly after she rose in the gal-
lery to address Messersmith.
As family members and sher-
| iff's officers escorted her out,
ishe yelled that Messersmith
was “just as guilty.”

Prosecutor Thomas Kelley
disputed Messersmith’s,
'charges, saying that authori-j

ties had no evidence to cor-
roborate them. He called the
. laccusations “the last gasps” of]
a person headed to_state pris-
lon.

Attorneys for both Messer-
,smith, 53, and Neff, 54, have
{said they will appeal the ver-
dict.

Acquitted in the trial was.
former York Mayor Charlie
Robertson, 68, a police officer"
at the time who had been ac-.
icused of inciting whites. to vi-,
olence against bla¢ks and!

lsome of the youths who shot
tat Allen, 27, of Aiken, S.C., on;
tthe fifth day of the 10-day ri~
iots. .

~

before the judge’s decision, the:-

O

Messersmith was accused

of firing the shotgun slug that
killed Allen, while Neff was
accused of shooting at the;
'white Cadillac carrying Allen,
her sister, brother-in-law and;
jparents. Six other men have:
ipleaded guilty.

Both defendants addressed
Allen’s seven family members

in attendance. Messersmith
said he was sorry for their

“loss” while Neff said hei

wanted to “sincerely apolo-i
gize” for his actions.-

The case also brought up
questions over whether to
sentence the men based on
who they were in 1969, when
Messersmith was 20 and Neff'
was 21, 'or now, after lives in
which friends and relatives
said the men strove to help.
others and be good citizens.

Many who testified for th
defendants cried. . .

“I'm begging you, your hon-
or, to please have mercy on
my father,” Neff's daughter,

. Tricia, told Uhler. -

But prosecutor Fran Chardo

' said the men had lived on:

“borrowed time” for 33 years, |
while Taylor said her mother|
was dead, not merely in pris-|
on. \

“Pm sure none of the defen-

* dants would want to change.

places with her,” she said.

The case was dormant for.
years before prosecutors re-
opened it in 1999, saying they:
had new information. Nine
men were arrested last year,

year. ‘
The 10-day riots, touched!

off by simmering violence bé«---

-tween white and black youths, |

and another in July of this J
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more than
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Rep.wpd

REPORTING OFFICE OFFICE OF ORIGIN DATE INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD
Philadelphia PHILADELPHIA 02/26/2003 | 09/21/2002 - 12/20/2002
TITLE OF CASE REPORT MADE BY TYPED BY
PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON, , b6
York Police Department,. ‘ SA drj b7C
York, Pennsylvania; CHARACTER OF CASE
LILLIE BELLE ALLEN CIVIL RIGHTS - COLOR OF LAW -
(Deceased) - VICTIM; FORCE AND/OR VIOLENCE

REFERENCE

Philadelphia FD-6
04/26/2002.

ENCLOSURES

Enclosed for the Bureau are the following:

/2001, and report dated

1. Copies of newspaper articles from The Patriot News,

a daily newspaper for Harrisburg, Pennsylvania, dated 10/08/2002;

10/20/2002; and 12/19/2002.

2. Copies of newspaper articles from the York
Digpatch, a daily newspaper from York, Pennsylvania, dated
10/20/2002; 11/14/2002; and 12/18/2002.

PECIAL AGENT
APPROVED %Wd ;é 2 (CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW

COPIES / / /fu =

2- B reau

1- DOJ, Civil Rights Unit )’{f] 100 AU QAEND 11 0
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FD-204 (Rev. 12-1-95)

Copy to:
Report of:
Date:

Case ID #:

Title:

Character:

Synopsis:

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Federal Bureau of Investigation

Department of Justice #144-63-800
Attention:

sa| | ofic:. Philadelphia
02/26/2003

282A-PH-90508

PATROLMAN CHARLES HENDRY ROBERTSON,
York Police Department,

York, Pennsylvania;

LILLIE BALLE ALLEN (Deceased) - VICTIM;

CIVIL RIGHTS - COLOR OF LAW -
FORCE AND/OR VIOLENCE

Captioned subject Robertson was acquitted at trial. Two
co-defendants convicted of second degree murder and
sentenced. Six other subjects entered guilty pleas to
lesser offenses and sentenced. Tenth subject charged and
awaits trial in 2003. Civil proceedings in filing process
by victim's family. ©No further monitoring of local case
required. This matter is considered closed with SAC
approval.

DETAILS:

On October 19, 2002, a York County Jury
concluded a three-week trial by finding the captioned
subject not guilty. Co-defendants Robert Messersmith and
Gregory Neff were found guilty of second degree murder.

On November 13, 2002, York County Courts
accepted guilty pleas from six co-defendants for lesser
offenses and were sentenced as follows:

1

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI

and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.

b6
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b6
b7C

bé
b7C




282A-PH-90508

5] |

On December 18, 2002, Robert Messersmith was sentenced
in York County, Pennsylvania, to nine to nineteen years in prison
for second degree murder. Gregory Neff was sentenced to four and
one-half to ten years for his second degree murder conviction.

York County concluded prosecution of the captioned
subject on October 19, 2002, when subject Robertson was found not
guilty by a criminal trial jury.

No further report is warranted in this matter.
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Memorandum - ‘

Subject: Date:

Notice of File Closing July 08, 2004
CIVIL RIGHTS DIVISION

To: From:
Director R. Alexander Acosta
Federal Bureau of Investigation  Acting Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

" Reference is made to your field office file captioned as on

7

24
the attached closing form and numbered 282A-ph-90508 7~ °This matter

has been closed as of the date on the attached form.
Attachment
DOJ Numbexr 144-63-800

Attorney/Secretary HA/amb

2824- Yl F0.528 — 70
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U.S. Department of Justice Notice to Close File
amb

File Number: Case Title: ' Date:
DJ 144-63-800 Patrolman Charles H. Robertson, . 07-08-04

et al. - Subjects;
Lillie Balle Allen - Victim

YOU ARE ADVISED THAT THE ABOVE FILE HAS BEEN CLOSED AS OF THIS
DATE. .

Remarks/Special Information:

This matter arises out of the 1969 shooting death of the
victim, Lillie Belle Allen, during racial riots in York, PA.
Allen, who was African-American, was shot by a group of white
youths.

After new information emerged in 1999, a local grand jury
was convened and several subjects were indicted and prosecuted on
state charges. Following a three-week trial, subject
Charles Robertson was acquitted. Co-defendants Robert Messersmith
and Gregory Neff were found guilty of second-degree murder.
Messersmith was sentenced to nine to nineteen years in prison,
Neff was sentenced to four and one-half to ten years in prison
and Six additional co-defendants pled guilty to lesser chardes,

including attempted murder and conspiracy.

To:

Files Unit Civil Rights Division

Signature: Division:

Civil Rights Division

FORM OLD-25-A
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The investigation revealed insufficient evidence that the
shooting occurred on federal land, and likewise revealed
insufficient evidence that the shooting was intended to interfere
with the victim’s federally protected rights or with her
participation in a federally protected activity, thus precluding
any assertion of federal jurisdiction over the conduct of the
white youths.

The investigation indicated that police officers allowed
Allen’s car to enter a white neighborhood at a time of intense
racial hostility, raising potential issues as to the officers’
failure to keep Allen from harm. However, even assuming the
evidence of this conduct were otherwise sufficient to satisfy the
elements of 18 U.S.C. § 242, any prosecution under that provision
is barred by the five-year statute of limitations which, under
the version of the statute in effect at the time of the incident,
applied even in cases resulting in death. This matter should
therefore be closed without further prosecution.
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Routing Slip

0-7 (Rev. 10-9-84) (Copies to Offices Checked)
TO: SAC, TO: LEGAT,
[ 1 Albany [ 1 Houston [ ] Oklahoma City [ ] Bern
[ ] Albuquerque [ ] Indianapolis [ ] Omaha [ 1 Bogota
[ 1 Alexandria [ ] Jackson [ 1 Philadelphia [ ] Bonn
[ 1 Anchorage [ 1 Jacksonville [ 1 Phoenix [ 1 Canberra
[ 1 Atlanta [ 1 Kansas City [ 1 Pittsburgh [ ] Hong Kong
[ 1 Baltimore [ ] Knoxville [ 1 Portland [ ] London
[ 1 Birmingham [ 1 Las Vegas [ ] Richmond [ ] Mexico City
[ ] Boston [ 1 Little Rock [ 1 Sacramento [ ] Montevideo i
[ ] Buffalo [ ] Los Angeles [ ] St. Louis { ] Ottawa '
[ ] Butte [ 1 Louisville [ ] Salt Lake City [ ] Panama City
[ ] Charlotte [ ] Memphis [ 1 San Antonio [ 1 Paris
[ 1 Chicago [ 1] Miami [ 1 San Diego [ ] Rome
[ ] Cincinnati [ ] Milwaukee [ ] San Francisco [ ] Tokyo
[ ] Cleveland [ ] Minneapolis [ 1 San Juan
{ ] Columbia [ 1 Mobile [ ] Savannah
[ ] Dallas [ 1 Newark [ ] Seattle
[ ] Denver [ } New Haven [ 1 Springfield
[ ] Detroit [ ] New Orleans [ ] Tampa
[ ] E1 Paso [ ] New York City [ ] Washington Field
[ ] Honolulu [ ] Noxfolk [ 1 Quantico
[ ] ASAC, Brooklyn—-Queens (MRA)
Re: DOJ CLOSING(s) Date 08/04/04
[x] For Retention For appropriate

[ ] For Information [ } optional [ ] action [ ] Surep, by

[ 1 The enclosed is for your information. If used in a future report,
{ ] conceal all sources, [ ] paraphrase contents.

{ ] Enclosed are corrected pages from report of SA

dated
REMARKS : 282A-PH-90508
This case(s) has been closed by the Civil Rights
Division-Department of Justice. ?5
Field Office copy enclosed. ,D
X7
Encl: 1
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{Rev. 08-28-2000) ‘ ‘

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 10/07/2002
To: Philadelphia

From: Philadelnhia

b6

SR

Approved By:

Drafted By:

case 10 #: 432 R-PH-GQD50F

Title: MAINTENANCE OF ORIGINAL FIELD OFFICE
PENDING FILES IN HARRISBURG RESIDENT
AGENCY

Synopsis: Maintenance of original pending files in the
Harrisburg Resident Agency (HRA).

Details: MAOP Part II, Section 2-4.3.1. The retention of the
above file in the Harrisburg Resident Agency will be necessary to
effectively conduct this investigation. The above file will be
retained in a secure manner.

MAINTAIN AS TOP SERIAL. DO NOT SERIALIZE.




